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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TREMES

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am
presenting to our shareholders the results of Hanison
Construction Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2011.

RESULTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2011

For the year ended 31 March 2011, the turnover of the Group
was HK$723.2 million, being 18.23% lower than the turnover
of HK$884.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2010.

Despite the decrease in turnover, the Group delivered a positive
performance and recorded an increase in consolidated profit
from HK$109.2 million for the last financial year to HK$156.0
million for this financial year. This favourable result was mainly
attributable to the gain on change in fair value of investment
properties and recognition of profit from sales of the remaining
units of One LaSalle, a 50%-owned luxury low-rise residential
development in Kowloon Tong.

The basic earnings per share for the year was HK32.0 cents,
compared to HK22.4 cents last year.

As at 31 March 2011, the net asset value amounted to
HK$889.7 million (2010: HK$750.2 million), representing an
increase of 18.60% over last year. Net asset value per share at
31 March 2011 was HK$1.82 (2010: HK$1.54).

DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended a final dividend of HK2.7 cents
per share for the year ended 31 March 2011 (2010: HK2.5
cents per share) to shareholders whose names appear on the
Register of Members of the Company on 19 September 2011.
This together with the interim dividend of HK1.5 cents per
share (2010: HK1.5 cents per share) gives a total of HK4.2
cents per share for the year (2010: HK4.0 cents per share).
The proposed final dividend will be paid on 4 October 2011
following approval at the annual general meeting.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The recovery of most Western economies was far from smooth,
while still sluggish, has gradually been on firmer footing. For
the past year, Asian countries, especially Mainland China,
demonstrated strong growth and Hong Kong also recorded high
Gross Domestic Product (“GDP”) growth. Although the financial
turmoil arising from different parts of the world has moderated,
new uncertainties have emerged, including the high debt to
GDP level in some European countries, the political unrest in
the Middle East and North Africa, and the potential disruption
due to Japan’s earthquake and nuclear incident. Another big
problem is the rapid inflation in the worldwide prices of most
assets, industrial materials, consumer goods and wages as a
result of the quantitative easing policies from the United States
of America. These uncertainties may pose threats to the political
stability and economical risk to every place in the world,
including Hong Kong.

In the local market, while the Hong Kong economy sustained
strong momentum in the first quarter of 2011, with real GDP
leaping by 7.2% over a year earlier, it has led to intense
competition for resources and the competent people, and our
Group is facing these challenges with no exception. The labour
market saw further broad-based improvement. Job creation
gathered pace in tandem with economic expansion. Labour
wages continued to increase and thus leading to the increase
in labour costs.

Market competition of the Group’s core businesses remains
fierce. The Group recorded a drop in turnover for most of the
business divisions. The reason for the decrease in turnover of
the Construction Division and Interior and Renovation Division
was because some major contracts have come to completion
stage during the year while new contracts received have just
started or not even commenced yet. The Building Materials
Division has also suffered a decrease in turnover due to savage
competition in the market.

Despite the Group experienced a slowdown in turnover, the
Group was benefited by the robust growth of the residential
property market with overall residential flat prices rose by 9%
during the first quarter of 2011. We received enthusiastic
response for the sale of One LaSalle, a 50-50 jointly developed
property with NWS Holdings Limited. All units were sold during
the year and the profits were recognised in this financial year.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT = [EHEE

Benefited from the continuing low interest rate and the strong
purchasing power from both local buyers, and foreign investors,
including the PRC investors, the property prices in Hong Kong
continue to rise. As a result, our Group’s investment properties
have continued to record increase in value on revaluation.

HIGHLIGHTS OF CORPORATE ACTIVITIES

During the year, Sau Mau Ping South Estate, a construction
project of the Group, received a Grand Award of the Green
Building Award 2010 under the New Buildings Category - Hong
Kong for residential project.

Subsequent to the financial year ended 31 March 2011, the
Group has acquired 49% of the parcel of land situate at /
AT EBEMRX KA - &5 =88 AI(West of Wenyuan
Road and South of Houfutinggang, Haining, Zhejiang Province,
the PRC) (the “Land”) for the development and construction
of office, retail, carparking spaces and other development
pertaining to the Land, and the sale of office premises erected
thereon (“Haining Development”).

FUTURE DIRECTIONS AND PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, we expect that economic growth in Hong Kong
will continue under the support of the vibrant growth of
Mainland’s economy. Hong Kong enjoys the advantage of being
closely linked to Mainland China.

While the global economy has continued to expand under the
use of quantitative easing policies rather than through natural
growth, we should be aware of the adverse impacts that may
arise from these policies.

The domestic sector is expected to continue to stay rather
robust. However, upward pressures on local costs have
increased after five quarters of rapid economic growth.
Although the Group has not been directly affected by the
implementation of Statutory Minimum Wage, upward pressures
on general local wages are likely to rise further.
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With the domestic problems in the increase in material and
labour costs and the uncertainties in the external environment,
operating environment for the Group’s core businesses will still
not be easy despite the overall business confidence of various
sectors in Hong Kong has improved.

During the year, the sale of One LaSalle of our Property
Development Division was encouraging. The sale of the Group’s
other luxurious residential development, Eight College, at
Kowloon Tong is expected to launch in the next financial year.
In the near future, the Group will focus on the redevelopment
of Bedford Road and The Austine. We will ride on our previous
experience in property development and continue to strive for
improvement of our operating performance. The Group’s recent
investment in the Haining Development will also enable the
Group to expand its property development and investment
horizon in Mainland China.

We will continue to adopt a proactive yet prudent management
strategy to drive quality growth in our core businesses while
identify different business opportunities to diversify our
businesses. This will help build resilience into our overall
business platform against unexpected economic changes.

Our enduring strength is a tribute to the continuing support
from our colleagues, shareholders and customers. On behalf
of the Board, | wish to thank the management team and staff
for working closely together to address the challenges of the
past and stay ahead of the changes and opportunities in the
future.

W

Cha Mou Sing, Payson
Chairman
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OPERATIONS REVIEW
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OPERATIONS REVIEW
> 1% [0l BA

CONSTRUCTION DIVISION

The turnover for our Construction Division decreased to
HK$442.7 million for the year ended 31 March 2011 (2010:
HK$541.5 million), representing a drop of approximately
18.2%. The decrease in turnover of the Construction Division
was due to the reason that some major contracts have come
to completion stage during the year under review while new
contracts received have just started or not even commenced.

The total amount of contracts on hand as at 31 March 2011
was HK$1,329.5 million, of which HK$345.1 million was
derived from projects under joint venture arrangements with
joint venture partners.

The inclusion in the List of Approved Contracts for Public Works
in Group C (Confirmed) under “Buildings” Category (“Approved
Contractor Group C (Confirmed) for Building Works”) has allowed
the Construction Division to tender for more government projects.
The Construction Division has secured 6 government contracts
since then and two of which were awarded for the year ended 31
March 2011 and subsequent to the year ended 31 March 2011
respectively. The contract awarded subsequent to the year end
was for the construction of Public Rental Housing Development
at Tseung Kwan O Area 65B.

Major Projects Completed

(1) Construction of footbridge, landing block and landscaping
works at Monmouth Path, 1 Queen’s Road East

(2) Construction of the primary school at the junction of
Texaco Road and Castle Peak Road

Major Projects in Progress

(1) Construction of primary school at development near Choi
Wan Road and Jordan Valley, Kwun Tong

(2) Construction of a second secondary school at development
near Choi Wan Road and Jordan Valley, Kwun Tong
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(3)

(4)

(6)

(7)

9)

Construction of Sports Centre and Community Hall in Area
WEFKEIOIEZEBET LRt EGE

Construction of Sports Centre and Community Hall in Area
101 at Tin Shui Wan

Construction of Lam Tin North Municipal Services
Building

Construction of Student Hostel Phase 3 for The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University

Construction of shopping centre (Block 1 & 4) at
Discovery Bay North

Construction of conference and resort hotel at North Area
N3, Discovery Bay, Lantau Island

Construction of industrial building on Bedford Road, Tai
Kok Tsui

Construction of residential development at Area N1d,
Phase 14, Discovery Bay, Lantau Island

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

9)
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OPERATIONS REVIEW % 7% 0] g2

Outlook

The construction industry continues to be one of the main
pillars of Hong Kong’'s economy.

Backed up by the strong demand for real estate properties in
Hong Kong, which was, to certain extent, due to the genuine
housing needs of the local people as they have accumulated
wealth over a period of time, but by large, the influx of capital
from all over the world and in particular investment from
Mainland China in purchasing assets such as real estate
properties, the outlook of the construction industry is promising.

The government has outlined a series of infrastructural projects,
such as the bridge linking Hong Kong, Macau and Zhuhai.
Although the Group will not participate in these infrastructural
projects given the different nature of the scope of work from
the Group’s Construction Division, the launching of these
projects will drive the construction industry forward and we
are optimistic that the whole construction industry can
eventually reap the benefit.

For the year 2010, the total gross value of construction works
performed by main contractors increased by 6.8% in real terms.
While the gross value of construction works performed at public
sector sites increased by 58.9% in real terms, the gross value
of construction works performed at private sector sites recorded
a drop by 12.6% in real terms.

Despite the increase in the total gross value of construction
works and the local economy has regained some momentum,
the business environment remains highly competitive due to
the rising construction costs, which can be reflected by the
increase in construction materials and labour costs.
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Construction of Lam Tin North MuniE:ipaIrSé'rGi‘ces'El.u d
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Against this backdrop, the Construction Division will continue
to implement cost control initiatives and stringent monitoring
of construction process. Over the years, our emphasis on
enhancing the quality of our works and aiming at tendering for
more construction works in the public sectors has enable us
to secure more government works.

Our consistent pursuit of quality is also recognized. During the
year, Sau Mau Ping South Estate, a construction project of the
division, received a Grand Award of the Green Building Award
2010 under the New Buildings Category — Hong Kong for
residential project. This award and the awards the division have
received throughout the years serve to recognize the division's
commitment to excellence.

The knowledge, experience, persistence to cost and quality
control are the strong drivers for our future growth.
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Refurbishment and renovation works for Grenville House, 1-3 Magazine Gap Road, Mid-levels
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INTERIOR AND RENOVATION DIVISION

For the year ended 31 March 2011, the business of the Interior
and Renovation Division recorded a turnover of HK$114.3
million, as compared with HK$184.8 million last year. The
reason attributable to the decrease was that the works of some
major contracts have been deferred and thus affected the
expected income.

Major Projects Undertaken

(1) Renovation and refurbishment works for Scenic Garden
on 9 Kotewall Road, Mid-levels

(2) Interior fitting-out works for the residential development
at Area N1d, Phase 14, Discovery Bay, Lantau Island

(3) Builder’s works and fitting-out works for the conference
and resort hotel at North Area N3, Discovery Bay, Lantau
Island

Project management work for the refurbis

PERERZEEETIAETIZNT
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B b
Scenic Garden, 9 Kotewall Road, Mi

L BB ERARSE

During the year, the Interior and Renovation Division has
completed the remaining refurbishment and renovation works
for the podium of Grenville House on 1-3 Magazine Gap Road,
Mid-levels and the renovation works for the external wall of
Scenic Garden on 9 Kotewall Road, Mid-levels. The interior
fitting-out works for the residential development at Area N1d,
Phase 14, Discovery Bay, Lantau Island are progressing at full
speed whereas the contract for the conference and resort hotel
at North Area N3, Discovery Bay, Lantau Island have
commenced and are expected to finish by end of 2011 or early
2012.

Apart from undertaking renovation works in Hong Kong, we
also performed project management work in Mainland China.
We are the project manager of the refurbishment and
renovation works for Chelsea Residence at Chang Ning District,
Shanghai and the project has completed as scheduled.

The contract on hand as at 31 March 2011 amounted to
HK$252.2 million.
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Outlook

The benefits of using mast climbing platform in renovation
works have been widely recognized after the active promotion
by the Interior and Renovation Division supported by the past
success in using the mast climbing platforms for a range of
projects.

The clients valued the use of mast climbing platform as it
provides safe and hygienic working environment with good
ventilation and quality assurance. An increasing number of
clients have included the use of mast climbing platform as
one of their tender requirements. Therefore, despite market
competition for interior and renovation works is keen, the
utilisation of mast climbing platform will greatly enhance our
competitiveness in the market.

The Interior and Renovation Division has lodged an application
for inclusion in the list of building contractors, M2
(Probationary) of the Hong Kong Housing Authority. The
properties under the Hong Kong Housing Authority, being the
single-largest landlord in Hong Kong, will require renovation
and refurbishment works from time to time. The expansion of
renovation works into the public sector is a necessary choice
for the division to diversify its sources of revenues not only
from its private sector customers and to achieve sustainable
development in future.

Apart from gaining a leading position in renovation works, e.g.
external wall refurbishment, our interior capabilities have also
caught attention in the field. Our proven track records on the
interior and renovation works for the clubhouse of Queen’s
Garden at Mid-levels, and the interior renovation and
refurbishment works for Tavistock at Mid-levels and Chung Fu
Shopping Centre at Tin Shui Wan for The Link Real Estate
Investment Trust, enable the Interior and Renovation Division
to demonstrate its professionalism in achieving different types
of renovation projects.

Backed by the expertise, seasoned experience and appropriate
equipment, we are optimistic of furthering the growth and
development of this division in the coming years.
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Ma Wo, Tai Po — Design, supply and installation of aluminium window, sliding door and glazed works

RAREHEE — Rt~ ERRKERE - MPIRKETRE



BB A BT R AR A7) 2010/20114F )

BUILDING MATERIALS DIVISION

During the year, the operating environment for building
materials remained difficult. For the year ended 31 March
2011, the turnover for the Building Materials Division was
HK$169.2 million, compared with HK$193.1 million last year.

Trigon Building Materials Limited (“Trigon HK”)
and Trigon Interior Fitting-Out Works (Macau)
Limited (“Trigon Macau”) (collectively, “Trigon”)

Trigon HK and Trigon Macau are two of the subsidiaries of the
Group under the Building Materials Division, specializing in
the supply and installation of interior products such as different
types of suspended ceiling system, metal cladding system,
demountable partition system, fire rated protection system,
decorative moulding, raised flooring and wood flooring.

While the building material market remains competitive, the
implementation of railway network such as the Ma On Shan
Line and West Island Line has shed some light on the industry.
The Building Materials Division has seized the opportunities
to place more emphasis to tender for the supply and installation
of false ceiling for different railway stations.

Major Projects Undertaken

(1)  Community College of the City University of Hong Kong
— Supply and installation of false ceiling

(2) Podium floor of the commercial development on 18 Wang
Chiu Road, B, NKIL N. 5856 — Supply and installation
of false ceiling

(3) Residential development on No. 42-44 Belcher’s Street,
Kennedy Town — Supply and installation of false ceiling

(4) Office/commercial development on No0.863-865 King’s
Road, Quarry Bay — Supply and installation of false
ceiling
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Hong Kong Science Park Building — Colour baffle cé-iii:ng
ERHEE — ¥ eRPREREBERALS

(5)

Hong Kong Science Park Building 20, Pak Shek Kok, Tai
Po — Supply and installation of false ceiling

Sun Yat Sen Memorial Park & swimming pool complex
— Supply and installation of suspended ceiling system

Major Projects Awarded

(1

(2)

(3)

(5)

Redevelopment of Victoria Park swimming pool complex
— Supply and installation of false ceiling

Ma On Shan Line — Che Kung Temple Station — Supply
and installation of false ceiling

Centralised general research laboratory complex of the
Chinese University of Hong Kong — Supply and
installation of false ceiling

Office floor of the commercial development on 18 Wang
Chiu Road, B, NKIL N.5856 — Supply and installation of
false ceiling

Lam Tin North Municipal Services Building — Supply and
installation of false ceiling

)
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The contract on hand as at 31 March 2011 amounted to
HK$49.8 million.

Subsequent to the financial year ended 31 March 2011, the
following projects were awarded:

(1)  West Island Line — Sai Ying Pun Station and tunnels —
Supply and installation of false ceiling

(2) Development at Tseung Kwan O Lot No.70, Area 86, Site

AB, Package 2, Phase 3 — Supply and installation of
external aluminum false ceiling

Tai Kee Pipes Limited (“Tai Kee”)

Another subsidiary under the Building Materials Division, Tai
Kee, focuses on the supply of pipes, fittings and other related
accessories through both retail and project sales.

Major Projects Undertaken

(1) Helping Hand Cheung Muk Tau Holiday Centre for the
Elderly at Sai Kung — Supply of pipes for fire services

(2) Stanley Prison — Supply of pipes for fire services

(3) Water Supply Department — Supply of manhole covers

(4) EcoPark at Tuen Mun — Supply of pipes for fire services

(5) New headquarters of the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region at Tamar — Supply of air-

conditioning copper pipes

(6) Pui Ching Primary School — Supply of air-conditioning
pipes

(7)  Tin Shui Wai Sports Ground — Supply of pipes for fire
services

(8) Project on Lomond Road — Supply of air-conditioning
pipes
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Suseco

Ductile Iron pipe System

Suseco products
Suseco i

(9) Headquarters of Aviation Department at the Hong Kong
International Airport — Supply of air-conditioning pipes

(10) Celestial Heights — Supply of air-conditioning pipes
(11) St. Stephen’s College — Supply of pipes for fire services
(12) Luk Kwok Centre — Supply of pipes for fire services

(13) Sun Yat Sen Memorial Park — Supply of air-conditioning
pipes

The total amount of contracts on hand of Tai Kee as at 31
March 2011 amounted to HK$11.9 million.

Million Hope Industries Limited (“Million Hope
HK”) and B HBEEZZEHHEMNBRAT
(“3 ") (collectively “Million Hope”)

Million Hope HK and 3 specialize in the design, supply
and installation of aluminium windows and curtain walls in
Hong Kong and Mainland China. Million Hope is one of the
authorized manufacturers of the renowned German brand
product “Schuco”. We have assigned our sales team to actively
promote the unitized facade system and energy-efficient facade
system of “Schiico”.

@) R ESEBRBORABEMBH — 8
2 R E

(10) EF ¥ —HE=FARRE

(11) BELRRER — HEHENRE

(12) NEF L — HEEH&RE

i

(13) Rl rE — HEZFRKRE

RZF——F=ZA=+—08 R FHEEY
## 8#11,900,0007T ©

XFRARARLF(RFER|) RXR
HRHEEME (BN RRLF (A
(RBIEF )

XFEBNFEHRIZERBLPERE - #E
RzEinEaMERER X7 REERmE
[Schucol (TTBH8]) My E AR —RIFERLER ©
P2 2B E MG E B BT
BRAGNEERERER



BB A BT R AR A7) 2010/20114F )

During the year, Million Hope completed a number of projects
and was awarded several new contracts. Adhered to the
principles of team management and quality control, Million
Hope HK and % # strived to enhance its product quality and
achieve production efficiency.

Major Projects Completed
Projects in Hong Kong

(1) Ma Wo, Tai Po — Design, supply and installation of
aluminium window, sliding door and glazed works

(2) Choi Wan Road Development Site 2 Phase 1 — Design,
supply and installation of natural anodized aluminium
window, aluminium door and louvre

Project in Mainland China

(3) ZELFHEE (Translation: Hua Kai Di Ting Yuan) in
Dongguan — Design, supply and installation of aluminium
window, aluminium door, “Schico” folding door and
louvre

Major Projects Undertaken

(1) Proposed residential development on 9A — 9H Seymour
Road — Design, supply and installation of aluminium
window, sliding door, glass balustrade, aluminium
cladding and feature

(2) Proposed residential development for Winfield Building
on Nos. 1, 3 and 5 Ventris Road, Happy Valley — Design,
supply and installation of aluminium window, sliding door
and glass balustrade

(3) Phase 14, Discovery Bay — Design, supply and
installation of curtain walls, aluminum window, aluminum
sliding door, glass balustrades and glass walls
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Proposed residential development at Phase 15, Area N1e,
Discovery Bay — Design, supply and installation of
aluminium window, sliding door, glass balustrade and
glass wall

Proposed residential redevelopment of Yucca de Lac,
Shatin — Design, supply and installation of aluminium
window and “Schico” folding door

(5)
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(6) Proposed residential development on 16 — 34 Wood (6) 1—?/55_16 MRMEZREEEE — &
Road, Wanchai — Design, supply and installation of nJr HERLZERRE  ta@ -« WP - #
curtain wall, aluminium window, sliding door, balustrade /—J&i&ﬁ%%
and glass wall

(7) Proposed residential redevelopment on no. 9 Mount  (7) UTEINZ)ILEOSRAEZEEEEEE —
Kellett Road, The Peak — Design, supply and installation AT HRERLZE B E RiH

of “Schico” window and sliding door

Proposed residential development on 13-27 Warren Street
— Design, supply and installation of aluminium window,
curtain wall, aluminium cladding, louvre, skylight, canopy,
balustrade and metal suspended ceiling
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Major Projects Awarded

(1

(4)

e
Wood Road, Wanchai
RS —Rat - #

Proposed residential development on 2A Seymour Road
— Design, supply and installation of “Schiico” sliding
door

Proposed residential development on no. 1 Broadcast
Drive, Kowloon — Design, supply and installation of
aluminium window and aluminium folding door

Proposed industrial development on TWIL No.36, Hoi
Sing Road, Tsuen Wan — Design, supply and installation
of aluminium window, glass wall, skylight and aluminium
cladding

Student Hostel Phase 3, The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University — Design, supply and installation of aluminium
window, curtain wall, aluminium cladding and louvre
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(5) Proposed residential development on TMTL 422, Tsing
Lung Road, Area 58, Siu Lam, Tuen Mun — Design,
supply and installation of “Schico” Windows

The total amount of contracts on hand of Million Hope as at
31 March 2011 amounted to HK$251.8 million.

Outlook

Despite the buoyant outlook of the property market, the building
material market is still very competitive. The real estate
properties boom in Hong Kong has seen the increasing demand
for building materials, however, the inflationary pressure and
market speculative force have caused wide fluctuation in the
precious metal prices, which could easily rip off the thin
margins of the building material business.

Going forward, Trigon will continue to expand its product range
and explore new distributorship for high quality innovative
products in order to consolidate its position in the industry
and broaden its client base.

For nearly 25 years, Tai Kee has laid solid foundation in the
piping business market, and at present, it is strengthening its
marketing team to expand its market share to take advantage
of the existing positive sentiment of the real estate property
market.

The aluminium window business is struggling along in adversity
of fierce competition, escalating material and labour costs.
However, with increased spending on infrastructure works by
the HKSAR Government and increased building construction
works in the private housing, Million Hope will seize the
opportunities to secure more large-scale works and capture
new business opportunities.

Looking into the year ahead, we see opportunities accompanied
by challenges. We will strive to seize every opportunity to
expand our business, but with a watchful mind of the possible
risks involved.
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Eight College in Kowloon Tong
7 NLEEYEH) Eight College
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

The sale of the One LaSalle, a 50/50 jointly developed property
with NWS Holdings Limited, commenced in the financial year
ended 31 March 2010 and continued in this financial year. All
remaining units were sold during the year, realizing a total gross
income of HK$491.0 million for the sale of 8 units.

The sale results of One LaSalle were encouraging. We expect
that Eight College, another luxury residence of the Group in
Kowloon Tong, will also bring promising returns to the Group.

During the year, the demolition work of Bedford Road has been
completed and foundation work on the site has commenced.
A boutique industrial building will be erected thereon, offering
quality industrial spaces to users in the market.

The demolition of The Austine in Jordan, Kowloon is expected
to commence in the third quarter of 2011. Situated at the prime
location of Kowloon at a nexus of transportation, the site will
be redeveloped into luxury residences.

The residential development at DD129, Lau Fau Shan in Yuen
Long is undergoing gazettal stage.

One LaSalle in Kowloon Tong

I NLEEYEH) One LaSalle
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Subsequent to the financial year end, the Group has acquired
49% interests of the parcel of land situate at 1 BT & /&%

mE s EE Al - &= =8B (West of Wenyuan Road and
South of Houfutinggang, Haining, Zhejiang Province, the PRC)
(the “Land”) for the development and construction of office,
retail, carparking spaces and other development pertaining to
the Land, and the sale of office premises erected thereon. This
office development project will enable the division to utilize its
expertise and experience for the master planning of the large-
scale development in the PRC.

Outlook

The property market in Hong Kong has experienced an upsurge
since the second quarter of 2009 and showed encouraging
progress in 2010.
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Hong Kong is facing the challenge of a rising property market.
In late 2010, the HKSAR Government introduced policies to
try to cool the overheating market and try to curb speculation.
In the 2011-2012 Budget Speech, the HKSAR Government
reiterated its stance on increasing land supply. It was not the
first time for the HKSAR Government to implement measures
to moderate rising home prices. Owing to inflation, low interest
rates, and speculative investments, those previous measures
have only had a slight impact and market sentiment remained
largely unaffected.

Recently, the HKSAR Government has launched further anti-
speculative measures. On 10 June 2011, the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority issued guidelines to banks, requiring them
to implement five measures, including lowering the maximum
loan-to-value ratio for residential properties with a value
between HK$10 million and HK$12 million to 50% and for
those with a value between HK$7 million and HK$10 million
to 60%, with the maximum loan amount capped at HK$5
million. With the recent implementation of the new anti-
speculative measures and the recent increase of the HIBOR
based mortgage lending rates, the impacts of these measures
have yet to see.

Looking forward, we are optimistic about the long-term demand
for residential and industrial properties. The increase in
population in Hong Kong, both through the natural birth and
by immigration from Mainland China, the increasing disposable
income and wealth of the middle class people in Hong Kong,
and the influx of capital funds from foreign investors, especially
those from Mainland China, to invest in Hong Kong’s properties
are some of the favourable factors for the Hong Kong property
market.
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The Government’s policies aim at curtailing property speculative
and investment activities, stabilizing property prices and
regulating residential property transactions, so as to prevent
excessive investment in the property market and overshooting
of property price. The real estate market in the Hong Kong
would benefit from those measures which help maintain a
healthy and orderly development. In the long run, the policies
will help stabilize the Hong Kong real estate property market
and avoid unexpected fluctuation in the property developers’
profits.

Devoted to provide quality properties and with due regard to
our Group’s financial resources, our development strategy is
to identify suitable and affordable locations for expansion and
growth.
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PROPERTY INVESTMENT DIVISION

The turnover of the Property Investment Division was HK$23.7
million, as compared to the turnover of HK$24.9 million last
year.

The drop was partly attributable to the reduction of rental
income of The Austine, a serviced-apartment building in Jordan
during the year. The tenants of The Austine were vacated in
November 2010 and the Group has planned to redevelop the
site into luxury residences.

During the year, the Group’s investment properties recorded
stable leasing performance. Our investment property, Shatin
Industrial Centre in Shatin attained an occupancy rate of around
96% as at 31 March 2011.

Other investment properties of the Group include 31 Wing Wo
Street in Sheung Wan, some units at Kin Wing Industrial
Building in Tuen Mun, various land lots in D.D. 76 Ping Che in
Fanling, various land lots in D.D. 128 Deep Bay Road in Yuen
Long and Hoi Bun Godown in Tuen Mun in which the Group
has 50% interest, all contributed to satisfactory income to the
Group during the year whereas the investment property on
23-25 Mei Wan Street in Tsuen Wan was vacant for the moment.

Based on the Hong Kong Accounting Standard 40 “Investment
Property” (“HKAS40"), the revaluation surplus, after accruing
for the relevant expenses and deferred tax, was credited to
the income statement. From an independent valuer’s report,
the Group recorded a revaluation surplus of HK$121.0 million
for its investment properties for the year ended 31 March 2011.
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Outlook

The leasing market in Hong Kong progresses in tandem with
the property market.

Strengthened by increasing economic activities and business
expansion, the performance of the rental office and industrial
buildings are encouraging with strong take-up and some
achieving full occupancy.

Accelerated rental growth was seen in luxury residential,
industrial and office building. Rental is expected to remain on
an upward path given that quality spaces are lagging behind
occupiers’ demand.

Going forward, the Property Investment Division will continue
to build up its portfolio of rental properties by acquiring suitable
properties which provide steady income streams to the Group.
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Property management services for Golf Parkview

AERASEREMEEIERS

PROPERTY AGENCY AND MANAGEMENT
DIVISION

The turnover of the Property Agency and Management Division
for the year was HK$9.1 million, compared to the turnover of
HK$6.9 million last year.

Currently, the Property Agency and Management Division is
providing property management services to Golf Parkview in
Sheung Shui and One LaSalle in Kowloon Tong.

Further, the division is also providing rental collection and
leasing agency services to 8 Hart Avenue and The Cameron in
Tsim Sha Tsui.

During the year, the division continued the provision of project
management service to the large-scale integrated development
project in Haining City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC; details of
the service were made in the Company’s announcement
published on 1 April 2009. In Hong Kong, the division secured
new engagement to act as the project manager for the
redevelopment on Bedford Road and The Austine of the Group.
The division has also been engaged for the provision of project
management services for the redevelopment on 11-13
Grampian Road.

Outlook

Our client portfolio has allowed us to utilize the expertise and
experience of the service team. We are committed to enhancing
our service capability and will seize the opportunities to
participate in different types of projects, delivering quality
services to our clients.
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HEALTH PRODUCTS DIVISION

Care & Health Limited (“Care & Health”), Healthcorp Trading
Limited (“Healthcorp”) and Retailcorp Limited (“Retailcorp”)
are subsidiaries of the Group under the Health Products
Division, engaging in the wholesale of Chinese and Western
supplements and operation of retail chain store businesses.

This year, Health Products Division recorded a turnover of
HK$49.7 million as compared to HK$48.7 million last year.
Despite a slight increase in turnover, the division achieved a
significant increase in net profit as compared with last year.
The increase was attributable to successful cost control,
efficiency of shops performance and the expansion of own
branded products into key chains.

Retailcorp operates the chain store retail business under the
trade name of HealthPlus. As at 31 March 2011, there were
11 retail outlets (including a HealthPlus shop at St. Teresa’s
Hospital in Kowloon) and 1 service centre in operation.

During the year, three major HealthPlus shops — Tsuen Wan
MTR, Central MTR and Tai Po ceased operation due to
substantial increase in rental by the landlords. To accommodate
the needs of our customers in different districts, we opened
four new retail shops in this financial year in different locations
in Hong Kong. The shops are situate at City Walk Il in Tsuen
Wan, Landmark North in Sheung Shui, Metro City Phase 1 in
Tseung Kwan O and Tuen Mun Town Plaza I.

Retailcorp carries a full range of different health product lines
including Lingzhi Master, Metro Chinese Medicine Series,
Natural Extracts, Healthway, HealthMate and Bu Yick Fong
Chinese herbal products. It also serves a large variety of vendor
goods, including European imported goods and health devices.
A new product, ActivQuercetin for the alleviation of allergy was
launched in 2011.
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Healthcorp is engaged in the wholesale and retail of western
health supplements and Chinese herbal products Bu Yick Fong.
The “28 Chinese herbal soups for postnatal women” has been
listed in Mannings and further extended to CRCare and Sa Sa
stores in late 2010 and at the beginning of 2011. To expand
our service in Macau market, Healthcorp has co-operated with
our Macau distributor to list our own brand supplements in 46
major drug stores.

Care & Health will develop 2 new products under Metro Chinese
Medicine Series in 2011. After the implementation of
“Registration of Proprietary Chinese Medicine” by the
Department of Health on 3 December 2010, a new regulation
“Guidelines on labels of proprietary Chinese medicines” and
“Guidelines on package inserts of proprietary Chinese
medicines”, (regulation No. 143 and 144), will be enforced on
1 December 2011. While aiming to launch a range of new
products, we are also committed to complying with the
requirements of the Department of Health, developing safe
products for our customers.

HealthPlus and Care & Health were awarded the “Caring
Company” honour from the HK Council of Social Service for
the 6th and 7th consecutive year respectively. Retailcorp was
also enrolled in the “Quality Tourism Services Scheme” and
the “No Fakes Pledge” Scheme.

To further promote our products, Retailcorp will participate in
the 19th International Baby/Children Products Expo in August
2011 and Care & Health and Healthcorp will jointly participate
in the Food Expo 2011 & The 46th Hong Kong Brands and
Products Expo Fair. Retailcorp will arrange seminars for our
members with health related topic from time to time.
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Outlook

The Group attaches great importance to product safety, quality
assurance, customer relationship and social responsibility.

Going forward, we will pay emphasis on sourcing products that
are in good quality for the expansion of our customer base
locally and for Mainland tourists in Hong Kong. We will focus
on expanding product categories such as baby food products,
including imported baby milk powder, baby food & snacks,
etc. Further, we will focus on distributing the Chinese and
western supplements through different retail chains, in order
to expand the market share. It is always our mission to fulfill
our members’ and customers’ expectations.

As the Hong Kong economy continues to prosper leading to
the increase in purchasing power, and people are becoming
more conscious for health, it will create a strong demand for
high quality health products. We have reasons to believe that
our Health Products Division will grow steadily in the years to
come.
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SUMMARY OF RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2011, the turnover of Hanison
Construction Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) was HK$723.2 million,
being 18.23% lower than the turnover of HK$884.4 million for
the year ended 31 March 2010.

Despite the decrease in turnover, the Group delivered a positive
performance and recorded an increase in consolidated profit
from HK$109.2 million for the last financial year to HK$156.0
million for this financial year. This favourable result was mainly
attributable to the gain on change in fair value of investment
properties and recognition of profit from sales of the remaining
units of One LaSalle, a 50%-owned luxury low-rise residential
development in Kowloon Tong.

The basic earnings per share for the year was HK32.0 cents,
compared to HK22.4 cents last year.

As at 31 March 2011, the net asset value amounted to
HK$889.7 million (2010: HK$750.2 million), representing an
increase of 18.60% over last year. Net asset value per share at
31 March 2011 was HK$1.82 (2010: HK$1.54).

GROUP LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

The Group’s liquidity and financing requirements are regularly
reviewed.

For day-to-day liquidity management and to maintain flexibility
in funding, the Group has access to banking facilities with an
aggregate amount of HK$1,150.4 million (HK$619.8 million
was secured by first charges over certain leasehold land and
buildings, investment properties and properties under
development for sale of the Group), of which HK$610.6 million
loans have been drawn down and approximately HK$100.6
million has been utilized mainly for the issuance of letters of
credit and performance bonds as at 31 March 2011. The bank
loans under these banking facilities bear interests at prevailing
market interest rates.
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The Group follows a prudent policy in managing its cash
balance, and endeavours to maintain its sound cash-flow
generating capability, its ability to take on investments and
acquisition projects, in order to enhance shareholder wealth.
The total cash and bank balances of the Group amounted to
HK$215.9 million as at 31 March 2011 (2010: HK$186.9
million), and accounted for 15.7% of the current assets (2010:
18.0%).

During the year, the Group has a net cash outflow of HK$68.6
million in its operating activities (mainly due to the increase in
properties under development for sale and trade and other
receivables and decrease in trade and other payables), a net
cash inflow of HK$136.1 million in its investing activities (mainly
due to dividend received from jointly controlled entities), and
a net cash outflow of HK$38.1 million in its financing activities
(mainly for paying dividends to shareholders and repayment
of bank loans). As a result, the cash and bank balances
increased, while the bank borrowings decreased. Net bank
borrowings (total bank borrowings less total cash and bank
balances) amounted to HK$394.7 million at 31 March 2011
(2010: net bank borrowings of HK$443.4 million). Accordingly,
the gearing ratio of the Group, calculated on the basis of the
Group’s net borrowings to shareholders’ funds, was 44.4%
(2010: 59.1%). The net current assets have increased by
HK$379.0 million to HK$443.7 million as at the year-end date
and the current ratio (current assets divided by current
liabilities) was 1.47 times (2010: 1.07 times).

With its cash holdings, steady cash inflow from its operations,
together with available banking facilities, the Group’s liquidity
position will remain healthy in the coming year, with sufficient
financial resources to meet its obligations, operation and future
development requirements.
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TREASURY POLICY

The aim of the Group’s treasury policy is to minimize its
exposure to fluctuations in the exchange rate and not to engage
in any highly leveraged or speculative derivative products.
Treasury transactions unrelated to underlying financial
exposure are not undertaken. Foreign currency exposures of
the Group arise mainly from the purchase of goods. The Group
will determine if any hedging is required, on an individual basis,
depending upon the size and nature of the exposure, and the
prevailing market circumstances.

In order to enhance the deployment of internal funds with
maximum benefit, to achieve better risk control, and to
minimize cost of funds, the Group’s treasury activities are
centralized and scrutinized by the top management.

The surplus cash is generally placed in short-term bank
deposits with reputable financial institutions. Most of these
deposits are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Most of the
income, expenses, assets and liabilities of the Group are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The Group therefore will
not have any significant exposure to gains or losses arising
from the movement of foreign currency exchange rate against
the Hong Kong dollar.

SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS

At the year-end date, shareholders’ funds of the Group were
HK$889.7 million including reserves of HK$841.0 million, an
increase of HK$135.1 million from HK$705.9 million at 31
March 2010. On that basis, the consolidated net asset value
of the Group as at 31 March 2011 was HK$1.82 per share,
compared to the consolidated net asset value of HK$1.54 per
share at 31 March 2010. Increase in shareholders’ funds was
mainly attributable to profits retained after the payments of
dividends during the year.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group intends to keep an appropriate mix of equity and
debt to ensure an efficient capital structure over time. During
the year under review, the Group has borrowed Hong Kong
dollar loans amounting to HK$610.6 million from the banks
(at 31 March 2010: HK$630.3 million). The borrowings have
been used as general working capital and for financing the
properties for investment purposes over the years. The maturity
profile of the loans spread over a period of eight years with
HK$364.8 million repayable within the first year, HK$42.0
million repayable within the second year, HK$177.8 million
repayable within the third to fifth years and HK$26.0 million
repayable more than five years. Bank loans (that are repayable
more than one year after the end of the reporting period but
contain a repayment on demand clause) with carrying amount
of HK$204.8 million have been classified as current liabilities.
Interest is based on HIBOR plus a competitive margin.

COLLATERAL

As at 31 March 2011, certain leasehold land and buildings,
investment properties and properties under development for
sale of the Group, at the carrying value of approximately
HK$816.5 million (at 31 March 2010: HK$698.2 million), were
pledged to the banks to secure the Hong Kong dollar loans of
HK$365.3 million (at 31 March 2010: HK$370.3 million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 March 2010, the Group had given guarantees to banks
in respect of performance bonds entered into by the jointly
controlled entities amounting to HK$650,000 (2011: nil).

During the year ended 31 March 2004, legal actions in respect
of allegations of copyright infringement and defamation have
been taken against certain subsidiaries of the Company carrying
on health products business. No further steps have been taken
against the Group in respect of such actions after the court
hearing for directions to appoint experts and exchange witness
statements since 2004. At 31 March 2011, the directors are
of the opinion that in view of the uncertainty, it is not practicable
to assess the financial effect.
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COMMITMENTS

At the balance sheet date, the Group had the following
commitments:
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At the balance sheet date, the Group had an obligation to fund
HK$231,500,000 (2010: HK$231,500,000), representing
23.63% (2010: 23.63%) of the anticipated project costs for
the joint development of a site in So Kwun Wat, Hong Kong.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the reporting period, the Group entered into a
conditional sales and purchase agreement to acquire 49%
interest of an entity in the PRC for a basic consideration of
RMB80,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$93,720,000) (which may be subject to further adjustment)
and contingent consideration of RMB22,785,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$26,693,000) less any pertaining deferred
tax liabilities in respect of PRC land appreciation tax and
enterprise income tax. The entity owns the land and has the
right to develop and construct office premises on the land
located in Haining, the PRC. The vendor, Clear Shine
International Limited (“Clear Shine”) is an indirect 65% owned
subsidiary of Mingly Corporation (“Mingly”), an indirect
subsidiary of a substantial shareholder of the Company. The
acquisition is still conditional and has not been complete up
to the date of approval of the consolidated financial statements.

REER - AEEBEARERZR SRR
BEBRED < L #%231,500,0007T (=
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RS T R B ERNZBLNFBEE 2 +i
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International Limited ([Clear Shine]) &Mingly
Corporation (B H&E) ([& 7] - BARRRE
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group is implementing a manpower policy that aims to
maximise the output of existing staff resources in order to
achieve productivity gains. We believe that through improving
our staff’s job-related competencies, our overall operational
efficiency can be improved without the need for substantial
increase in headcount.

The number of full time monthly employees of the Group,
excluding its jointly controlled entities, was around 704 (of
which 187 employees were in Mainland China) as at 31 March
2011. In addition to salary payments, other benefits include
provident fund schemes, discretionary bonuses, on-the-job
training, education sponsorship subsidies, a medical insurance
scheme, a group life and personal accident insurance scheme.

Employees and directors are remunerated according to
individual and the Group’s performance, industry trends,
prevailing market conditions, the nature of the job and value
creation. The Group recruits and promotes individuals based
on their development potential, merits and competencies, and
ensures that their remuneration packages are at a reasonable
market level. All directors, full time employees and consultants
of the Group are entitled to participate in the share option
scheme of the Company. The principal terms of the share option
scheme are summarised in the Report of the Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Good corporate governance practices are crucial to enhancing
shareholder value. With this in mind, the Directors of the
Company are keen on maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. This is reflected in terms of a quality Board of
Directors (“Board”) and the emphasis on transparency and
accountability. Throughout the year ended 31 March 2011,
the Company has complied with all the Code Provisions of the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as
set out in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(“Listing Rules”), except for the deviations set out below in
respect of which remedial steps for compliance have been
taken or considered reasons are given below.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

TERERBRESE

BROXERNETT - HRESRRNEERR
EEZM - Qi - AABRNESHOYIERFRED
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Shareholders and Other Stakeholders
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Board of
Directors
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The Company acknowledges the important role of its Board in
providing effective leadership and direction to the Group’s
businesses, and ensuring transparency and accountability of
business operations.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the
Company are summarised as follows:—

1. THE BOARD
1.1 The Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control
of the Company and oversees the Group’s
businesses, and assumes responsibility for strategy
formulation, corporate governance and performance
monitoring. It develops and reviews the Group’s
strategies and policies, formulates business plans
and evaluates performance of the operating
divisions against agreed budgets and targets
through regular discussion on key and appropriate
issues in a timely manner. It also exercises a number
of reserved powers, including: approval of annual
and interim results and significant changes in
accounting policy or capital structure, internal
control system, material transactions (in particular
those which may involve conflict of interests), major
capital projects, setting Group remuneration policy,
dividend policy, appointment of Directors,
supervision of management and other significant
financial and operational matters.

The day-to-day management, administration and
operation of the Company are delegated to the
Managing Director and the senior management, who
fulfill their duties within their scope of authority and
responsibility. Divisional heads are responsible for
different aspects of the businesses. Major functions
delegated to management include preparation of
annual and interim results, execution of business
strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board,
implementation of an adequate internal control
system and compliance with the relevant statutory
requirements.
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All Directors are kept informed of major changes
that may affect the Group’s businesses on a timely
basis, and can avail themselves of the advice and
services of the Company Secretary so that Board
procedures and all applicable rules and regulations
are followed. Each Director can have recourse to
independent professional advice in performing their
duties at the Company’s expense, upon making
request to the Board.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance
cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect
of legal actions against its Directors and senior
management arising out of corporate activities.

Board Composition

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary
balance of skills and experience desirable for
effective leadership of the Company and
independence in decision making. The biographies
of the Directors (and their relationships, if any) are
set out on pages 72 to 75 of this annual report,
which demonstrates a diversity of skills, expertise,
experience and qualifications. There is no
relationship between the Chairman and the
Managing Director. During the year ended 31 March
2011, the Board at all times met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive directors.
One of the independent non-executive directors, Dr.
Lau Tze Yiu, Peter possesses the appropriate
professional qualifications and accounting or related
financial management expertise.

1.2
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The Board of Directors of the Company comprises
the following Directors:—

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart (Managing Director)
Mr. Tai Sai Ho (General Manager)

Dr. Lam Chat Yu

Mr. Shen Tai Hing

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson (Chairman)
Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson

Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Pak Joe

Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter

Dr. Sun Tai Lun

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed
in all corporate communications issued by the
Company pursuant to the Listing Rules from time
to time.

Coming from diverse business and professional
backgrounds, the Non-executive Directors and
Independent Non-executive Directors bring a wealth
of expertise and experiences to the Board, which
contributes to the success of the Group. Through
active participation in Board meetings, taking the
lead in managing issues involving potential conflict
of interests and serving on Board committees, all
of them make various contributions to the effective
direction of the Company.

All Independent Non-executive Directors are free
from any business or other relationships with the
Company. The Company has received written
annual confirmation of independence from each
Independent Non-executive Director in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
has assessed their independent and concluded that
all Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent within the meaning of the Listing Rules.
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1.3 Appointment and Re-election of

Directors

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that Non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election. The Non-executive Directors
and the Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company are not appointed for a specific term.
Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the
Company amended on 2 August 2005, at each
annual general meeting of the Company, one-third
of the Directors, including Executive, Non-executive
and Independent Non-executive Directors shall
retire from office by rotation, and every Director shall
be subject to retirement at least once every three
years. As such, the Company considers that
sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that
the corporate governance practices of the Company
are no less exacting than those in the CG Code.

The Company does not have a nomination
committee. The Board as a whole is responsible for
reviewing the Board composition, developing and
formulating the relevant procedures for nomination
and appointment of Directors and assessing the
independence of Independent Non-executive

Directors.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board will
identify suitable individuals by making reference to
criteria including the skills, experience, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time
commitments of the proposed candidates, the
Company’s needs and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations. New Directors are
sought mainly through referrals or internal

promotion.

The Company’s circular sent together with this
annual report contains detailed information of the
Directors standing for re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting of the Company.
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1.4 Board Proceedings

The Board held four meetings during the year ended
31 March 2011 and the principal businesses
transacted include:—

° Assessing business performance and planning
future business directions;

o Approving interim and final results and
reports;

° Approving business acquisition and property
transactions;

° Determining payment of dividend; and

° Approving the continuing connected
transactions.

The individual attendance record of each Director
at Board meetings during the year ended 31 March
2011 is set out below:—

1.4 ESEEMNRE

HE_Z—F=A=+—HILEF
B ZEFeAR TS FBE
BEHMT - —

o MAEBRER - WERFEIRRE
BERRIR
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BIEFE  EEFHFEESH
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Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
HERE, Percentage
Name of Directors SR¥AE Bok
Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson BB LE 4/4 100%
(Chairman)*
Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart FHEEE 4/4 100%
(Managing Director) (EBEF A TE)
Mr. Tai Sai Ho (General Manager) Bt A (FBACEE) 4/4 100%
Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson* BB L 4/4 100%
Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin* BRP LA 4/4 100%
Mr. Chan Pak Joe* BRAAfE ST £ 4/4 100%
Dr. Lam Chat Yu WEFEL 4/4 100%
Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter* RS 3/4 75%
Mr. Shen Tai Hing LRE S & 1/4 25%
Dr. Sun Tai Lun* N R 3/4 75%

* Non-executive Director
# Independent Non-executive Director

*IFMITES
PRNIFRITES
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Annual meeting schedules are normally made
available to the Directors in advance. Notices of
regular Board meetings are given to all the Directors
at least 14 days before the meetings. For other
Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice
is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate,
complete and reliable information are sent to all the
Directors at least 3 days before each Board meeting
or committee meeting to keep the Directors apprised
of the latest developments and financial position of
the Company and to enable them to make informed
decisions. The Board and each Director also have
separate and independent access to the senior
management whenever necessary. The Directors
receive a regular supply of information about the
business activities, financial highlights and
operations review so that they are well informed prior
to participation in Board meetings.

The Financial Controller attended all regular Board
meetings and when necessary, other Board and
committee meetings to advise on business
developments, financial and accounting matters,
statutory compliance, corporate governance and
other major aspects of the Company.

According to current Board practice, any transaction
with a material amount will be considered and dealt
with by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting. The Company’s Articles of Association also
contain provisions requiring Directors to abstain
from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at
meetings for approving transactions in which such
Directors or any of their associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) have a material interest.
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1.5 Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as the guideline for securities
transactions by Directors and employees who are
likely to be in possession of unpublished price-
sensitive information of the Company.

Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors
and the Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 March 2011. No incident of non-
compliance of the Model Code by the employees
was noted by the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

The positions of the Chairman and Managing Director
are held by Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson and Mr. Wong
Sue Toa, Stewart respectively. Code Provision A.2.1 of
the CG Code stipulates that the division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and Managing Director should be
set out in writing. Although the respective responsibilities
of the Chairman and Managing Director are not set out
in writing, power and authority are not concentrated in
one individual and all major decisions are made in
consultation with members of the Board and appropriate
Board committees, as well as senior management. The
Board may consider setting out in writing the roles and
duties of the Chairman and the Managing Director if there
is a need.

The Chairman provides leadership for the effective
functioning of the Board in the overall strategic planning
and development of the Group. With the support of the
Managing Director and senior management, the
Chairman is also responsible for ensuring that the
Directors receive adequate, complete and reliable
information in a timely manner and appropriate briefing
on issues arising at Board meetings.
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The Managing Director focuses on implementing
objectives, policies and strategies approved by the Board.
He is in charge of the Company’s day-to-day management
and operations. The Managing Director is also responsible
for formulating the organisational structure, control
systems and internal procedures and processes for the
Board’s approval.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company set up the Remuneration Committee in
December 2004 which replaced the Bonus Committee
established in December 2001. Membership of the
Remuneration Committee and the individual attendance
record at Remuneration Committee Meetings are as
follows:—

EFREREERTEEFRIEN A
- BB - f B EAR AR R
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Attendance/

Number of

Meetings
Name of FMNEEE HERE Percentage
Remuneration Committee Members RE®E SR¥AE Bok

Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson BB LE

(Remuneration Committee Chairman) (FWZEEE/E) 0/2 0%
Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart THELEE 2/2 100%
Mr. Chan Pak Joe BRAB 1 55 4 2/2 100%
Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter 2 FriE+ 2/2 100%

Dr. Sun Tai Lun

BAfmEt 2/2 100%
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The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee include formulating remuneration policy and
practices and determining the remuneration packages
of the Executive Directors and the senior management
and performance-based remuneration. The
Remuneration Committee is also responsible for ensuring
that no Director or any of his associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) will participate in deciding his own
remuneration. The committee shall consult the Chairman
and the Managing Director of the Company about its
recommendations on remuneration policy and
remuneration packages.

In determining the remuneration, the Remuneration
Committee reviewed background information such as key
economic indicators, market/sector trend, headcount and
staff costs.

The Remuneration Committee met twice during the year
ended 31 March 2011 and performed the following
works:—

o Reviewing and determining the change of
remuneration package for the Executive Directors
and senior management and the change of
remuneration package for other employees of the
Group for the year commencing 1 April 2011; and

U Approving the maximum bonus pool and the actual
bonus amount to be distributed to the Executive
Directors, senior management and other employees
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2010.
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4. AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company has been
established since December 2001. Membership of the

4. BREAT

ARANEZZEER _ZZ
AL %’f?é,éaﬁké REHFEEZ

Audit Committee and the individual attendance record ZESgRMEHENT - —
at Audit Committee meetings are as follows:—
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
ExRe, Percentage
Name of Audit Committee Members EVZEEREHA =k 1 G Bo
Dr. Sun Tai Lun (Audit Committee Chairman) HAX@E L (FEEZE2EF) 2/2 100%
Mr. Chan Pak Joe PRI A4 2/2 100%
Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter 2 FriEt 2/2 100%

None of the members of the Audit Committee is a partner
or former partner of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the
Company'’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the
following:—

o To review the financial statements and reports and
consider any significant or unusual items raised by
the qualified accountant or external auditors before
submission to the Board;

° To make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditors, to approve their remuneration and
terms of engagement and to review and monitor the
external auditors’ independence and objectivity;

° To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group’s financial reporting system, internal control
system and risk management system and
associated procedures; and

° To review the Group’s operating, financial and
accounting policies and practices.
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The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year
and the major works performed are as follows:—

° Reviewing and recommending for the Board’s
approval the financial results and reports for the
year ended 31 March 2010 and for the six months
ended 30 September 2010;

o Reviewing the continuing connected transactions
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2010;

o Recommending to the Board of the re-appointment
of external auditors for the year ended 31 March
2011; and

° Reviewing certain aspects of the internal control
system of the Group.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31
March 2011 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

OTHER BOARD COMMITTEES

In addition to delegating specific responsibilities to the
Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee, the
Board also established two board committees in April
2002 to handle the Company’s general business and
acquisition/disposal of property within a designated
threshold respectively, namely the General Business
Committee and the Property Acquisition/Disposal
Committee. Currently, the two committees comprise all
the four Executive Directors of the Company. During the
year ended 31 March 2011, the General Business
Committee approved the transfer of shares by way of
written resolutions.
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RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements. In preparing the financial
statements, Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
have been adopted, appropriate accounting policies have
been applied, and reasonable and prudent judgments
and estimates have been made.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditors on
the financial statements of the Company are set out in
the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 91 to 93 of
this annual report.

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2011 are set out
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below:—
HK$
ki
Audit services EZ RS 1,653,000
Non-audit services EEZ R
Reviewing the financial results BHEHE_ZE-ZTFNLA=1HL
and report for the six months NE AR EE KRS
ended 30 September 2010 280,000
Others Ht 68,000
Total 458 2,001,000

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate
internal control system to facilitate effective and efficient
operations, to safeguard assets, to prevent and detect
fraud and error, and to ensure the quality and timely
preparation of internal and external reporting and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
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The Company has maintained a tailored governance
structure with clear lines of responsibility and appropriate
delegation of responsibility and authority to the senior
management, who are accountable for the conduct and
performance of the respective business divisions under
their supervision.

The Chairman, Managing Director and General Manager
review monthly management reports on the financial
results, statistics and project progress of each business.
Monthly management meetings are held to review
business performance against budgets, forecasts and risk
management strategies. Any major variances are
highlighted for investigation and control purposes.

A centralized cash management system is maintained to
oversee the Group’s investment and borrowing activities.
There are established guidelines and procedures for the
approval and control of expenditures. The aim is to keep
the expenditure level in line with the annual budget and
within the cost budget of an approved project.
Expenditures are subject to overall budget control with
approval levels set by reference to the level of
responsibility of each manager and officer. Depending
on the nature and value, procurement of certain goods
and services are required to go through the tendering
process. No individual in the Group, irrespective of their
rank and position, are allowed to dominate the entire
expenditure process from commitment to payment.

During the year under review, the Board confirmed that
there were no significant weaknesses and areas for
improvement have been identified and appropriate
measures taken.
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum
for exchange of views between the shareholders and the
Board. The Chairman of the Board as well as Chairmen
of the Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee,
or in their absence, other members of the respective
committees, and where applicable, the independent
Board committee, are available to answer questions at
the shareholders’” meetings.

Code Provision E.1.2 provides that the Chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting. The
Chairman of the Board, Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson, was
unable to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 10 August 2010 as he had other
important business engagement. However, the Managing
Director, present at the annual general meeting, took the
chair of that meeting in accordance with Article 78 of the
Articles of Association of the Company.

Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’
meetings on each substantial issue, including the election
of individual Directors.

To ensure compliance with the CG Code, the notice of
the meeting, the annual report and the circular containing
information on the proposed resolutions will be sent to
shareholders at least twenty clear business days before
the meeting. Voting at the 2011 AGM will be by way of a
poll. An explanation of the detailed procedures of
conducting a poll will be provided to shareholders at the
commencement of the annual general meeting to ensure
that shareholders are familiar with such procedures. The
results of the poll will be published on the day of
shareholders’ meeting by posting on both the Stock
Exchange’s and the Company’s websites.
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The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Enquiries from investors
are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

To promote effective communication, the Company also
maintains a website at www.hanison.com, where
extensive information and updates on the Company’s
business developments and operations, financial
information and other information are posted.
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The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for
the year ended 31 March 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries, associate and jointly
controlled entities are set out in notes 46, 19 and 20 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2011
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 94.

An interim dividend of HK1.5 cents per share amounting to
HK$7,314,000 were paid to the shareholders during the year.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK2.7 cents per share for the year ended 31 March 2011
amounting to HK$13,164,000 to the shareholders whose
names appear on the registers of members on 19 September
2011. The proposed dividend will be paid on 4 October 2011
following approval at the annual general meeting.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements during the year in the investment
properties of the Group are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in the property, plant
and equipment of the Group are set out in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 March 2011 comprised the aggregate
of share premium, dividend reserve and retained profits of
HK$330,920,000 (2010: HK$303,735,000).

Under the Articles of Association of the Company, dividends
may be declared and paid out of the profits of the Company,
realised or unrealised, or from any reserves set aside from
profits which the Directors of the Company determine is no
longer needed. With the sanction of an ordinary resolution,
dividends may also be declared and paid out of share premium
account subject to a solvency test as set out in section 34 of
the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s existing share option scheme (the “Existing
Share Option Scheme”) was adopted on 3 January 2002 and
became effective on 9 January 2002. Particulars of the Scheme
as required under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange are set out below:—

Summary of the Scheme

(@) Purpose of the Scheme
To provide the participants who have been granted options
under the Scheme to subscribe for ordinary shares in
the Company (“Shares”) with the opportunity to acquire
proprietary interest in the Company and to encourage
them to work towards enhancing the value of the
Company and its Shares for the benefit of the Company
and its shareholders as a whole.
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(b)

Participants of the Scheme

All Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors), full-time employees and consultants of the
Company, its subsidiaries, and/or its associated
companies are eligible to participate in the Scheme.

Maximum number of Shares available for issuance
The maximum number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Scheme and any other schemes of the Company shall
not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of
approval of the Scheme. A total of 28,367,108 Shares is
available for issue under the Scheme which represents
10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of approval of the Scheme and approximately
5.8% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of this report.

The overall limit on the number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other
schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the
Shares in issue from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

(a) The total number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each
participant (including both exercised and
unexercised options) under the Scheme or any other
share option schemes adopted by the Company in
any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
Shares in issue unless otherwise approved by
shareholders of the Company.
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(e)

(b) Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company, or any of their respective
associates (as defined in rule 1.01 of the Listing
Rules), would result in the Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all options already granted
and to be granted to such person in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of the grant:

(i)  representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the
Shares in issue; and

(i) having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the Shares on date of grant in
excess of HK$5.0 million,

such grant of option shall be subject to prior
approval of the shareholders of the Company who
are not connected persons of the Company as
defined in the Listing Rules.

Period within which the Shares must be taken up
under an option

Within ten years from the date on which an option is
granted or such shorter period as the Board of Directors
or the relevant committee thereof may specify.

Minimum period, if any, for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised

At the time of granting an option, the Board of Directors
or the relevant committee thereof must specify the
minimum period(s) and/or achievement of performance
targets, if any, for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised.

Options may be exercised at any time after the minimum
periods of time held and/or achievement of performance
targets, if any, specified in the terms of grant at the time
of grant.
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(9)

Amount payable upon acceptance of the option and
the period within which the payment must be made
HK$1 shall be paid within 14 days from the offer date of
the option.

Basis of determining exercise price of the option

The exercise price of the option shall be no less than the
higher of:—

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
guotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on
the date of grant, which must be a business day;

(ii)  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five Stock Exchange business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(iii)  the nominal value of the Shares on the date of grant.

Remaining life of the Scheme

The Scheme has a life of 10 years and will expire on

2 January 2012 unless otherwise terminated in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme.

No option has been granted by the Company since the adoption
of the Existing Share Option Scheme.

The Board proposes to terminate the operation of the Existing
Share Option Scheme and adopt the new option scheme (the
“New Share Option”) Scheme before the Existing Share Option
Scheme is due to expire on 2 January 2012.
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The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is to replace
the Existing Share Option Scheme and to enable the Company
to grant Options to any executive or non-executive directors
and full time employees of, any consultants employed on a
contract basis by, any member of the Group (the
“Participants”), to acquire proprietary interests in the Company
and to encourage Participants to work towards enhancing the
value of the Company and its Shares for the benefit of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole. Approval will be
sought from shareholders at the 2011 annual general meeting
for the adoption of the New Share Option Scheme and the
termination of the Existing Share Option Scheme (to the effect
that no further options shall be offered) with effect from the
conclusion of the 2011 annual general meeting. A summary
of the principal terms of the New Share Option Scheme is set
out in the circular enclosed with this annual report to be
despatched to the shareholders together with a notice of the
2011 annual general meeting.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS,
WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

Save as disclosed above, the Company had no outstanding
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights as at
31 March 2011 and there has been no issue or exercise of
any convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights
during the year.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:—

Chairman and Non-executive Director:
Cha Mou Sing, Payson

Executive Directors:

Wong Sue Toa, Stewart (Managing Director)
Tai Sai Ho (General Manager)

Shen Tai Hing

Lam Chat Yu

Non-executive Directors:
Cha Mou Daid, Johnson
Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Sun Tai Lun

Chan Pak Joe

Lau Tze Yiu, Peter

In accordance with Article 116 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Chan Pak Joe , Dr. Lam Chat Yu, Dr. Lau Tze
Yiu, Peter and Dr. Sun Tai Lun shall retire from office by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election. All remaining directors
continue in office.

The term of office of each Independent Non-executive Director
is the period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Directors

Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson, aged 69, is the Chairman and a
Non-executive Director of the Company. He joined the Group
in 1989 and has over 45 years of experience in property
development. He is the Chairman of Mingly Corporation
(“Mingly”) and HKR International Limited (“HKRI”) (a
controlling shareholder of the Company), a Director of Asia
Television Limited, an Independent Non-executive Director of
New World Development Company Limited (“NWDCL"), Eagle
Asset Management (CP) Limited (the Manager of Champion
Real Estate Investment Trust (“CREIT”)) and Hongkong
International Theme Parks Limited (owner and operator of Hong
Kong Disneyland Resort) , and a Director of a number of public
and private companies in Hong Kong and overseas. HKRI,
NWDCL and CREIT are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Cha
holds an honorary doctorate degree of Social Science from
City University of Hong Kong. He is a member of the National
Committee of the Eleventh Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference and a Justice of the Peace. He is a
brother of Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson and an uncle of Mr.
Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin, both of whom are the Non-executive
Directors and the deemed substantial shareholders of the
Company under Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”). Mr. Cha is also a Director of CCM Trust
(Cayman) Limited (“CCM Trust”), a controlling shareholder of
the Company.

Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart, aged 65, is the Managing Director
of the Company and joined the Group in 1989. Before he joined
the Group, he was a Director for several listed companies and
a Director of HKRI (a company listed on the Stock Exchange
and a controlling shareholder of the Company) until his
resignation in December 2001. Mr. Wong is also a Director of
all the subsidiaries of the Group. He has extensive experience
in the construction and real estate fields. Mr. Wong holds a
bachelor degree in science from San Diego State University
and a master degree of science in civil engineering from
Carnegie-Mellon University in the United States of America.
He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Construction
Managers (MHKICM).
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Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson, aged 59, was appointed as a
Non-Executive Director in November 2001. He is the Managing
Director of Mingly and a Non-executive Director of HKRI (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange and a controlling
shareholder of the Company). Mr. Cha is also an Independent
Non-executive Director of Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited
and a Non-executive Director of China International Capital
Corporation Limited. Mr. Cha is actively participating in many
non-profit making organizations including serving on the
Council and Finance Committee of The Chinese University of
Hong Kong. He is a brother of Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson and
an uncle of Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin, both of whom are
the Non-executive Directors and the deemed substantial
shareholders of the Company under Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin, aged 37, is a Non-executive
Director and joined the Group in November 2001. He is an
Executive Director of HKRI (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange and a controlling shareholder of the Company). He
gained his experience in hotel and commercial real estate
development as a business development executive with
Mandarin Oriental Hotel Group from 1995 to 1999 and has
been an executive in various capacities with HKRI since 2002.
Mr. Cha is a non-official member of the Business Facilitation
Advisory Committee and the Harbourfront Commission of the
HKSAR Government. He holds a bachelor degree in
international politics and economics from Middlebury College
and a master degree in business administration from the
Stanford Graduate School of Business in the United States of
America. Mr. Cha is a nephew of Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson
and Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson, both of whom are the Non-
executive Directors and the deemed substantial shareholders
of the Company under Part XV of the SFO.
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Mr. Chan Pak Joe, aged 58, was appointed an Independent
Non-executive Director in November 2001. He has been an
Executive Director of The Luk Hoi Tong Company Limited for
over 27 years. Mr. Chan is the founder of the “Li Zhi Bursary”
of Tsinghua University in the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC"). He is also the Vice-Chairman of “Love Relay Grant-
in-Aid” of Fudan University in the PRC since September 2005.
His community services include having served as a Director of
YMCA and as a member of the Remuneration Committee and
Audit Committee of the Hong Kong Housing Society.

Dr. Lam Chat Yu, aged 59, is an Executive Director. He joined
the Group in November 2001 and has more than 20 years of
investment experience in the technology sector, including 15
years in Silicon Valley, California, the United States of America
and over 15 years in Asia. Dr. Lam is also a Director of Mingly
and an Alternate Director of Shanghai Commercial Bank
Limited. Dr. Lam earned his doctorate in management from
The Sloan School, Massachusetts Institute of Technology. Prior
to joining the Group, Dr. Lam was a Vice President at C.M.
Capital Corporation in the United States of America, where he
specialised in software venture companies and listed
technology companies in the United States of America.

Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter, aged 52, was appointed an Independent
Non-executive Director in September 2004. Dr. Lau is an
Associate Professor of the Department of Accountancy and
Law of the Hong Kong Baptist University and an Associate Dean
and BBA Program Director of the School of Business of the
Hong Kong Baptist University. He holds a bachelor degree in
commerce from Saint Mary’s University in Canada, a master
degree in business administration from Dalhousie University
in Canada and a doctorate degree of philosophy in accounting
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a member of
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario in Canada
(CA), a member of The Certified Management Accountants
Society of British Columbia and Yukon in Canada (CMA), a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (FCPA), and an associate member of The Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong (ATIHK). He was also a president (1992-
1993) of the City Lions Club of Hong Kong.
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Mr. Shen Tai Hing, aged 69, was appointed an Executive
Director in November 2001. He had been a Director of HKRI
(a company listed on the Stock Exchange and a controlling
shareholder of the Company) since 1994 until his resignation
in December 2001. Mr. Shen is also a Director of two
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Shen obtained his master degree
from the University of Pittsburgh in the United States of
America.

Dr. Sun Tai Lun, aged 60, was appointed an Independent Non-
executive Director in November 2001. He is the Chairman of
China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited and an
Independent Non-executive Director of Dah Sing Financial
Holdings Limited, whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange. Dr. Sun has over 35 years of experience in the
photographic products industry. He holds a bachelor degree
in pharmacy from the University of Oklahoma, the United States
of America, and a doctorate degree of philosophy in business
administration from Southern California University for
Professional Studies, the United States of America. He is the
Vice Patron of the Community Chest of Hong Kong since 1999
and a Counsel Member of the Court of the City University of
Hong Kong. Dr. Sun also serves as the Chairman of the Advisory
Committee on Travel Agents. Dr. Sun was awarded the Bronze
Bauhinia Star in 1999 and appointed as The Justice of the
Peace in 2002.

Mr. Tai Sai Ho, aged 60, is an Executive Director and the
General Manager of the Group. Mr. Tai joined the Group in
1989 and has over 36 years of experience in public and private
sectors of the building and civil engineering industries in Hong
Kong. He is also a Director of all the subsidiaries of the Group.
Mr. Tai holds a master degree in business administration from
Asia International Open University in Macau, a master degree
in construction management from University of New South
Wales in Australia and a bachelor degree in civil engineering
from National Cheng Kung University in Taiwan. Mr. Tai is a
fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors (FHKIoD) and
the Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers (FHKICM).
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Senior Management

Mr. Cheung Hok Chuen, aged 41, joined the Group in 1999.
He is a director of the Building Materials Division of the Group
and has over 16 years of experience in the building industry in
Hong Kong. He holds a bachelor degree of science in Surveying
from Hong Kong University.

Mr. Chow Ka Fung, Matthew, aged 42, joined the Group in
1998 and is a director of the Property Development Division,
Property Investment Division as well as Property Agency and
Management Division of the Group. He specialises in property
development, investment, marketing, management and project
management in Hong Kong and the PRC for more than 19
years. He holds a bachelor degree in land management from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Chow is a
Registered Professional Surveyor (General Practice) under the
Surveyor Registration Board (RPS). He is also a member of
the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (MRICS), a member
of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators (MCIArb) and a member
of Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors (MHKIS).

Mr. Chuk Kin Lun, aged 60, joined the Group in 1989. He is a
director of the Construction Division, Building Materials Division
and Interior and Renovation Division of the Group. He has over
31 years of experience in planning, estimating, tendering and
quantity surveying in the public and private sectors of the
building and civil engineering industries in Hong Kong. Mr.
Chuk holds a bachelor degree in civil engineering and is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers
(MHKICM).

Mr. Ho Chi Tong, aged 46, joined the Group in 1998. He is a
director of the Construction Division, Building Materials Division
and Interior and Renovation Division of the Group. He has 24
years of experience in quantity surveying consultancy and
construction contracting. He holds a professional diploma in
quantity surveying from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
He is a Registered Professional Surveyor (QS) under Surveyor
Registration Board (RPS) and a member of The Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors (MRICS) and Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors (MHKIS).
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Mr. Lee Cheuk Hung, aged 45, joined the Group in 2007. He
is a director and the General Manager of the Building Materials
Division of the Group and has over 25 years of experience in
the building industry in Hong Kong. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Lee held the position of the Director of Million Hope
Industries Limited. Mr. Lee holds a Higher Diploma in
Mechanical Engineering.

Mr. Lo Kai Cheong, Casey, aged 60, joined the Group in 1996
and is the Company Secretary and the Financial Controller of
the Group. He is also a director of the Building Materials
Division, Interior and Renovation Division and Property Agency
and Management Division of the Group. He has over 27 years
of finance and accounting experience in various industries.
He holds a bachelor of business degree in accounting and a
master degree in business administration from Edith Cowan
University in Australia. Mr. Lo is a member of CPA Australia
(CPA (Aust.)) and a fellowship member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (FCPA) and Association of
International Accountants (FAIA).

Mr. Lun Tim Ho, aged 52, joined the Group in 1990 and is a
director of the Construction Division and Interior and
Renovation Division of the Group. Mr. Lun has 28 years of
experience in the construction field. He holds an associateship
and a higher diploma in the building technology and
management from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He
is a member of The Chartered Institute of Building (MCIOB),
Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers (MHKICM),
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (MRICS), The Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors (MHKIS), and The Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers — Building (MHKIE).

Mr. Yuen Cheuk Kong, aged 51, joined the Group in 1989. He
is a director of the Construction Division, Building Materials
Division and Interior and Renovation Division of the Group. He
has over 25 years of experience in the public and private sectors
of the building and civil engineering industries in Hong Kong.
He holds a diploma in management studies, a post-experience
certificate in building studies and a higher certificate in
structural engineering from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and a bachelor degree in Construction Management
and Economics. He is also a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Construction Managers (MHKICM).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT

EFZRG HRRHREFHERE

POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING RE
SHARES AND DEBENTURES
As at 31 March 2011, the interests of the directors and chief ~RZZE——F=A=+—H EZERBESTH
executive in the shares of the Company as recorded in the ~ ABBEEARARZERNDERFZMBEZANEE
register required to be kept by the Company under Section IRBIEXVEBE ISR EF R AR T ZF L MA -
352 of Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the  IRE F T AR EREITESFK H 2 IZETH
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code (MZ2EFRI) BAIE AR R ME R FT 2 #E%s 40
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the N
“Model Code”) were as follows:—
Long position in shares of the Company RELFIBRINZHE
Number of ordinary shares numbzc:tzml is:,/::;
HERBGHE ordinary share
Personal Corporate Other shares capital
Name Capacity interests interests interests LER HERT
] ) AR ARER Hi s ROBEH RHOBEIE
Cha Mou Sing, Beneficial owner, 668,830 563,877 107,836,435 109,069,142 22.37%
Payson interest of controlled note (a) note (b)
corporation and beneficiary
of discretionary trusts
LB ERBBA  XEHL Bif5E(a) Bt &E(b)
R A DZXMA
Cha Mou Daid, Beneficiary of — — 107,150,200 107,150,200 21.98%
Johnson discretionary trusts note (b)
HHE MiEEEZERA GEL)
Cha Yiu Chung, Beneficiary of — — 105,150,973 105,105,973 21.57%
Benjamin discretionary trusts note (b)
ER+H MiEEEIZHA FiiE(b)
Wong Sue Toa, Beneficial owner and 4,090,260 3,106,164 — 7,196,424 1.48%
Stewart interest of controlled note (c)
corporation
TitE EalBs ARRE BiEE(c)
NRIZER
Tai Sai Ho Beneficial owner 414,562 — — 414 562 0.09%
it x ERBEBA
Shen Tai Hing Beneficial owner 9,022 — — 9,022 0.0019%
N EREBA
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Notes:

(a) Theshares are held by Accomplished Investments Ltd., in which
the relevant director is deemed to be interested by virtue of
Part XV of the SFO.

(b) These shares are held under certain but not identical
discretionary trusts, of which Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson, Mr.
Cha Mou Daid, Johnson and Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin are
among the members of the class of discretionary beneficiaries.

(c)  Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart’s corporate interests in the Company
arise from the fact that he owns 50% of the share capital of
Executive Plaza Limited, which holds 3,106,164 shares of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2011, none of the
directors and chief executive of the Company or their associates
held any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or pursuant to the
Model Code, or which were recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of Part XV of
the SFO.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits
(including debentures) of the Company or any other body
corporate and none of the directors, or their spouses or children
under the age of 18, had any rights to subscribe for securities
of the Company, or had exercised any such rights during the
year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING

BUSINESS

During the year, the interests of the directors of the Company
in businesses which compete or were likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the principal businesses of the Group
(the “Competing Business”) as required to be disclosed

pursuant to the Listing Rules were as follows:—

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2010/2011

EERBREREPRzHER

RAFR  ARABEFREIEARBERE
BEESREEAFF AT AR TN ([HFE
WEB]) - MRBEEHARBNETRE 2 ERE
Az ST - —

Name of
Name of director company Nature of interest Competing business
EEnR IR EEME R EK
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(MDD (FrzE2)
Cha Mou Sing, HKRI Director of HKRI and (a) Property development
Payson a member of the class of and investment
discretionary beneficiaries (b) Property management,
of certain but not identical leasing and marketing
discretionary trusts of which services
the trustees are deemed
substantial shareholders
of HKRI under Part XV
of the SFO
g BB 5 B R BEFRES  RaTIARAMNE () VEEERERE

NWDCL

R

CREIT

BEEXIER

ERZBBEXEAERZKE
AR & & 75 R B G ARG XVED -

AFERZETARRRS
B3 BN £ EAR

Independent Non-executive

Director of NWDCL

it R BIFRITES

Independent Non-executive

Director of Eagle Asset
Management (CP) Limited,
the manager of CREIT

BEEEERE (BE)BERAF

(BEEXRERZ&R)
ZEILIFRITES

(b) MEEE HEK
™5 R R

(a) Property development
and investment

(b) Property management,
leasing and marketing
services

(@) MEERLRE

(b) MEERE HER
%5 1 B AR 7%

(a) Property investment

(b) Property management,
leasing and marketing
services

(a) MEKRE

(b) MEERE MHER
T 35 1 & AR 7%
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Name of

Name of director company Nature of interest Competing business

EEpnA ARERE EEME R MR

(Note 1) (Note 2)

(Pt3ED) (M13E2)

Cha Mou Daid, HKRI Director of HKRI and a member (a) Property development

Johnson of the class of discretionary and investment

beneficiaries of certain (b) Property management,
but not identical discretionary leasing and marketing
trusts of which the trustees services
are deemed substantial
shareholders of HKRI
under Part XV of the SFO

EHE B 3 B R BEFRES  RETIARAMNE () DEEERERE
SREZBERmAMRZKE - (b)) MEER HER
AR YR 38 25 R A B 1R DI EEXVED T 3% 1 & AR 7%

Cha Yiu Chung,
Benjamin

EREH

Lam Chat Yu
(Note 3)

T (M EE3)

HKRI

50 22

Regal Succeed
Limited

Regal Succeed
Limited

HEERZETEARER
B 5¢ B PR 3 AR

Director of HKRI and a member
of the class of discretionary
beneficiaries of certain
but not identical discretionary
trusts of which the trustees
are deemed substantial
shareholders of HKRI
under Part XV of the SFO

BEFEKRESE e TIRNGE

SRt BIEREAERZKE
MR RE 75 L B G IR PIFEXVER -

A S ERZETARRRS
B S B R T BAR

Director

5%

(a)

(a)

(a)

Property development
and investment

Property management,
leasing and marketing
services

MEBRIE
MEEE HER
™5 R AR

Property management,
leasing and marketing
services in the PRC

HAzHEERE  HE
K 35 1 R BR 7%
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Notes:

(1) Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson, Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson and
Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin are non-executive directors of
the Company, who are not involved in the daily management of
the Group. Accordingly, the Company is capable of carrying its
business independently of, and at arms length from the above
mentioned competing business.

(2)  Such businesses may be made through subsidiaries, affiliated
companies or by way of other forms of investments.

(3)  Mr. Lam Chat Yu is an executive director of the Company and
is interested in competing business because of his capacity as
a director of Regal Succeed Limited, whose wholly-owned
subsidiary in the PRC is engaged in competing business as
stated above.

Saved as disclosed above, none of the directors is interested
in any business apart from the Group’s businesses, which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with businesses of the Group.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2011, in addition to those interests as disclosed
above in respect of the directors, the interests of the substantial
shareholders in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO were as
follows:—
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FERRZHER

R-TE——F=A=1+—B BRLEXFAHEH
REFEZ I TERRNAR B MAE
BB P A REE S LB ERDIEXVEEE
336{F AR AR RBRIFZXGH MFE 2B
e« —

Long position in shares of the Company RELFBRGZHE
% of issued
Number of share capital
Name Capacity ordinary shares 2RITRA
=8 g4 EERRH Batk
Great Wisdom Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 238,904,243 49.0%
(“Great Wisdom”) (note 1) EmBEAA
([Great Wisdom]) (Fft3E1)
HKRI (note 1) Beneficial owner and interest of 238,904,552 49.0%

B ZE BB (MYEEL) controlled corporation
ERMA ARSIV AR 2R

CCM Trust (note 2) Trustee and interests of 332,979,637 68.30%
CCM Trust (f7£2) controlled corporations
EREARZIESI QR 2w
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Notes:

(1)

Great Wisdom is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HKRI and
therefore HKRI is deemed to be interested in the 238,904,243
shares held by Great Wisdom in accordance with the SFO. Mr.
Cha Mou Sing, Payson and Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson and
Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin, all being directors of the
Company, are also directors of HKRI.

These share interests comprise 94,075,085 shares directly held
by CCM Trust, 238,904,552 shares indirectly held through
HKRI. As CCM Trust controls more than one-third of the share
capital of HKRI (held as to approximately 41.48% by CCM
Trust), it is deemed to be interested in the respective share
interests of this Company. CCM Trust is holding these shares
as the trustee of certain but not idencial discretionary trusts of
which members of the Cha Family (comprising, inter alia, Mr.
Cha Mou Sing, Payson, Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson and Mr.
Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin, all being the directors of the
Company) are among the discretionary objects. Mr. Cha Mou
Sing, Payson is also a director of CCM Trust.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group entered
into the following transactions which constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules:—

(1) Construction and Renovation Services

Framework Agreement

As HKRI is a substantial shareholder of the Company
and therefore a connected person of the Company under
the Listing Rules, the various construction transactions
(“Construction Transactions”) and renovation transactions
(“Renovation Transactions”) entered into or to be entered
into between HKRI and its subsidiaries on the one hand
and the members of the Group on the other hand
constitute continuing connected transactions
(“Continuing Connected Transactions with HKRI”) for the
purposes of the Listing Rules.

fif 5

(1) Great Wisdom WL B 2 2 & MWB AT
Eit - RIBEZES RAIE R - EEEERER
737 Great Wisdom FT$5 B 2 238,904,243 I
NHEBEZ  ARTESERELE &
MEEERERPEENTARERBENE
=,

(2) hERHEZRBIEHACCM TrustEEFE 2
94,075,085/ k% 17 + 238,904,5520% E#Z & B
RIS H 27D o BRCCM TrustiZ f| £
B 2 AE =5 2 — (CCM TrustiF B 49
41.48% ) © MR BRZ A RFEENR
DB HER o CCM TrustA— 8% TR
BEIENEEAFHDEERERD - Z5E
AZBBZBEAETBEERREKE (BHE
FEBELE  EMELERERPEE
BHRADNRESR)KE » BB %L 4L IECCM
TrustZ EE ©

EFREVRIBERER AP

REBE-_T——F=A=1t—HIFE F&
BAETT TIRS  MRELETRBIFI4A
B REXRIEEREBERERS  —

(1) BEEREERGIERBR

HREXERAARRARZEERR - I
R RELETRANSARLF ZBEA
Tt EWmARRIME - BEREER
HfBARMES— T EAKEKEES
A HEETHHEET I IREER
5 ([BEXH]) REERXS (TREX
ZDBREERER S ([HREREKR
SEHERS]) °
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On 20 January 2010, HKRI and the Company entered
into the Construction and Renovation Services Framework
Agreement (“Agreement”) to govern the outline terms
upon which HKRI and its subsidiaries and members of
the Group propose to engage in the various Construction
Transactions and Renovation Transactions during the
three years ending 31 March 2013. An announcement
was published on 20 January 2010 regarding the
Continuing Connected Transactions with HKRI in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

The Agreement, its terms, the transactions contemplated
thereunder and the annual caps (“Cap”) on the total value
of the Continuing Connected Transactions with HKRI were
approved by an ordinary resolution passed at an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
22 March 2010.

The Cap and the total income recognised by the Group
in respect of the Continuing Connected Transactions with
HKRI for the year ended 31 March 2011 are stated
below:—

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS &&=

BEEREARRENR-_Z—FF—A
“HERINBRERRERGER B

U%%%)’Mﬁai%l%&ﬁ%%
NREEAEEKRERNBE_T—=F
A=t BHLE=ZEFERETZREE
RPGREERXZ 2 NBGER - BRKE
MEXGzAE ([ZAE)EERED

RAR-_ZE-—FTF-A_+HT%-
ZiE o HGR HRTRETZRS

REBHERHRBZFE LR (1L
RDER-ZZF-—ZFF=A= + B RCR
FRIAE EAEBRERBG -

RBE-FT——F=—A=+—HLFE
A ERR R AR R R ERR 2 F AR
BRZBWEIAT - —

Income Recognised
by the Group

for the Year Ended
31 March 2011

BE-Z2——F§

Type of Transaction Cap ZA=E+—HLEE
XBER ER AR AREBERR 2 NS
HK$ HK$

ik B

Construction Transactions BERS 600,000,000 192,312,000
Renovation Transactions BERXSH 50,000,000 59,000
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(2 WEEERRKER

(2) Project Management Service Agreements

On 1 April 2009, a Cross-border Project Management
Service Agreement and a Non-PRC Project Management
Service Agreement (the “Agreements”) were entered into
between Hanison Project Management Limited
(“HPML"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
and the Haining Project Companies (note A) pursuant to
which HPML will provide project management services
in both Hong Kong and the PRC to the Haining Project
Companies (“Project Management Services”).

The Haining Project Companies are indirect wholly owned
subsidiaries of Vertex Investments Group Limited (“VIGL")
which is in turn indirectly wholly owned by CCM Trust
(Cayman) Limited. CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited (as the
trustee of certain but not idencial discretionary trusts of
which members of the Cha Family, comprising, inter alia,
Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson, Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson
and Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin, all being the directors
of the Company, are among the discretionary objects) is
a substantial shareholder of the Company. Accordingly,
the Haining Project Companies are connected persons
of the Company and the provision of Project Management
Services constitutes continuing connected transactions
for the purpose of the Listing Rules.

The transactions for the provision of Project Management
Services are only subject to announcement and reporting
requirements and no independent shareholders’ approval
of the Company is required under the Listing Rules. The
Agreements, its terms, the transactions contemplated
thereunder and the annual cap (“Cap”) on the total value
of the continuing connected transactions (“Continuing
Connected Transactions with Haining Project
Companies”) were approved by the board of directors
and an announcement in relation thereto was made on 1
April 2009.

R-ZEZNFUNA—H  BEBEAER
BERAR ([EEERER]) (—HARE
ZEEMBAR) EE8ERE AR (M
NBIT—NBEREREHARR—ME
SNEEGHAR ([ZEER]) - RIEZ
FAR EBEHEEEESENEEERAR
BERTEMASEERARRERHERE
2R (TRE EERBE]) -

BEEEARAVIGLZBEE2ENBA
& MVIGLEACCM Trust (Cayman)
Limited# 2 &% A o CCM Trust
(Cayman) Limited (A& T TREBIEEE
ZEREA ZEEAZBBEIEAES
BEERRKKE EFREERE L
£ BRMERERBERIPELE AR
NRAEDR) BARBIEEZRE - EHt - 5t
EWHABME - BEIEE RRIAART
ZEEANT RIEHIER EERRBEAALR
RAEIZFEBRER S -

RERBEERF X HERET LT
RAIMAE RBREE - L TAER
NEABIBRR A - ZFEAR - HA
R BETMET 2R RIFERE
Z(REEHBRRZHBERERS])
REZFELIR(TERDOEEESRE
B BN SR ST AFMA—
BT -

X3 M A

~
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The Cap and the total income recognised by the Group
in respect of the Continuing Connected Transactions with

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS &&=

WRE-F——#ZA=+—ALLEE
A EREASEEGEAR AT

Haining Project Companies for the year ended 31 March BRERHBWENT - —

2011 are stated below:—

Income Recognised
by the Group

for the Year Ended
31 March 2011

BE-ZE——F
Type of Transactions Cap ZSA=t+T—HLEE
X5 &5 LBR ARKREBE R 2 W=
HK$ HK$
ke ok
Project management EHEEERBRS
services transactions
e Project management e RART-ZZEZENF 4,678,000 3,368,000
services income on MA—BENRE
project management FrEZ BB =EIRE
services transactions NAIMIAE BERB
with Haining Project R 15 2EE
Companies as defined BB RGBS

in the Company’s
announcement dated
1 April 2009

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the directors
engaged the auditor of the Company to perform certain
work on continuing connected transactions of the Group
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has provided
a letter to the directors of the Company and confirmed
that, for the year ended 31 March 2011, the above
continuing connected transactions:—

(a) had received the approval of the directors of the
Company;

BIE FTREI14A381F - EEREARD
ANZESARASEENFERER FHE
TETRRESSHTMASEMNE
30005 R 78 RIS B B2 et 42 R [ 52 BF
AR ET R EB AN R ERE F12
BEBHPE7405% (BN BB L THEA
Fit 35 B B8 22 5 B A BHRD (R ] 19 T
1B o ZEAEMARRESH L HHFL
BREMFEVERINEE_T——
FZA=+—AHLFE: —

(a) WRIARREFHAE
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(b)

(c)

(d)

had been, in all material aspects, in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Group for transactions
involving the provision of services by the Group;

had been entered into in accordance with the terms
of the relevant agreements governing such
transactions;

had not exceeded the relevant cap amounts for the
financial year ended 31 March 2011.

The independent non-executive directors reviewed the
continuing connected transactions described in (1) and
(2) above (collectively the “Continuing Connected
Transactions”) and confirmed that the transactions had
been entered into:—

(i)

(iii)

Save

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to (or
from) independent third parties; and

in accordance with the agreements governing such
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

as disclosed above, no contracts of significance to

which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

Note:

A.

Haining Project Companies are indirect wholly owned
subsidiaries of CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited, which is a
substantial shareholder of the Company and they refer
to:

BEEREMEABR AT (Translation: Haining Fusheng
Real Estate Development Limited); /B2 = LEHE B R
A |l (Translation: Haining Jiafeng Real Estate
Development Limited); HEZ I X E M EBR Q7
(Translation: Haining Haicheng Real Estate Development
Limited); and /8% 888 [EB R A7 (Translation:
Haining Haixing Hotel Development Limited).

(b)

(c)

(d)

F RARBERERSE 2 X H5NE
ERTENEARETEERR

RIBEEEZER S < BB HE %

TEBEEE T ——F=A=1
—BIUEMBFEE 2 HE LR -

B FMTEFCEN LD RQ) 2
BREXS N (RBIHERERS]) %
BENREE  YEHERZERS  —

(i)

(iii)

RASEBEXFBIENET

WEBN 6 =F 2 — A EER
HAKEFETER R (H) B
F=ZTRBEZGTET R

RIBA B2 N IRFUETT - AR
NEIBEEERMEEAFASE -

B EXPTRERE SN - AR B SRE AT
BRARMEILARNRESTNERER
IERAEEEAERMNANFETEZ
S AR A A faT B P A9 98 A R 2 A 1]

1%
B & -

A.

o

/G215 B A A ACCM Trust (Cayman)
Limitedf&# 2 &M B A7) + CCM Trust
(Cayman) Limited BA R A2 EE K
R BTIFE QAR ¢

BERREHECRAR TRE
BENEERAR  FENERL
EARARRSESRAEARA
E—J o
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for about 55% of the turnover of the Group and the
largest customer is a subsidiary of HKRI, accounted for about
27% of the turnover of the Group. Save as disclosed above,
none of the directors, their respective associates, or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the directors own more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has any interest in
any of the five largest customers of the Group for the financial
year ended 31 March 2011.

The five largest suppliers of the Group in aggregate accounted
for less than 12% of the total purchases of the Group for the
year.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group strictly complies with the requirements of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in making
mandatory contributions for its staff. Details of charges relating
to the retirement benefit schemes are set out in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its directors, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float of not less
than 25% of the Company'’s issued shares as required under
the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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FERERRHER

RAFE » REBZAARBEPHAREERE
#155% + MERAR P SEEBR ZHMBAR
MAREEETEL27% ° B EXPTEEIN -
REBE-T——F=-_A=1THULMBFE
BEEE HRAZBEBEAL IHEFHMH
BEARRBRASBIA L Z RN A EE
ZEXREFFTHA TM#ER -

AEEBRAHERGAFERNEERERR
12%LAT ©

iR tiE ¥ EHE
AEREER B TRER IR MEEBFLS

IR o BRRKEF T EE TG BHALR
B EIRRMIFE42 -

LRFERE

RIBAHEHAR R Z RRAER MR A AR ES
Bl RBEMRUERTE - 2BATHBELD
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AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the annual general meeting of
the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Wong Sue Toa, Stewart
Managing Director
21 June 2011

% By Bl
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Deloitte.
==

TO THE MEMBERS OF
HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Hanison Construction Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 94 to 202, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2011, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

¥ 3 A% B R S

B Hanison Construction Holdings Limited
(FABRIZZERERLAA) ZHEKRR
(RASEEFMA L ERAF])

R HAD B ST #E & Hanison Construction
Holdings Limited (B 581322 ARAR) ([&
AR REWBAR (GEBIEEE]) HHREM
F2QEZIRAUMB®ME  BRERZE—F
ZRA=+—HZEFEEMBKREK BEZBLE
FEZEAWER  RA2EKREE KER
REPHRREEEERDE - UREESFK
RHEREMFTRER -

EERGSMEBRAREZRE

BERRZEFTARBREBET BGOSR M
ZEBWHIME R MRRE B QARG 2 5
BAERESAMBRE  FREEHEERA
Tk UREBEEERRREGRE VR
KRB E 2 BRAREHES - AERAMBHREK
PEERRRFFRERMEB 2 ERHERR
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Group’s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

BBz RE

AREMZ EERBBEES 2 EREZERA
MBRRELHER @ LEM D IR IEH R
& MR BEEMAE - AT RA
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AHEAETTER - REERREALEENE T
BREME - WAREIRMITER - KMSEETE
RAMBHRREL M FBEAEXRHEREML -

B NAITIRANERB BR A M IE®RRA
HEBMBREEHZEZER - MEEZEN
BURTMAZERED 2 #IE - B IR G B IREF e
RMETR AV BRRFEERERRA 2R
b o ERMEZERRE  ZHBMHEEE &
BRAEA M BHRERAELEERAF 2R
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT Y8~/ #Z Eibh iR &

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31
March 2011 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

21 June 2011

BR

AIZHBER R - AN BHRREREBEE B
BEENEBRQATHRR SEENR T
—FEZA=t—HZMBHIRE BEXREEE
ZBIEFEZRMMRER  YERREER
AMRPIZ BRBEREZ RS -

@ o BERSRHET
BE DA

&5
—z——#xA=+—H

93



94

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2010/2011

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

= Al £
%vT\ = J‘l& fm %

For the year ended 31 March 2011
BHE_T—F=-A=+—HLtFE

NOTES
Bt 5

Turnover =E X 7
Cost of sales $HE AR
Gross profit E7
Other income H A 9
Marketing and distribution costs MZHEERDHER
Administrative expenses THRAX
Gain on change in fair value WEMEZ AT EEE

of investment properties 2 Wam
(Loss) gain on change in fair value #H{EEEZ2REZ

of investments held for trading RNEEED (BB W
(Loss) gain on change in fair value T4 8% ITAE 7 A F(EES

of derivative financial instruments 2 (E518) Uz
Share of profit of an associate PGB E A E)a A
Share of profit Db F R ) B 885 7

of jointly controlled entities
Finance costs % E A 10
Profit before taxation B 50 A1 A 11
Taxation charge RIS W 13
Profit for the year NF 5
Earnings per share-basic (HK cents) SR & F| — Z A (L) 15

2010
—T-2F

HK$'000
BT

884,370
(800,140)

84,230
4,957
(8,420)
(88,558)
73,629
1,046

3,154
921

57,768
(5,313)

123,414
(14,213)

109,201

(Restated)
(#eE51)

22.4
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REEHEWERK

For the year ended 31 March 2011

BE-Z2——F=-A=+—RHILFE

2010
—T-ZF
HK$'000
BEET T
Profit for the year RE G F 109,201
Other comprehensive income Hih 2ERA R H
and expenses
Exchange differences arising MEBINEBREEZ
on translation of ME =28
foreign operations 79
Total comprehensive income AEEEEBALTE
for the year 109,280
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AT BN K

At 31 March 2011

RZZE——F=A=+—H

31.3.2011 31.3.2010 1.4.2009
g% -T-THF -TTAG
=H=+—H —A=+—H WmA—H
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
iz BETT BETFIT BET T
(Restated) (Restated)
(s E51) (g E51)
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties REM%E 16 358,310 577,080 535,320
Property, plant and equipment mE - BE &Eﬂ% 17 95,028 98,264 91,484
Prepaid lease payments BNHEER 18 6,711 6,620 6,800
Interest in an associate kN TZE 19 18,932 16,038 15,717
Interests in jointly HEESER
controlled entities R 20 65,132 70,165 3,397
Goodwill EES 21 — — —
544,113 768,167 652,718
Current assets MEEE
Properties under development  EH 2 FEWE
for sale 22 775,503 404,519 333,252
Inventories FE 23 33,530 38,293 34,139
Amounts receivable fEd & 4 TSR
on contract work 24 171,631 157,353 197,778
Progress payments receivable  JEUHE E I 25 17,692 32,149 48,066
Retention money receivable FEUIR E & 26 105,174 107,036 148,118
Debtors, deposits EWGRIE - e
and prepayments SSELNE S 27 57,248 51,127 51,614
Prepaid lease payments BAAERE 18 205 201 200
Amount due from P i £ [R] 422
a jointly controlled entity EEENIA 28 839 58,415 69,638
Investments held for trading hf’ﬁé!,az&iéf 29 334 338 4,423
Taxation recoverable AR EIFIE 307 1,494 495
Derivative financial instruments T4 B & T E 30 — 1,291 221
Bank balances and cash RITEBREIRE 31 215,913 186,944 195,643
1,378,376 1,039,160 1,083,587
Current liabilities TBEE
Amounts payable e A& HTREFIE
on contract work 24 127,051 129,400 119,253
Trade and other payables FERT TR K
H A & - 5R0R 32 235,728 257,434 299,351
Obligation under a finance —FRERMNZ
lease due within one year BEMREAE — — 44
Taxation payable FER 1A 2,326 2,323 1,690
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T4 8T E 30 — — 205
Bank loans — amounts RITER —
due within one year —FNEMNFE 33 569,589 585,300 588,213
934,694 974,457 1,008,756
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 424 B &k &

NOTES
Bt

Net current assets TBEEFE
Total assets less current liabilities %2 & ERRE A &
Non-current liabilities FERBAE

Bank loans — amounts RITER —

due after one year —FREMNFKIE 33

Deferred taxation RIEFIR 34
Capital and reserves BARRGEE

Share capital e 35

Reserves B

The consolidated financial statements on pages 94 to 202 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
21 June 2011 and are signed on its behalf by:

DIRECTOR
]

At 31 March 2011
RoE——F=A=+—8

31.3.2010 1.4.2009
—T-FF —TTAF
=A=+—H MA—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
(Restated) (Restated)
(& E5) (& EF)
64,703 74,831
832,870 727,549
45,000 49,000
37,678 26,556
82,678 75,556
750,192 651,993
44,324 44,324
705,868 607,669
750,192 651,993

FUREF22EMIIZHEMBRE - K&
ZER T ——FRNAS T —BREREER
o W TIEERREE -

DIRECTOR
EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

,—L—,/_\ == N\ / I%‘E-’%
MAEREHER
For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-Z——F=-F=+—HIHFE

Property
Share Contributed Special revaluation  Translation Goodwill Dividend Accumulated
capital surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profit Total
BA  BMARH%  BRREE WEEGFREE 2 RERE BHERE RERE  RIHER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETrT  B¥%Trx  B%Tx  #E%Tr  A¥Tr  B%Tx  B%Tx  B%Tn A Tr
(note 36) (note 36)
(zE36)  (Fi5E36)
At 1 April 2009 R-ZEENF
mA—H 44,324 18,077 21,941 982 (527) (78) 4,432 562,842 651,993
Profit for the year AEEEH — — - — — — — 109,201 109,201
Exchange differences HBEGIEBELE
arising on translation ~ ZERZE%
of foreign operations — — — — 79 — — — 79
Total comprehensive ~ AFE2ERALTE
income for the year — — — — 79 — — 109,201 109,280
Final dividend paid ~ HBZ=TTNF
in respect of the ZA=t—H
year ended EFEERZ
31 March 2009 FERE — — — — — — (4,432) — (4,432)
Interim dividend paid  HE-Z—TF
in respect of the =A=+—~H
year ended FFEEEMZ
31 March 2010 FHEIR S — — — — — — — (6,649) (6,649)
Proposed final HE-Z-Z%
dividend in respect =A=1+—H
of the year ended FEERBRE
31 March 2010 ZRERE — — — — — — 11,081 (11,081) —
At 31 March 2010 R-Z-ZF
ZA=1t—H 44,324 18,077 21,941 982 (448) (78) 11,081 654,313 750,192
Profit for the year AEEHF — — — — — — — 156,042 156,042
Exchange differences BB G EBEE
arising on translation ~ Z[E X =%
of foreign operations — — — — 1,868 — — — 1,868
Total comprehensive ~ AEEZ2HRALE
income for the year — — — — 1,868 — — 156,042 157,910
Bonus shares issued 2 EITAMR 4432 (4,432) — — — — — — —
Final dividend paid ~ HZ=%—%
in respect of the ZA=1t—H
year ended EFEERZ
31 March 2010 RERE — — — — — — (11,081) — (11,081)
Interim dividend paid  HE-ZF——F
in respect of the =A=+—~H
year ended HFEEEMZ
31 March 2011 FHEIR S — — — — — — — (7,314) (7,314)
Proposed final HEZZ—%
dividend in respect ZB=+—H
of the year ended FEERBRE
31 March 2011 ZARERE — — — — — — 13,164 (13,164) —
At 31 March 2011 R_B——F
ZA=1t—H 48,756 13,645 21,941 982 1,420 (78) 13,164 789,877 889,707
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
/m iﬁimﬁ%%

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE"Z——F=A=+—HILtFE

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T EEETF T
Cash flows from RELEBEEH RSN
operating activities
Profit before taxation B A A1 28 ) 180,158 123,414
Adjustments for: éﬁ‘ﬁ :
Share of profit of an associate DG N a)E F (2,894) (921)
Share of profit of 3 i £ [ 2 )
jointly controlled entities =il (85,467) (57,768)
Dividend income % 2 A 3) (64)
Interest income LB HA (18) (20)
Interest expense FERX 5,129 5,313
Depreciation of property, WE - BE R
plant and equipment BBz E 4,300 3,483
Release of prepaid lease payments e FHERE 2 #E 205 201
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BE K
plant and equipment B Al & (446) (1,399)
Gain on change in fair value of WEWMEZ NFEE
investment properties 2 W (120,954) (73,629)
Loss (gain) on change PTHEMBIAZ N EZE
in fair value of derivative 2 B8 (Es)
financial instruments 662 (1,291)
Loss (gain) on change BEBECIREZ AT EES
in fair value of investments BB )
held for trading 4 (1,046)
Write off of retention receivable JE WUAR [ & 1 8 — 134
Impairment loss recognised JEUNSRIA 2 R E B 1B
on trade debtors 649 2,000
Operating cash flows before BEESEHH cEERER
movements in working capital (18,675) (1,593)
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERLD () 4,763 (4,154)
Increase in properties BRPZFEMEZIEM
under development for sale (30,984) (40,536)
(Increase) decrease in amounts FEW & #) T2 5RIE (38 h0) B
receivable on contract work (1,205) 53,453
Decrease in progress payments JE W TS IR R D
receivable 14,457 15,917
Decrease in retention money receivable & UK 4R & & 5l 4 1,862 40,948
Increase in trade and other receivables & Ug ZXIE & H b g Uy FRIE 2 N (6,770) (1,513)
(Decrease) increase in amounts JERT & #) T2 FRIE CRl2) 150
payable on contract work (2,349) 10,147
Decrease in trade and other payables — F& 1 ZUIE M E b & (< ZIE B > (21,706) (41,917)
Increase in derivative PTHEME T A Z3EM
financial instruments 629 16
Decrease in investments FIEEEZIREZRD
held for trading — 5,131
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HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2010/2011

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #4&H & RE &
For the year ended 31 March 2011
BE-2——F=A=t—RAILER
2011 2010
—E——F —TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Cash (used in) generated from (AR) REEEXEBK S (59,978) 35,899
operating activities
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ERBEBNIEH (3,516) (3,457)
Interest paid 2AH B (5,129) (8,471)
Net cash (used in) from (AR) REEEEH 2
operating activities R e FRE (68,623) 23,971
Cash flows from investing activities REEB2HEM
Interest received 2 U ,%\ 18 20
Dividend received B U hE B 3 64
Dividend received from an associate EH&ZE@%E@ AR — 600
Dividend received from jointly BN EESIERERE
controlled entities 90,500 1,000
Purchase of investment properties NEREYE (276) (1,661)
Purchase of property, NEWE - BB REE
plant and equipment (12,229) (17,325)
Repayment from HEWESIERB 2 ERK
a jointly controlled entity 57,576 11,223
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  BE K
plant and equipment R ABFTISRIE 489 1,481
Capital injection to jointly EABART HT HE
controlled entities — (10,000)
Net cash from (used in) RE (AR BREEB 2
investing activities & F 8 136,081 (14,598)
Cash flows from RKEBMEXB2RER
financing activities
Dividends paid ML PN (18,395) (11,081)
Repayment of bank loans EEPBEITER (25,000) (46,913)
Repayment of obligation EEREHEERE
under a finance lease = (44)
New bank loans raised HERITER 5,289 40,000
Net cash used in financing activities ~ FARBEEBK 2R 75 (38,106) (18,038)
Net increase (decrease) in cash Re RBEeFEEMCOID)
and cash equivalents FER 29,352 (8,665)
Cash and cash equivalents FUHeEReEE
at the beginning of the year 186,944 195,643
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EXRE &) v £ (383) (34)
Cash and cash equivalents ié\%fﬁ@&
at the end of the year, representing TEE KX
bank balances and cash fEﬁ E MR e 215,913 186,944
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in
the Cayman lIslands with limited liability under the
Companies Law (2001 Second Revision), Chapter 22 of
the Laws of Cayman Islands. Its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in the corporate information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are building
construction, interior and renovation works, supply and
installation of building materials, trading of health
products, property investment, property agency and
management and property development.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised standards and interpretations issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA™).

iR B RS ER I &
For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE"Z——F=A=+—HILtFE

—BER

ARTREHEHSEASZ -+ B2
Ax(CTT-FE_EITR)  AHE
BEEMRT A MEREERAT -
HBGREBBE RS HAERAT (8
ZF]) BT o AR 2 EMBERRE
T 0 8 M D R A A A T
BRI o

RAMBREABELF]  BEHEL
T2 WAL o

RO RN —REEERLQT - EH B A

RZEBXBGRETRE R REE
T HEERRKREMS  BEEHM

B MERE DERKEREERY
XERE-

RN R BRI ERMB R
FHEA((FEMEHREEN])

RAFE  AEECEATIBEEESR
B A& B 2 ¥R R AEIERT R M
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 & B f83RX M5t

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-Z——5=-"F=+—HIFEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 2
(Amendments)
HKFRS 3

(as revised in 2008)

HKAS 27

(as revised in 2008)

HKAS 32
(Amendments)

HKAS 39
(Amendments)

HKFRSs
(Amendments)

HKFRSs
(Amendments)

HK(FRIC) — INT 17

HK — INT 5

Group cash-settled share-
based payment transactions
Business combinations

Consolidated and separate
financial statements

Classification of rights issues

Eligible hedged items

Improvements to HKFRSs
issued in 2009

Amendments to HKFRS 5 as
part of Improvements to
HKFRSs issued in 2008

Distributions of non-cash assets
to owners

Presentation of financial
statements — Classification
by the borrower of a term
loan that contains a
repayment on demand
clause

RN RIEBRIZERMB R
FHEU((FEBMBEREERN])

(&
BAMBHREER

F 3% (BRI )
BEPHREER

F=RCETNE

C )
A LR
il o o

(ZZZNFRERT)

BB GER

F=T R UETAX)

BB G ER

F=TI%KEITX)

BAMBHREER
(BRI )

EHBEESAR
CES

Bt (BRMBRE
2EZEY)

— RBETLR
e —R2EBEFSOR

£ERLHHL
BELH 229
158 0

REREHIAR

“EENFFHRE
G £
2B

ER-ZZEENF
BREMBwE
R 2 B E M p
BB BWmE
ERIERR 2
EETAR

%S A7 IKIE
BeBE

PBImER 25 —
EE VNl
REBRERRR
ZEHERLZ
gE



BB A BT R AR A7) 2010/20114F )

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 Bf %R 2= it 3%

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Except as described below, the adoption of the new and
revised standards and interpretations in the current year
has had no material effect on the amounts reported in
these consolidated financial statements.

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 “Presentation of financial
statements — Classification by the borrower of a term
loan that contains a repayment on demand clause” (“HK
— INT 5" )

HK — INT 5 clarifies that term loans that include a clause
that gives the lender the unconditional right to call the
loans at any time (“repayment on demand clause”)
should be classified by the borrower as current liabilities.
The Group has applied HK — INT 5 for the first time in
the current year. HK — INT 5 requires retrospective
application.

In order to comply with the requirements set out in HK
— INT 5, the Group has changed its accounting policy
on classification of term loans with a repayment on
demand clause. In the past, the classification of such
term loans was determined based on the agreed
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements. Under HK — INT 5, term loans with a
repayment on demand clause are classified as current
liabilities.

As a result, a bank loan that contains a repayment on
demand clause with carrying amount of HK$31,000,000
and HK$31,500,000 has been reclassified from non-
current liabilities to current liabilities as at 31 March 2010
and 1 April 2009 respectively. As at 31 March 2011, bank
loans (that are repayable more than one year after the
end of the reporting period but contain a repayment on
demand clause) with carrying amount of
HK$204,800,000 have been classified as current
liabilities.

2.

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=R=1+—HILFE

BRI RIE BRI ERMER
FHA((FEMEBEREEN])
(&
BFSCHTSN - R R AT ET R A
BHTEBH RS R RBRY B
SHANBRRN LB 0 BRRER
EAYE -

TERBELRIMBHRRZES — 8
KA B i ESREE R 2 E B E K
2o ([FE —2BERR -

TE —REBEFRRRE - MEREFRH
AR T ERA BRI - AJBER R
SRKER (MRERERGK]) - BEAR
DERRBDEE - AEERAFEER
ERAE —RBERR &8 — 28
ERWAIH REMARENRS -

RETEE — RBEERRAEREE
AEBEREBRBESERERKERERRK
MERERDBOSTEE - BE - &%
FEHERN D BRBEE R HETEH
RHBTENTETERBEPETE - REES
—RBERR - AFRBREEEKN
THERDBE/SRBEE -

Ay R-E2—ZFF=A=+—HK=
TTAFNA—B  HBEREREEK
FRERTEE 5 B A7 #31,000,0007T & 7
#31,500,0007CHIRITERE A IERE
BEEFIEERHEABR R ——
FZA=Z+T B HEEEABK
204,800,0007T Y #R1TE K (AR S H
KRB —FULEE  BRBFRERE
B DERRBAR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 & B f83RX M5t

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-Z——5=-"F=+—HIFEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Such term loans have been presented in the earliest time
band in the maturity analysis for financial liabilities (see
Note 6 for details).

The effects of these restatements described above on

the consolidated statement of financial position are as
follows:

As at 31 March 2010

2.

RN RIEBRIZERMB R
FHEU((FEBMBEREERN])

(%)

ZETEHERERPBRBERED A
REREHRZS (FRBAWTES) -

ERZEHEAERA B RN R BE
T

R-Z—2F=A=+—H

Reclassification
of a bank
loan with

repayment on

31.3.2010 demand clause 31.3.2010

ENDEMS
—E-=F RERMEE —E-=5F
ZA=+—-H %RIEZBITERXR =ZA=+-—8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT T
(Originally
stated) (Restated)
(R31)) (& &%)
Bank loans — amounts due |ITER —
within one year —F AR E IR 554,300 31,000 585,300
Bank loans — amounts due RITER —
after one year —F 1B HAFRIE 76,000 (31,000) 45,000

630,300 — 630,300
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 Bf %R 2= it 3%

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

As at 1 April 2009

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=R=1+—HILFE

2. BRMMRIREBITIZERMER
FHEUN((FEBMBEREERDN])

(&)
R-ZZhFMA—H

Reclassification

of a bank
loan with
repayment on
1.4.2009 demand clause 1.4.2009
EH BT
—EBNEF REREE —EBhEF
MA—H RRZBITER MA—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT
(Originally
stated) (Restated)
(R31)) (L&)
Bank loans — amounts due |ITER —
within one year —F AR E IR 556,713 31,500 588,213
Bank loans — amounts due RITER —
after one year —F 1B HAFRIE 80,500 (31,500) 49,000
637,213 — 637,213

The application of HK — INT 5 has had no impact on the
reported profit or loss or earning per share for the current

and prior years.

ERELE — RBEFRIREANFE R
FEERBEENERBALELE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4324 B & &< Mf 51

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-Z——5=-"F=+—HIFEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards and interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs Improvements to HKFRSs
(Amendments) issued in 2010?

HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfers of
(Amendments) financial assets®

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments?

HKAS 12 Deferred tax: Recovery of
(Amendments) underlying assets®

HKAS 24 Related party disclosures®

(as revised in 2009)
HK(IFRIC) — INT 14 Prepayments of a minimum
(Amendments) funding requirement®

HK(IFRIC) — INT 19 Extinguishing financial liabilities
with equity instruments?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2010 or 1 January 2011, as appropriate.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2010.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2011.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2012.

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2011.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (as issued in November
2009) introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (as revised in November 2010) adds
requirements for financial liabilities and for derecognition.

RN RIEBRIZERMB R
FHEU((FEBMBEREERN])

(&

AREEW KRR EATIIERMBERK
AT RERT R 2 8 -

BB HHREER —E-TEREME
(CHEN) BEER 2!
BRHHREER BE - BIHEE

FL5 (BTX)

BEMBRSENENY HBIA
BRGNS+ R ETRE: BREEZ
(BT %) Ebe
BREGHENE_TI% BEALRE
(ZETNFEEA)
&8 ERMBRS BRREEEBX
REZEE)—

RES TR

(B3T%)
8 ERMBRE PABRAR T A 8551 75
REREE)— afE?

REFE TR

! REIE—ZFLA-BR T ——F—
H—B (@) skz &2 FE 8
R e

2 R_Z-ZEFL AR BB ZF
JEEARRAERK -

3 R_B——Ft ARz BRGZF
JEEARRAERK -

4 REE-—=F—A—BRZEHRZF
JEEARRAERK -

° REE-—"F—-A—BHRZEMRZF
JEEARRAERK -

e REE——F—A—BRZEMRZF
JEEARRAERK -

FEMBHREENFENRYHETA (R
TRNF+— ABEM) SIEMBEES B
KA EZFHRTE - BAMBHREERE
NEFB LA (R —FF+—AKE
FDIEMMEAEREUEERZHRE °
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Under HKFRS 9, all recognised financial assets that are
within the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement are subsequently
measured at either amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within a
business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the end
of subsequent accounting periods.

In relation to financial liabilities, the significant change
relates to financial liabilities that are designated as at fair
value through profit or loss. Specifically, under HKFRS
9, for financial liabilities that are designated as at fair
value through profit or loss, the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented in
other comprehensive income, unless the presentation of
the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are
not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Previously,
under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the
fair value of the financial liability designated as at fair
value through profit or loss was presented in profit or
loss.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

2.

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=R=1+—HILFE

RN R BRI ERMB R
FHEUN((FEBMBEREERDN])
(&
REFEMHERELNENR > BEE
AHERE =T NARMB TR - R NG
EHENZMBCHINBEEL R
B ANE A FERFE - LERAR
MENRERESBNZEKEARE
ZEBRE  REEEERXNAER
REBAENEZANEEREZEH
’E - —RANERSTHRIZEHEK A
FTE - A EMERRE KA E R
REREGAHPRREQAFEFE -

RPBREMS  T2EBHHEEER
BRBREAVTEMEZWHAGBE
o LERZ  REFEVHREERR
AR BIEERBBBBEEAFEANE
ZHBAEnS -  AMBREEERR
BEMERE RN FEZE 2 REIINE
2B AZS] - BRIFNE M2 EUA
ERZBEEERREHIFEGES
IR INBE 2 EETEAAC - RIVERI °
MHaBEEERRMERAERFEZLS
HER T g5 BERD - BE - RIE
FEGENE=TNR  HERES
BaRAVEFEZMBREZZ2HA
FEEZFHFEOREBRFES -

EEVBREEINENFER T —=F
—A—Baz &Rz FEMELER
WriRF &M -
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

The directors anticipate that HKFRS 9 that will be adopted
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
financial year ending 31 March 2014. Based on the
Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities as at 31
March 2011, the directors anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 9 is not likely to have significant impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

The amendments to HKAS 12 titled Deferred Tax:
Recovery of Underlying Assets mainly deal with the
measurement of deferred tax for investment properties
that are measured using the fair value model in
accordance with HKAS 40 Investment Property. Based
on the amendments, for the purposes of measuring
deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for
investment properties measured using the fair value
model, the carrying amounts of the investment properties
are presumed to be recovered through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted in certain circumstances. The
directors anticipate that the application of the
amendments to HKAS 12 may have a significant impact
on the deferred tax liability of HK$50,473,000 at 31
March 2011, recognised for investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model. The directors
of the Company are of the opinion that the impact cannot
be reasonably estimated yet.

Except as described above the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of the other new and
revised Standards and Interpretations will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4324 B & &< Mf 51
For the year ended 31 March 2011
BHE-_Z—F=ZA=+—HLFE

BRI REEBRIICEEMEE
FEA(ZFRBMHBHREEN])
(&
BEHEY AEEEHE-_Z—WUF=A
=+—BULEVBFEZGEPBRES
RABAMBRELENENS - ERA
EER-_T——F=ZA=+—HzZH®
BENKYHAR EFEHERESY
BREERENFETISHAKRE 246
IR REEEATE -

TR EET RELHIE - B
BEZOWZETAEREEREERE
SR ERE N RREMEMERRF
BEEAFEZRENE ZELEHREBE Z5
BN RIFZXIERIA - G EERAAF

MEEFHBEEENBREREYEZER
BEHERAHEEKRD  ERETERATE
BABRREE ERIBRIN c ERTEFERA
BEHEE T R ET AR e Y
W_E——FE=ZA=+—HBEFERAAFE
RAFECREVEMERZ ©BAB
#50,473,000T 2 EEFTHABBEKXN
B ANAESTRAEEBETEH R
YEAIEHENR -

B EXFrtiE SN RARERES - &
REMIR] MEETE kR BYHERA
MEREMBEXNEATE -
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for the
investment properties and certain financial instruments,
which are measured at fair values, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries) made up to
31 March each year. Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to
the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of
the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

3.

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=R=1+—HILFE

FEEREK

BRIREMERE THMH T AR FER
BN AMBIME TIRE T XAy
SRR - WELRABPIRE -

REPBHRRIVRBEEBGFMAER
2 BEMBHRELERIGS o Lo - 4R
EUBHMRAMBE AR EFEE
BMAER M ABRABESF LA
(TEMRAD) RBBRRHEOER 2 2

maRE

REFBHRRA  BEARARIAR
Al cER (ENBAR) BESF=
A=Z1+—B2ZBBHRE - EXREHRE
HEE—BERB M B RELHER - U
TEERBHER - A EBEHIRE -

FRAEBKRBALEZWBRB ZFED
AABBER BEBEHEERZ
Bt (FEERBRT) st ARE KSR °

FERE WBARzMBEHRREFED
HE - AEEFBRRERKEEMKE
PR — 2 -

SEARREZABERS ~ &R WA
R HEBHERGA B -

109



110

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #=&

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2010/2011

For the year ended 31 March 2011

H=E

—E——F=ZA=t+—-HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary is carried
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses and is
presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the cash-generating units, or groups
of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. A cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently whenever there
is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit, and then to
the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. An impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss and is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.
Revenue from construction contracts, interior and
renovation contracts and building materials installation
contracts is recognised using the percentage of
completion method by reference to the value of work
carried out during the year as determined by quantitative
surveyors’ reports.

Revenue from sale of properties is recognised when the
respective properties have been completed and delivered
to the buyers.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and title has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established (provided that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue
can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably. Interest income from a financial asset is accrued
on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset
to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at their fair values using the fair value
model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment property are included in profit or loss
for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in
the period in which the item is derecognised.

Transfer from investment property to property under
development for sale

If an item of investment property becomes a property
under development for sale because its use has changed
as evidenced by commencement of development with a
view to sale, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting
is its fair value at the date of change in use.

Transfer from investment property to owner-
occupied property

If an item of investment property becomes a leasehold
land and building for own use because its use has
changed as evidenced by commencement of owner-
occupation, the deemed cost of the property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of
change in use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and
buildings held for own use other than properties under
development are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment other than properties
under development over their estimated useful lives and
after taking into account of their estimated residual value,
using the straight-line method.

Properties under development, being property in the
course of construction for its own use purposes, are
carried at cost less accumulated impairment loss.
Properties under development are classified to a separate
category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for their intended use. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets or, where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit
or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Transfer from owner-occupied property to property
under development for sale

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes a
property under development for sale because its use has
changed as evidenced by commencement of
development with a view to sale, the whole carrying
amount of the building portion prior to demolition is
written off to profit or loss and the deemed cost for
subsequent accounting is the carrying amount of the land
portion at the date of change in use.

Transfer from owner-occupied property to
investment property

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that
item at the date of transfer is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in property
revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement
of the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be
transferred directly to accumulated profits.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets
of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the
lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor
is included in the consolidated statement of financial
position as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments
are apportioned between finance charges and reduction
of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
charges are charged directly to profit or loss.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter
into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of
rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases, in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element of the lease at the inception of the lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
Leasehold land and building (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis except for those that are classified and
accounted for as investment properties under the fair
value model.

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments represent the up-front payments
to lease medium-term leasehold land interests in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and are charged
to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Leasehold land and buildings under
development for future owner-occupied
purpose

When the leasehold land and buildings are in the course
of development for production or for administrative
purposes, the leasehold land component is classified as
a prepaid lease payment and released over a straight-
line basis over the lease term. During the construction
period, the amount of the leasehold land released is
included as part of costs of properties under construction.
Properties under construction are carried at cost, less
any identified impairment losses. Depreciation of
buildings commences when the buildings are available
for use (i.e. when they are in the location and condition
necessary for them to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale are carried at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes land
cost, development costs and directly attributable costs
including, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, investments in associates are carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost as
adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share
of the net assets of the associate, less any identified
impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. An additional share of losses is
provided for and a liability is recognised only to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of acquisition, after assessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the relevant associate.

Joint ventures

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment
of a separate entity in which venturers have joint control
over the economic activity of the entity are referred to as
jointly controlled entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled
entities are incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, investments in jointly controlled
entities are carried in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition
changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the
jointly controlled entities, less any identified impairment
loss. When the Group’s share of losses of a jointly
controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest in that
jointly controlled entity (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the jointly controlled entity), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An
additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of that jointly controlled entity.

When a group entity transacts with a jointly controlled
entity of the Group, profits or losses are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the jointly controlled entity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method.

Construction, interior and renovation and
installation of building materials contracts

Where the outcome of a construction, interior and
renovation or installation of building materials contract
can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are
recognised by reference to the stage of completion of
the contract activity at the end of the reporting period, as
measured by surveys of work performed. Variations in
contract work, claims and incentive payments are
included to the extent that the amount can be measured
reliably and its receipt is considered probable.

Where the outcome of a construction, interior and
renovation or installation of building materials contract
cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is
recognised to the extent of contract costs incurred that it
is probable will be recoverable. Contract costs are
recognised as expenses in the period in which they are
incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised
as an expense immediately.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Construction, interior and renovation and
installation of building materials contracts
(Continued)

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses exceed progress billings,
the surplus is shown as amounts receivable on contract
work. For contracts where progress billings exceed
contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses, the surplus is shown as amounts
payable on contract work. Amounts received before the
related work is performed are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position, as a liability, as advances
received. Amounts billed for work performed but not yet
paid by the customer are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position under progress payments
receivable or debtors.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

TS ERR M A

FEEHBER @

BRE ROWREEREEMHRE
ah @

il TAZEE A 2 & KBS DA 520 M1 ek R

umﬁﬁﬁgtéli‘fz#&fﬂ A ERALE
WEHTIERIATER - HETIEZEERK

TRHBEH E A 2 & KA INHE R 8 MR
HRER  ZERURNAHITIENE
Stk - AR A M BARR E - BRATRR
T W BEIMETRER (D ERE
&) - BEITZIRIEHKREERARK
M2 FIRRNG LR A M BARRERAIE
JRE WHE 2 3R TR 3 M RROR -

MEIR

HW—RREEEKRSMHTASNKEX
ZEIR T RIZAR & A MBSO K #E
RUBEERTHEE - Eﬁi‘%éﬁ&&ﬁ?ﬁ
BRENFEAFEFE - RiiEE
THHEERMBAR (D aﬁiﬁ?@%ﬁé
BAHEFEZUBEERMBAB M
BEREEZRZZRA - RYIRFERE I
AVBEERVBEE (WER) 2 2F
TEjZE MBEESTHABE(WER) 2

NHERR - RRBERERRATE
AEZUBEERVMBRENERES
Z RGN RIBR R o



BB A BT R AR A7) 2010/20114F )

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 Bf %R 2= it 3%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of
the two categories, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL") and loans and receivables. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.

For the year ended 31 March 2011
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #=&

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-Z——5=-"F=+—HIFEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL are financial assets
held for trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

o it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
and changes in fair values arising from remeasurement
are recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial assets.

TS ERR M A

FEEHBER @

MBEIR @)
MBEE (&)
ERNEZE (E)
BRBRRAFEFEZYHEE

AEBZBESE AT EFEZHBE
ERFBEEECUHEE -

UNTHMBEENRRFHIEESR

. TZRABNEHRNLEMBA

\|
/

%

o HERAKE -fEEmA#RY
BTAMAN—&M - ARBIH
FEHIER 2 B ¢ 3

o HANMATHEBWIIFEFHAERLZ
T A -

ERBRRAFEARZMBEEIZ
NFERFE - MASFHAEMEENR
FEEHEHELMEAERRNBRPE
R NIRRT HRRBNEEFETBRET
AR ERM B EERMZFE -



BB A BT R AR A7) 2010/20114F )

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 Bf %R 2= it 3%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including progress payments
receivable, retention money receivable, debtors, deposits,
amount due from a jointly controlled entity, bank balances
and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses.

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of the reporting period. Loans and
receivables are impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the loans and receivables, the
estimated future cash flows of the loans and receivables
have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

o it becomes probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For the year ended 31 March 2011
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
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—E——F=ZA=t+—-HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method (Continued)

Loans and receivables (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade debtors, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade debtor is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to the profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the
extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

TS ERR M A

FEEHBER @

MBIAR &
MBEE (&)

ERNEZE (E)

ER R ERFRIE (&)
EERBNBRREECHE  UHEE
EREERRRERMNETRAEEM
J*Xﬁfmgﬁ@Zﬁmﬁﬁﬁi’
WREZPERREEE -

AN BEERBNRERREER
R EERBET ELIR - EEK
PR 2 BREE € BB R B ARIE L IR
BRERcEOEZLBNIEEER - EE

WOR IR AR BT AT U BB - i 170 48 s B
W#ﬂﬁﬁ iﬂ{faﬁﬁﬁﬁ’] X IR a0 H 1R M

C BEFABER

mEHRBERESRSERD - MA
RO ETE D EERREREENE
HEE - AR ERRBOREBREKE
BB T AL - M EEE R ERIE
= AR RRE(E 518 8 a0 B T BB (E Y
EH A o



BB A BT R AR A7) 2010/20114F )

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 Bf %R 2= it 3%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance of
the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fee paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

Financial liabilities excluding derivative liabilities
Financial liabilities including trade and other payables
and bank loans are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

For the year ended 31 March 2011
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4324 B & &< Mf 51

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-Z——5=-"F=+—HIFEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. ¥ESHEE»®

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss immediately.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial
assets are transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment loss on assets other than
goodwill (see accounting policy in respect
of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. If the
recoverable amount of asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is recognised as expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated income statement because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

For the year ended 31 March 2011
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in jointly
controlled entities, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4324 B & &< Mf 51

For the year ended 31 March 2011
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting periods.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deductible from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefits cost

Payments to the Group’s defined contribution retirement
benefits schemes and the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme are charged as an expense when employees have
rendered services entitling them to the contributions.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period.

For the purposes of preparing the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HK$) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of the reporting period, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the year, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (the
translation reserve).
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make the following estimates
that have a significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements. The key
assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

Estimated impairment of trade debtors

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss for
trade debtors, the Group takes into consideration its
estimation of future cash flows. The amount of the
impairment loss for trade debtors is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 March
2011, the carrying amount of trade debtors is
HK$38,253,000 (2010: HK$39,859,000), net of
allowance for doubtful debts of HK$2,649,000 (2010:
HK$2,000,000) disclosed in note 27.

For the year ended 31 March 2011
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For the year ended 31 March 2011

H=E

—E——F=ZA=t+—-HLFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes bank loans disclosed in note 33, net of
cash and cash equivalents, and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital,
reserves and accumulated profit.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors, the Group will balance its overall capital
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structure through the payment of dividends and new BB RLERE -
share issues, as well as the issue of new debt and the
redemption of existing debt.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. M¥EIR
Categories of financial instruments MEITEER
31.3.2011 31.3.2010 1.4.2009
—E——fF —E-FF —EENF
=A=+-A =A=+—H mA— A
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BET T BT T BT T
Financial assets W& E
Investments held for trading BIEEBECIRE 334 338 4,423
Derivative financial instruments ~ $TEB#B T A — 1,291 221
Loans and receivables BN E R TE
(including cash and (BREE2R
cash equivalents) Re%HE) 381,891 426,650 498,353
Financial liabilities MBarE
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T4A ML A — — 205
At amortised cost BIHR A 735,699 769,079 835,378
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include progress
payments receivable, retention money receivable,
debtors, deposits, amount due from a jointly controlled
entity, bank balances and cash, trade and other payables
and bank loans.

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Currency risk

The functional currency of the group entities is mainly
HK$, the currency in which most of the transactions are
denominated.

The carrying amounts of the foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities of
the group entities at the end of the reporting period are
as follows:

6.

2011

==
Assets
BE
HK$’000
BETT

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=R=1+—HILFE

MBIR @

MEERREEBRRBE

AEBT2H BT ABEREEER
H - ERRER - BWRE  RE R
WH R TR KA - RITA ﬁ%&fﬁ

B iz P
-~ T ERIE R B b B A FRIE R IR 1T
7TJ\°

BRZEM TR 2 F BN AN T3

o ZEWBITAY k2 Rk KRER

BRRBRHEN T - EREEER

m,T\EZ%EﬂSE DAREAR N2 B 8 24030 BRER
ZHEHE ©

i
B
)

38

\
!

ok 1o

EBNINEEBEIZRAEE

N
N i’]LAﬁéﬁfﬁuﬂE

2%

&R
2

B0

$}

BRBEHHRAINEEZ
ERBENREEREW

B

=N

My B+
ﬂi%ﬁﬁ

EIE=3
é

\
/

_‘

2010
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aE
HK$’000
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Liabilities
a8fE
HK$’000
BT T

Assets
HK$'000
BT T

Macau Pataca (“MOP”) BPITT
Australian Dollars (“AUD”) SBRIT
Renminbi (“RMB”) AR
United States Dollars (“USD”) ETT

2,636
28
10,112
672

2,713

948
4,148
1,407
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

The Company is mainly exposed to fluctuation in
exchange rate of MOP, AUD, RMB and USD against HK$.
However, the financial impact on the exchange
differences among the foreign currencies and HK$ is
expected to be immaterial to the Group, therefore, no
sensitivity analysis has been prepared.

Interest rate risk

The cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to the
Group’s floating rate bank loans which are linked to the
Hong Kong Interbank Offer Rate (“HIBOR”) and bank
balances at the prevailing market deposit rate. The Group
currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest
rate exposure should the need arise.

6.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4324 B & &< Mf 51

For the year ended 31 March 2011
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=R=1+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. MBIR @

Financial risk management objectives and MEREEEREEEREREE &)
policies (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued) = E B (&)

The directors of the Company consider the Group’s ARRIESERAAEBRITHERFTE
exposure of bank balances to interest rate risk is not WA EE I TRE - BAADEIRITA
significant as interest bearing bank balances are within BRERHAGER AEEHMERR 2
short maturity period. The Group’s sensitivity to interest BREDRBERRERARE B3E SR
rate risk has been determined based on the exposure to TEREZZANERBRMEE - DT
interest rates for variable-rate bank loans at the end of BERMEPREANREESERE
the reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming BFENAAEEMRE - REMEH
the amounts outstanding at the end of the reporting period HEERFETE  AEERSHMEHR
was outstanding for the whole year. The Group’s sensitivity EHHMNERR s BRERNT -

to interest rate risk at the end of the reporting period
while all other variables were held constant is as follows:

2011 2010
—E2——F —ZE-ZF

Reasonably possible change ATREA b EE A 2 FI R &1L 50 basis 50 basis
in interest rate points points
503 ¥ 5088 1

HK$’000 HK$'000

BETT BT T

Decrease in profit for the year RE s MR A

as a result of an increase — HRR =

in the interest rate EF50%E T

by 50 basis points (2,549) (2,632)
Increase in profit for the year AN 2 s M) 38 0

as a result of a decrease — HRRE

in the interest rate T F&50%8 F

by 50 basis points 2,549 2,632




136

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2010/2011

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties failure to perform their obligations
as at 31 March 2011 in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position and financial guarantee contracts issued by the
Group to the jointly controlled entities for the borrowing
of bank loans as disclosed in Note 39.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual debt
at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
majority of counterparties are banks with high credit-
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk
with exposure spread over a number of counterparties
and customers.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Equity price risk

The Group’s held for trading investments include listed
equity securities in Hong Kong and elsewhere. These
listed equity securities are subject to market price risk.
The management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risk profiles.
Details of the investments held for trading are set out in
note 29. The management considers that the market price
risks of these investments are not significant to the Group.

Commodity price risk

The Group was exposed to commodity price risk from
the outstanding commodity forward contracts at 31 March
2009 and 2010. The management considers that the
price risks of these derivative instruments are not
significant to the Group.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of bank loans and ensures compliance with
loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank loans as a significant source of
liquidity. As at 31 March 2011, the Group has available
unutilised borrowing facilities of approximately
HK$439,209,000 (2010: HK$292,675,000). Details of
bank loans are set out in note 33.

6.

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=R=1+—HILFE

MBIR @

MERBREEZERREE (&)

IR AE 45 AL b

AEEFIFEEZREBENREERE
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& an B A% AL ke

AEBFENERERRARKAE-F
ENFR_F-FTF-_A=+—HKT
EzEmlEEN BEEERR/ELNT
T AR ERRE RS AR B A -

REBETRER

EEERDECRRE  AEEEER
MEEEERSARERERWEEH
FORE MRS FEKFRBERER
ERBERNTE  EEEBEERTE
R BERRERTE EHEE -

REBERBRITERIEREZENRDE
SRR -MN-_E——F=A=+—8 -
REEBNESZ RBARTEROES
#439,209,0007C (ZE—ZF : B
292,675,0007T) ° RITERFFIEH M
333
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities based on
the agreed repayment terms. For non-derivative financial
liabilities, the table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the earliest time band regardless
of the probability of the banks choosing to exercise their
rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates. The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows.

For derivative instruments that settle on a net basis,
undiscounted net cash outflows are presented, based on
the contractual maturities as the management considers
that the contractual maturities are essential for any
understanding of the timing of the cash flows of
derivatives.
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T-——F=A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. MBIR @

Financial risk management objectives and MEREEEREEEREREE &)
policies (Continued)

Liquidity tables mEBEEX

As at 31 March 2011 H=8--%
=B=1-H

Non-derivative FTEHKEE

financial liabilities
Trade and other payables & f 3008 &2

HfREMHE
Bank loans RITER
— variable rate * —28*

Asat31 March 2010 R-Z-ZF
(Restated) ZB=t+-H
(mE5))
Weighted
average  On demand Total Carrying
effective  or less than 1-2 2-5  More than undiscounted ~ amount at
interest rate 1 year years years 5 years cash flow  31.3.2010
RZE-ZF
IETFH  RERH AHBERE ZA=1-8
ERfE  FR-% 1-2F 25 SENE RELE REE

% HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
Aol A%Tr  BEETr  A¥%Tn E%Tn A%Tn  BETx

Non-derivative FTERER

financial liabilities
Trade and other payables FEf} 308 |2

Hib B FUA — 124,020 14,759 — — 138,779 138,779
Bank loans RITER
— variable rate * — 28" 1.43 593,069 4116 42,784 — 639,969 630,300

717,089 18,875 42,784

778,748 769,079
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
BE-T—FZA=+-BLFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. MBIR»®
Financial risk management objectives and MEREEEREEEREREE &)
policies (Continued)
Liquidity tables (Continued) REESRE (&)
Asat31 March 2009 R-EENF
(Restated) ZA=1+-H
(mE5))
Weighted
average  On demand Total Carrying
effective  or less than 1-2 2-5  More than undiscounted ~ amount at
interest rate 1 year years years Syears  cashflow  31.3.2009
RZZENE
MEFT  REXH AEHRE ZA=1+—AH
ERAE  FR-%F 126 25 SENME  RE8E REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Asl  A%Trn  AETr A%Tr A%t A%t AT
Non-derivative FTEHRBEE
financial liabilities
Trade and other payables FEf} 8 &2
HERTE — 158,061 40,060 — — 198,121 198,121
Obligation REREHE
under a finance lease 1.98 45 — — — 45 44
Bank loans RITER
— variable rate * — 38 1.37 595,682 4,110 47,460 — 647,252 637,213
753,788 44,170 47,460 — 845,418 835,378
Financial guarantee ~ BIEERAH
contract (note) (Bi3E) — 108,500 — — — 108,500 108,500
862,288 44,170 47,460 — 953,918 943,878
Derivatives fTEIR
— net settlement — FHE
Commodity forward ~ EREEAH
contracts — 205 — — — 205 205

* The interest rates applied to projected undiscounted cash
flows of variable rate bank loans are the interest rates at
the end of the reporting period.

* ORERTERZ B RMEN R EM
BR AR ) 5 B 9 o5 R 2 R o
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity tables (Continued)

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or less than 1 year” time
band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 March 2011,
the aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of these
bank loans amounted to HK$204,800,000 (2010:
HK$31,000,000 and 2009: HK$31,500,000). Taking into
account the Group’s financial position, the directors do
not believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise
their discretionary rights to demand immediate
repayment. The directors believe that such bank loans
as at 31 March 2011 will be repaid within eight years
after the reporting date in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. At that
time, the aggregate principal and interest cash outflows
will amount to HK$219,049,000.

Note: The amount included above for financial guarantee
contract is the maximum amount the Group could be
required to settle under the arrangement for the full
guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the
counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations at
the end of the relevant reporting period, the Group
considered that it was more likely than not that no amount
would be payable under the arrangement.

6.

For the year ended 31 March 2011
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-Z——5=-"F=+—HIFEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

° the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded in active liquid markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices and ask
prices respectively;

o the fair values of derivative financial instruments
are measured at fair value by reference to the
forward price of related metals quoted from London
Metal Exchange; and

° the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding derivative instruments) are
determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis using prices or rates from observable
current market transactions as inputs.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. MEBEIR#»@
Fair value (Continueqd) DFEE B
Fair value measurements recognised in the REEHBRRRERZATETE

consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial THRE‘RURAFEBRREBIECVBEL
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial BNt BRABRAFERESA—Z
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 2 based &

on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

e Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived e F—RRFENEDNRECHINE
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market EXBERERMGPRMMER
for identical assets or liabilities. (CRECFTHE)FH -

e Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived o ZFEH/RFEFEDBRE—RFA
from inputs other than quoted prices included within ZEWREIN  REBEEEXBEVEE
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, (BNER) sk (A BRITE) B
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. B ABIREH -

derived from prices).

At 31 March 2011
R=-BE——F=H=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Total
E—R -t ] et
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
BET T BET T BET
Financial assets of FVTPL FRBEREATE
ECHBEE
Listed equity securities BIEEEZ
held for trading ETRAES 334 — 334
At 31 March 2010
RZE—TF=A=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Total
F—H FER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BT T BB T BT T
Financial assets of FVTPL FRBEREATE
AECHBEE
Listed equity securities BIEEEZ
held for trading ETRAES 338 — 338
Derivative financial instruments MTHEMBIA — 1,291 1,291
There was no transfer between Level 1 and 2 during the REE_Z——FR=ZT—TF=H
years ended 31 March 2011 and 2010. =t+—BULFEE-REE_K2H

BILAZBEW LS BEE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2011

H=E

—E——F=ZA=t+—-HLFE

TURNOVER

Turnover represents the aggregate of the revenue earned
from construction contract work, interior and renovation
contracts, supply and installation of building materials,
sales of goods, provision of property agency and
management services and gross rental income from
property investment during the year, and is analysed as
follows:

TS ERR M A

I

ERE

LERBEXREREANTRE KM L#
EEH REMTEEZEMK  HEE
o R AR N TR AR S BRER 2 W
mMPEREZRES WA ZEE  H

DT

Dﬂ

.

W

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Revenue from construction BEANTIREZIA
contract work 431,724 520,130
Revenue from interior e R IERE 2 BA
and renovation contracts 72,647 125,774
Sale of building materials BEMBIEERE 24,159 23,817
Revenue from contracts for THRRBEMEEHZBA
installation of building materials 117,593 135,985
Sale of health products EREMIEER 49,646 48,641
Rental income from MERE 2 e
property investment 22,197 23,094
Property agency and management #1212 MEERE 2 W=
service income 5,276 6,929
723,242 884,370
SEGMENT INFORMATION SHEH
The Group is organised into seven operating divisions: EEFEBELHEESALLE  BE -
construction, interior and renovation works, trading and s R HEIE TR Lﬁﬁﬂiﬁ;&ﬁ”* .

installation of building materials, sales of health products,
property investment, provision of property agency and
management services and property development. These
divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its
financial information internally and are regularly reviewed
by the chief operating decision maker for the purpose of
allocating resources to segments and assessing their
performance.

BEEMIBEE  WERE  WERHE
NEERB2IEHEEMRER $¢l
AL ZFE D B e NE M B E R T
RERRE TN @E%ﬁiﬁfﬁ
ZEBRNFED BB 2RI ©
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BE_Z2—FZA=1+—HLEE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. #BEH®
(a) Segment revenues and results (a) PR ARER
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue TRHFATAEBESLED 2K
and results by operating segment: AREE DT -
For the year ended 31 March 2011 iﬁf:ﬁ——ﬁzﬂ =t—Hi1

TURNOVER =1
External sales HOMEE
Inter-segment sales ~ HEEHKME

ZHE

Total @it

Inter-segment sales 9 BEHMH
are charged by ZHED

reference 1o 2EM(E
market prices. HER
RESULTS EL |

Segment result PEEE

Unallocated expenses & PEFX
Finance costs BBER

Profit before taxation B TERI
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BE-T—FZA=+-BLFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(@) Segment revenues and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2010

Interior and Building Health
Construction  renovation materials products

KH

VAN
RIN=

8.

Property

investment

TS ERR M A

SEEHR @)
(a) #BBMARER &

BE-_ZT-ZTHF=-A=t+—HL
FE

Property
agency and Property Segment
management  development total  Eliminations  Consolidated

NERE

BE R BEMH  BRER  DERE REE  DEER AEEH e e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  BETR BRTrn  RETr B%Tn BB BETn AETn BT EETx
TURNOVER £

External sales HMEE 520,130 125,774 159,802 43641 23,094 6,929 - 884,370 - 884,370

Inter-segment sales 2 BEKMH
LHE 21,363 59,052 33,304 23 1,844 — — 115,586 (115,586) —
Total @ 541,493 184,826 193,106 43 664 24,938 6,929 — 999,956 (115,586) 834,370

Inter-segment sales ~ HEEREZ
are charged by BENSE
reference to R

market prices.

RESULTS E3
Segment result PEEE 8818 3443 (11,176) 269

82,730 1,215 47,847 133,146 (191) 131,18

Unallocated expenses &7 E 5%
Finance costs HEBA

Profit before taxation B4 &7

The accounting policies of the operating segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment results represent the
results from each segment without allocation of
administration costs incurred by head office and
the inactive subsidiaries and finance costs. This is
the measure reported to the chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

(2,458)
(5313)

123,414

BERENPBHEZETHREEE 2G5
B (FRHES) — 8 - nBEERRE
BN REEZEE  LARDE %@ﬁBZT
BRA » ZBRENERZBA
MBER - &tﬁﬁ%@qﬂ}gﬁ%ﬁ%%
EE2BUEBERIERRAFEZAE
Hy o
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. #BEH®
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (b) HREHAR
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets TRFAREESKEENDE EE
and liabilities by operating segment: BB :
As at 31 March 2011 A _E——F=RA=+—H

ASSETS BE
Segment assets PEEE
Unallocated assets ~ AHTEE

Consolidated assets ~ SAEE

LIABILITIES B
Segment liabilies ~ HEEE
Unallocated liabiliies  *PE &

Consolidated liabllities HA & (&
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HE-Z——5=-"F=+—HIFEE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

As at 31 March 2010

8. HEWEH @
(b) PEMRERAR ()

R-ZEBE-SF=A=+—H

Property
Interior and Building Health Property  agency and Property Segment
Construction  renovation materials products  investment management  development total  Eliminations Consolidation
nERE
BE RHREE  BEMH  BRER  VERE REE  DEER SREH H Fe
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  ERTm B¥Trn  BETr B%Tr B%Trn BETn BETn BT EETx
ASSETS BE
Segment assets PREE 377,461 49,648 182,326 43,158 612,026 21,494 519,888 1,806,001 (1,961) 1,804,040
Unallocated assets KA EEE 3,287
Consolidated assets ~ HAKE 1,807,327
LIABILITIES B
Segment liabilites ~ AHEAE 260,575 37013 41,352 4,270 7123 311 4298 354942 - 349
Unallocated liabilities KA E&E 702,193
Consolidated liabilities A EE 1,057,135

For the purposes of monitoring segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments:

all assets are allocated to operating segments
other than other receivables of head office and
the inactive subsidiaries, taxation recoverable,
central bank balances and cash; and

all liabilities are allocated to operating
segments other than current and deferred
taxation, other payables of head office and the
inactive subsidiaries and central bank loans.

REEERDSBRRALDEHRNERSD
fic

o KM NERNMBARZEME
WRoR ~ AIREFRIE - PREAZ
RITHEBRERERIN IEEEDLD

REEEDTE R

o FREDVEINGEIERIA - AE N AR
fEARNEMENRBERFRE
BZRITER - ERBEHLO KD

REDHE -
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HE-_T-——F=A=+—HIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. #¥EEH »
(c) Other information (c) HthmH
Year ended 31 March 2011 BE-Z——F=A=+—H
IEFE

Amounts included in the OEENEZE
measure of segment results  SAEEEY

or segment assets: 28
Depreciation ik
Impairment loss recognised ~ FEMFEZ
on trade debtors HEFR
Gain on change in fair value of % EHEZATE
investment properties P

Loss on change in fair value of #EEEZREZ
investments held for trading ~ AFEZH 2B
Loss on change in fair value of fTABBEIAL
derivative financial instruments  ATEE B2 B
Release of prepaid lease payments FRHEFERR
(Gain) loss on disposal of HENE  BER
properties, plant and equipment &/ 2 (K) B

Interest income HEMA
Share of proft of an associate 15— HEE AT
Share of profit of AMERFEH

jointly controlled entities EERT

Additions to non-current assets FE ERBEE

(note) (B3
Interest in an associate BENT B
Interests in jointly controlled ~ £REH|EE 7 R
entities

Amounts regularly provided to - TBEEHEEE
the chief operating decision ~ BF HERLTE
maker but not included BehzrEz

in the measure of £8:
segment results:
Finance costs HBER
Income tax expenses fiEx
Note: Non-current assets excludes financial instruments, MizE: ERBEETREYHIAE BEAQ
the interest in an associate and interests in jointly RlZEE R EREH TR RS -

controlled entities.
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(c)

ARE MR M EE

8. SMWEHR )

Other information (Continued) (c) Htu¥EH (&)
Year ended 31 March 2010 BE-_ZT-ZF=A=+—HL
FE
Property
Interior and Building Health Property agency and Property
Construction renovation materials products investment ~ management  development  Consolidated
B NERE
ez Rk BEMH BEER NERE REE NELR e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BB BETT BT BB BT BETR
Amounts included in the REENELE
measure of segment results JAEEE
or segment assefs: LEE:
Depreciation e 762 - 718 1,159 79 49 - 3483
Impairment loss recognised on -~ MG
trade debtors HESE - - 2,000 - - - - 2,000
Write off of retention receivable ~ ERREISHSH 134 - — — - — - 134
Gain on change in fairvalue o~ % ENEZAFE
investment properties 29245 - - - - (73,629) — - (73,629)
Gain on change in fair value of ~ BEEEZREY
investments held for trading ATEE WS (189) - (857) - - - — (1,046)
Gain on change in fair value of ~ fTAHBIAZ
derivative financial instruments AT EZ 2 Uiz — - (3,154) — - - — (3,154)
Release of prepaid lease payments BRI EFERE — - 201 — - — — 201
(Gain) loss on disposal of HENE  BER
properties, plant and equipment R (i) B (1,445) — — 5 4 — - (1399)
Interest income FEHRA - - 9 (11) - - - (20)
Share of profit of an associate MG —HEBELE &R - - - - (921) - - (921)
Share of profit of AELREF ERER
Jointly controlled entities (3,381) — - — — — (54,387) (57,768)
Additions to non-current assets ~ FEETHEE
(note) (A3) 1,748 — 3190 62 10,614 3372 - 18,986
Interest in an associate BENR ER - - — - 16,038 — - 16,038
Interests in jointly controlled AABHER R
entities 15,858 - - - - - 54,307 70,165
Amounts regularly provided to ~~ FEEAAEEE
the chief operating ecision BrHERLTE
maker but not included in BergEenm:
the measure of segment results:
Finance costs HBER 6 - 2,546 3 2,758 — — 5313
Income tax expenses REZH 311 8 39 - 13,157 330 - 1413
Note: Non-current assets exclude financial instruments, et : ERBDEETREMBSTE  BEQ

the interest in an associate and interests in jointly

controlled entities.

AlziEm M ARG B 2 s
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HE-_T——F=R=1+—HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. #EEH
(c) Other information (Continued) (c) HthEH (&)
Geographical information HE 5D
The Group’s turnover amounting to AAREEMNEXBRIEREEE
HK$705,266,000 (2010: HK$850,488,000) is (FEMR) R MITARRER
generated from customers located in Hong Kong, FPeHEBUEREUNMETS D
the Company’s place of domicile. Accordingly, no - REABEPHNEEREABK
further analysis of the Group’s turnover by 705,266,0007T (ZE—ZFF : B
geographical market based on geographical location 850,488,0007T) °
of customers has been prepared.
The analysis of the Group’s non-current assets by IRBEERBEECHWENED
geographical location of assets is presented as WERMOT
follows:
2011 2010
=E——F —ZE-ZF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Hong Kong (place of domicile) &8 (Fricih=) 502,809 729,341
The PRC s 41,304 38,826
544,113 768,167
Information about major customers BREEEFZ2EHR
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years RAEBFERN  REGBIEF ZHK
individually contributing over 10% of the total mEBHBBANSEELCEEREOZ
turnover of the Group as follows: + BRI -
2011 2010
—===f _—T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Customer A (note) BEF (M) 192,312 147,248
Customer B (note) BE L (M) 123,025 158,824
315,337 306,072
Note: Revenue from construction contracts income within sk : REBEIBIEBESHZK

the construction segment. fm °
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9.

10.

OTHER INCOME

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2010/2011

9. HftulrA

Other income includes: H A8
Dividend income SN ON
Interest income MEHA
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - BE X
plant and equipment B2 W
Storage income FREWA
Sales of scrap material S5 65 Rk
FINANCE COSTS 10. ¥ EH
Interest on: AT ZHE :
Bank loans wholly repayable BERAFANTHEE
within five years ZIRITER
(including bank loan with (BEREKREEKER
repayment on demand clause) ZRITEFK)
Less: Amount capitalised B BERP2HFEDE
in properties under EERNMbLz 25

development for sale

2010
—F-2F

HK$'000
BT

64
20

1,399

651
132

2010
—T-2F

HK$'000
BETT

8,471

(3,158)

5,313
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=R=1+—HILFE

11. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

11. BRRAIR T

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T EEETF T
Profit before taxation has been arrived  BREADEFI 2 0% & (Gt A) -
at after charging and (crediting):
Directors’ emoluments (note 12(i)) EE=Me (FEE12G))
Fees ik 650 650
Other emoluments H Bl & 10,058 6,971
\ 10,708 7,621
Other staff costs Hih 8 TR
Salaries and other benefits Fr S EL A AR A 149,343 132,262
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 3R K48 Fll 51 2 i 5% 6,960 6,875
Total staff costs 8 Tk 167,011 146,758
Depreciation of property, ME BMEERSRBZITE
plant and equipment 4,300 3,483
Release of prepaid lease payments FENHEERERED 205 201
Auditor’s remuneration = AN & 1,653 1,530
Impairment loss recognised FEWRIE 2 BB 1B
on trade debtors 649 2,000
Write off of retention receivable JE U AR [ & M 3E — 134
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - BE KX
plant and equipment Rz W (446) (1,399)
Net exchange loss (gain) R EE B IE (W) 308 (664)
Contract costs recognised TR ANFT ASHE LA
as expense in cost of sales o ‘ 594,282 750,042
Costs of inventories recognised FERAF AHEKAR
as an expense in cost of sales 49,617 50,098
Gross rental income wEHERS W AR
under operating leases (22,197) (23,094)
Less: Direct operating expenses that B RAFRRELHE
generated rental income WA S e E
during the year S 4,988 2,873
(17,209) (20,221)
Sub-leasing income A HEWA (859) (722)
Less: Direct operating expenses that W R AFERELESME
generated sub-leasing income L ONIEIR:L:D
during the year BEERELET N 37 35
(822) (687)
Expenses capitalised in cost of BERMbREQIEKAR
contract work: pd
Depreciation e 13,073 13,028
Rentals under operating leases wEHEZ MBS
in respect of:
— plant and machinery — BB R iR 1,806 4,984
— others — Hf 204 232

Note: The Company’s profit for the year amounted to
approximately HK$50,011,000 (2010: HK$30,003,000).

30,003,0007%) ©

MaZ: AFERARAENHRER
50,011,0007C ° (ZZE—ZF : B
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BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HILHFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 12. EXRERML

EMOLUMENTS

(i) Details of directors’ remuneration are as () M TREESTHM&ZHFE:
follows:
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the ten EffENTZ(CE—FE : +
(2010: ten) directors were as follows: ZYEE @RS MT
For the year ended 31 March 2011 BEzE-ZE——%=A=+—H1

FE

Cha Mou Sing, Payson
Wong Sue Toa, Stewart
Cha Mou Daid, Johnson
Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin
Chan Pak Joe

Lam Chat Yu

Lau Tze Yiu, Peter

Shen Tai Hing

Sun Tai Lun

Tai Sai Ho

ERE
IR
ERE
B
Rt
HEF
7R
hAR
BAfR
Bt=
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=R=1+—HILFE

12. EEREEME @

() Details of directors’ remuneration are as (i) UTREFEMRZES: @
follows: (Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2010 B —_E-ZF=H=+—81t
FE
Other emoluments
Hin e
Performance ~ Retirement
Salaries related benefits
and other incentive scheme Total
Fees benefits payments  contributions  emoluments
ek THERR g R
ik Hit A 4k SrEfR BMe
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
(Note)
()
Cha Mou Sing, Payson e — — — — —
Wong Sue Toa, Stewart TiE — 2,433 1,600 375 4,408
Cha Mou Daid, Johnson e — — — — —
Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin EES — — — — —
Chan Pak Joe e 150 — — — 150
Lam Chat Yu WEF 100 — — — 100
Lau Tze Yiu, Peter 272 150 — — — 150
Shen Tai Hing LRE 100 — — — 100
Sun Tai Lun N 150 — — — 150
Tai Sai Ho EIfi — 1,627 800 236 2,563
650 3,960 2,400 611 7,621

Note: The performance related incentive payment is
determined based on the performance of the
individual and the Group’s performance and
profitability for the year.

During the two years ended 31 March 2011, no
director waived any emolument.

et - THFRREBDSZRENZF
BZBAzRREABZRIR
NBRN B EEMER °

WRE-T——£=A=+—AL
FELERE P - 3 0 A T
% o
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HE-Z——5=-"F=+—HIFEE

M H RN

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 12. EEREAME »
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(i) Employees’ emoluments (i) EEML
During the year, the five highest paid individuals AEE  AEEEFATBIEMRE
included two directors (2010: two directors), details EE(CE—ZTF WMBESR) ' %
of whose emoluments are set out above. The WEEEZMEFBENLEX - &
emoluments of the remaining three (2010: three) B=%(CE—ZTF: ZR)RaH
highest paid individuals were as follows: AT ZM&mT :
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Salaries and other benefits FreREMmET 2,370 2,235
Performance related TIERFAEE) S
incentive payments 1,750 1,120
Retirement benefits RIREFIFEIH R
scheme contributions 336 309
4,456 3,664
The emoluments of the aforesaid employees were FEE 2B T34 5! -
within the following bands:
2011 2010
—E——F ZE-FF
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 751,000,001 —
7B #1,500,0007T 1 3
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 7B %1 500,001t —
7B #2 000,0007T 2 —

During the year, no emolument was paid by the
Group to the directors or highest paid employees
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office.

AEE  AEEIEAEZTRESHE
BXfBE - (ERSEIMAREE M
ARG 2 2R/ - BERA(E -
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=R=1+—HILFE

13. TAXATION CHARGE 13. RIEXZH
2011 2010
—E——F —ET-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T EEEF T
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEMIEH

Current year KEE 3,752 3,161
Under(over)provision in prior years B FEREEGTE (BEEE) 450 (70)

PRC Enterprise Income Tax Bl ZERTISH
Underprovision in prior years BEFEREBNR 504 —
4,706 3,091
Deferred taxation (note 34) EIERIE (HI5E34) 19,410 11,122
24,116 14,213

Hong Kong Profits Tax is provided at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits for both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the
rate prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. Profits tax
arising in the PRC is calculated at 25% on the assessable
profits for both years.

W 1B F & & B IS B LAE 5T FE AR B 0%
#16.5%:T & -

EEMADEERMEENKIE 2B
BRVEEC ERRXGEN - MEFE
P AR B A 2 A5 B DA B ER B R
25%=tH ©
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HE-Z——5=-"F=+—HIFEE

13. TAXATION CHARGE (Continued)

Taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the

13. RIEBEXZH @

FREMIAS GRS Wt R 2 RS

profit before taxation per the consolidated income MEBERAT -
statement as follows:
2011 2010
—EF——fF —T-FTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BE T T BT
Profit before taxation B 56 A4 7 180,158 123,414
Tax at the domestic income BARM TS E16.5%
tax rate of 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) (ZZ—ZF : 16.5%) 29,726 20,363
Tax effect of share of profit of JEGEEZE A ENER 2
an associate MBTE (477) (152)
Tax effect of share of profit of R EREHEEEF 2
jointly controlled entities Mz 2 (14,102) (9,532)
Tax effect of expenses that are TR B BT FE AR T i I B
not deductible in determining IR -3
taxable profit Wi E 4,469 2,582
Tax effect of income that is TR B BT FE AR T i I B
not taxable in determining BERRZ WA Z
taxable profit M2 (183) (713)
Tax effect of utilisation of EEAZBIRERZ
tax losses previously HEEEZ
not recognised M2 (353) (1,151)
Tax effect of tax losses RERZHEEBEZ
not recognised M2 4,360 3,077
Tax effect of different tax rates of B A RIREMRERERE
subsidiaries operating BENTRBME 2
in other jurisdictions M2 (278) (191)
Under(over)provision in prior years B FEBET T (HBREEE) 954 (70)
Taxation charge for the year FEMIEZH 24,116 14,213
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DIVIDENDS

Dividends recognised as distribution during the year:

14.

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=R=1+—HILFE

B2

FRAERRSEREZBREMT

2011 2010
—2-—fF —ZT-ZF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Ordinary shares: LA
Interim dividend for 2011 ENZE——FHHRKRE
— HK1.5 cents per share — FRRBEE 1510
(2010: HK1.5 cents (Z2—2F : ZF—FF
per share for 2010) FREEL.500) 7,314 6,649
Final dividend for 2010 EN—F-ZFRPERE
— HK2.5 cents per share — FRRBE 2.5
(2010: HK1.0 cents (Z2—ZF : Z2FNF
per share for 2009) FREEE1.00) 11,081 4,432
18,395 11,081
A final dividend of HK2.7 cents per share totalling EEESRREEE T ——F A=

HK$13,164,000 in respect of the year ended 31 March
2011 (2010: final dividend of HK2.5 cents per share
totalling HK$11,081,000 in respect of the year ended 31
March 2010) has been proposed by the directors and is
subject to approval by the shareholders in general
meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share for the
year is based on the profit for the year of HK$156,042,000
(profit for the year of 2010: HK$109,201,000) and on
the 487,559,674 shares in issue for the two years ended
31 March 2011 after adjusting for the effect of bonus
issue of shares during the year.

There were no potential ordinary share in existence for
the two years ended 31 March 2011. Accordingly, no
diluted earning per share has been presented.

15.

_EIZ;EHHH&EH&/ %2 71IJJ l:liHE/%
#13,164,000C (ZE—ZF : 2 —F
—ZEF=ZA= + Bz REK B Z%

BEED Bl A HABK11,081,0000T) ¢
EEoRE 2 FRERBERS it
A o

srREHN

RFEEEBRERBNIDRBARFEE BT
75 #156,042,0007T (ZE—ZF : &F|
75%109,201,0007T) REE =T ——4F
= A=+—HEMEFE 2487,559,674
IR E 21T D (Eﬁyﬁméﬁilﬂxzwa
EL AR E

HE-_ZT—F=ZA=+—HIWMEF
EUvEAEBEHEYE2LTEBR A
It WEERSREEEF -
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-Z——5=-"F=+—HIFEE

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2010/2011

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. IEWXR
HK$'000
EEETF T
FAIR VALUE N¥E
At 1 April 2009 R-ETAEMA—A 535,320
Additions NE 1,661
Transfer to properties under development EREERP2HFEME
for sale, at fair value (Note 1) BERFEEEFED (22,330)
Transfer to leasehold land and buildings, EREHEE L RET
at fair value (Note 2) ZAFE (2 (11,200)
Gain on change in fair value NEEEH 2 W= 73,629
At 31 March 2010 RZE—ZEF=A=+—H 577,080
Additions NE 276
Transfer to properties under development for sale, EEEZEP 2 FEYE -
at fair value (Note 3) BERFEFEI) (340,000)
Gain on change in fair value N EEE 2 W 120,954
At 31 March 2011 RZE——F=ZA=+—H 358,310

REMEZRAEBRUREAZY
¥ HHEEHT

The carrying value of investment properties comprises
properties in Hong Kong under leases as follows:

2011 2010

—E——F —E-FTF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BET T BEETT

Long lease REHEE — 280,000
Medium-term lease FHIFE 358,310 297,080

358,310 577,080
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
March 2011 and 2010 has been arrived at on the basis
of a valuation carried out on that date by Jones Lang
LaSalle Limited (“JLL"), an independent property valuer
not connected with the Group. JLL has appropriate
qualifications and recent experience in the valuation of
similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuation
of properties amounting to HK$88,590,000 (2010:
HK$67,200,000) was arrived at by reference to market
evidence of transaction prices of similar properties. The
valuation of other properties amounting to
HK$269,720,000 (2010: HK$509,880,000) was arrived
at by reference to the income capitalisation method which
is based on the capitalisation of the net income potential
by adopting an appropriate capitalisation rate, which is
derived from analysis of sale transactions and
interpretation of prevailing investor requirements or
expectations.

All of the Group’s property interests in land held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are measured using the fair value model and
are classified and accounted for as investment properties.

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=R=1+—HILFE

16. REPYE &)

REBREMER T ——FR_T—
EF=A=+—HZRAFEEHBILE
EVELEMPEBTERAR ([HE
BT IRE R ZGEER - HEMITE
RAREASEVERE  WEAEHESE
BRI O 3T B 2 AT A A It = gk R AE M
EITHE 2BREVECTERSHE
BAHE 2 W% A7 #88,590,0007T (=
— =4 B#67,200,0007T) ¢ FAWA
BABARAFEEEZEMDERBL
269,720,000 (ZE—ZF : B
509,880,0007T) * W ERBRIBEHRAE
BEMENM L RBBERAFEEER
It ERABERGIOMMERKRES
Z B SRe TR ARHERI T 5| BB 2R A o

AEBRAENKEHESTARTE AN
RO EABRERENZ L HYE
BEFELIESRENE XERA
FERAGE -
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For the year e

BE-T——

nded 31 March 2011
F=Z=A=+—RIEFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Notes:

(1

At 1 October 2009, there was a transfer of certain
properties amounting to HK$22,330,000 from investment
properties to properties under development for sale at
their fair value, which was determined on the basis of a
valuation carried out by JLL as at the date of transfer.

At 1 December 2009, there was a transfer of a property
amounting to HK$11,200,000 from investment properties
to leasehold land and buildings at its fair value, which
was determined on the basis of a valuation carried out
by JLL as at the date of transfer.

At 5 November 2010, the Group had vacated all tenants
in an investment property and commenced
redevelopment with a view to sale. That property was
transferred from investment properties to properties under
development for sale at its fair value of HK$340,000,000,
which was determined on the basis of a valuation carried
out by JLL as at the date of transfer. The valuation of the
property amounting to HK$340,000,000 was arrived at
by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for
similar properties in the same location and conditions
less costs and developers’ margin for redevelopment of
the property. JLL are of the view that the market value
lies in its potential for redevelopment as at the date of
valuation.

16. BEMR @)

CEX

(1)

REZZBZANF+A—B  —UEREER
7B 122,330,0007T 2 ME B E M EE
BREZRTPZGEYE - LEERTE
BT A 2 (M{EEERT -

RZZZEAF+-A—R —UEREE
778% 11,200,000 H) M 3 LA R FEH
REMEBERE L HMNET - IEH
mERITRERBZMERER -

R-T—ZTF+—ARHA  AEECE
H—IBREYE T FATER » WHKE
TEE - UHEHE - ZMEREEDE
EERRPIAEMEZATEREE
340,000,000t * JhiRIE (R E 51T 8
EAEERZIEEMETE - MEGBES
7B 1340,000,0007T © T2 ZEHFR @
RARR A EB UM R R R (B 7 T B 78 R 4
BEAMEREEEDE A BMmMA
o MmEWITRE  WEHEERH M5
BEEHESEEENAT -
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=R=1+—HILFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y% - BERRE

Properties Leasehold Furniture
under land and Plant and and Leasehold Motor
development buildings equipment fixtures  improvements vehicles Total
BRTZ RELHE
LS £ BERRE BRAREE %4 RE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ARBTR ARTR BETR BETR BETR BETR BETR

CoST BA
At 1 April 2009 RZEENENA-A 3,778 49697 77,398 11,964 7,153 11,782 161,772
Exchange adjustments Exige — 69 33 5 — 2 109
Additions RE — 11,142 37 898 3,497 1,751 17,325
Reclassification ENNE (3,778) 3,778 — — — — —
Transfer to properties under ~ EHEZHEFR 2
development for sale HENE - (6,010) - - - — (6,010)
Transfer from investment BRARENE
properties — 11,200 — — — — 11,200
Disposals/write offs HE/ — — (6,936) (35) (597) (1,519) (9,087)
At 31 March 2010 WZE-F&
ZA=t-H — 69,876 70,532 12,832 10,053 12,016 175,309
Exchange adjustments EXRHE — 1,718 492 83 8 93 2,39
Additions AE — 1,006 1,889 2,557 5,188 1,589 12,229
Disposals/write offs HE/ W — — (25) (144) (770) (1,346) (2,285)
At 31 March 2011 R-5-——%
—A=t-H — 72,600 72,838 15,328 14,479 12,352 187,647
DEPRECIATION &
At 1 April 2009 “EENENA-A — 8,499 39,428 7,716 5,269 9,376 70,288
Exchange adjustments Exigg — 9 6 2 — 1 18
Provided for the year FREE - 2,108 11,048 1,463 877 1,015 16,511
Eliminated on transfer to BREERML
properties under HEMERH
development for sale — (767) — — — — (767)
Eliminated on disposalsirite offs 41 /#3555 Hi — — (6,936) (30) (556) (1,483) (9,005)
At 31 March 2010 j
ZA=t-H — 9,849 43546 9,151 5,590 8,909 77,045
Exchange adjustments EREE - 246 122 42 - 33 443
Provided for the year FREE — 2,437 10,894 1,598 1316 1,128 17,373
Eliminated on disposalstwiite offs & /#5535 — — () (122) (770) (1,346) (2,242)
At 31 March 2011 R-5-——%
—A=t-H — 12,5632 54,558 10,669 6,136 8,724 92,619
CARRYING VALUES EEE
At 31 March 2011 R-5-——%
—A=t-H — 60,068 18,330 4659 8,343 3,628 95,028

At 31 March 2010

— 60,027 26,986 3,681 4,463 3,107 98,264
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment other
than properties under development are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land Over the shorter of

and buildings unexpired term of
the relevant lease period
or 20 years
Leasehold Over the shorter of the term of
improvements the lease period or b years
Other assets 5 years

The carrying value of leasehold land and buildings and
properties under development comprises properties in
Hong Kong except for certain buildings amounting to
HK$19,414,000 (2010: HK$19,014,000) which are
located in the PRC. In respect of the properties located
in Hong Kong and the PRC, the lease terms are shown
as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4324 B & &< Mf 51

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-Z——5=-"F=+—HIFEE

17. M3 - BB R&R (&)

N EBRBEREAMEIIODE - BE MK
HBEB IRIKBEEGEAREENAEN
£ FHOT

METWRET  AREBEOKRER
FH T+
(AR E RZE)
K& BEBEHRER
FHI A F
(AR E RZE)
HEE REF

BAalE TEEB19,414,0007T (- F—
T 35119,014,0007T) AR B B0 8
FHN - NRBEBRPENEE T KiE
FHERPYERBEEAEHRET
(ERCI N

2011 2010

—E2——F —ET-TF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Long lease REIHEE — —
Medium-term lease RHIHE 60,068 60,027

60,068 60,027
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18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 18. FfIHEREA
2010
—ET-TF
HK$'000
BT
The Group’s prepaid lease AEBEENEE
payments comprise: FIBBIE
Leasehold land in the PRC PR HE LM
Medium-term lease FRHEIE 6,821
Analysed for reporting AsRERBE B 2D -
pUrposes as:
Current asset MEEE 201
Non-current asset ERBEE 6,620
6,821
19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 10. REBAFIZESG
2010
—ET-TF
HK$'000
BT T
Cost of unlisted investment in R 3F M EE& AR 2
an associate & KR 16,576
Share of post-acquisition profit 21f B8 1% 2 ¥ 7
and other comprehensive K E A2 KA
income, net of dividends (B EIR AR B)
received (538)

16,038
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19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 10. BiBATFIZER &)

Details of the Group’s associate as at 31 March 2011 RZE——F=HA=1+—HBEZ
and 2010 are as follows: F=H E+—E$$H9§§“72?|ﬁ
LU
Place of Attributable interest
Form of incorporation and proportion
business and principal Class of of voting power held
Name of associate structure place of operation  share held by the Group Principal activity
dAMEIBER  FERG rEEREREER
BENRAZER EBRRBEA TEEXBE 5 SEEL PA 2] TEXH
2011 2010
—2__& -3-°T
Hoi Bun Godown Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary 50% 50% Property investment
Company Limited company & LiEk NERE

BEERAERAT BRAH

The summarised financial information in respect of the AEEEE AR 2T BHESTIMOT ¢
Group’s associate is set out below:

2011 2010
& -z =T7F
HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BETT

Total assets BERAE 37,876 32,089
Total liabilities BEHE (13) (14)
Net assets FEE 37,863 32,075

Group’s share of net assets of 7<% B & (5 B & A &)

an associate FEE 18,932 16,038
Revenue g %5 1,138 1,200
Profit for the year FERF 5,788 1,842
Group’s share of result RFEEREEE(GEE QA

and other comprehensive ¥EREMEEERA
income of an associate
for the year 2,894 921
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20. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 20. FERfIERBZES
ENTITIES

2011 2010
—B——F —F-ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT T

Cost of unlisted investments A 3E 7RI 4= 5

in jointly controlled entities ZIRE KA 10,000 10,000
Share of post-acquisition oG W 12 5 A
profit net of dividends (B U BRI PR E)
received 55,132 60,165
65,132 70,165
Details of the Group’s jointly controlled entities as at 31 RZE——F=ZA=F+—"HERZ_ZE—F
March 2011 and 2010 are as follows: F=ZRA=T—HBAREEHFAZEGEE
HEmMT
Place of Attributable interest
Form of incorporation and proportion
Name of jointly business and principal Class of of voting power
controlled entity structure place of operation  share held held by the Group Principal activities
dAMEIBER  FERG rEEREREER
LEEHERZER FRRBEA TEERHY 5 L PA g TEXRH
2011 2010
“B2—-f _T-%ZF
Hip Hing-Hanison Unincorporate Hong Kong N/A 50% 50% Building construction
Joint Venture W IEEE BE TEA for a basement,
HE — A E AT podium and
transfer plate
at Tung Chung
RN REL
e FER

BN

167



HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2010/2011

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4324 B & &< Mf 51
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20. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED

20. $FARFIERCE#E &)

ENTITIES (Continued)
Place of Attributable interest
Form of incorporation and proportion
Name of jointly business and principal Class of of voting power
controlled entity structure place of operation  share held held by the Group Principal activities
AMEIBER  FERG rEERERTER
LEZHERZER EBRERA TEEEHY 5l REEE2 LA TEXH
2011 2010
2% _T-TF
Hanison-Hip Hing Unincorporate Hong Kong N/A 50% 50% Building construction
Joint Venture W% BE ~ERA for townhouse
B — e development at
Tung Chung
and property
development at
Nos. 1 & 1E
La Salle Road
A RNRR B
FERFRERRDHE
IRIER 2 MEE R
Hip Hing-Hanison Unincorporate Hong Kong N/A 50% 50% Building construction
Joint Venture W IEEE BE TEA for superstructure
8 — sk work at Tung Chung
fIRRR LERER
I
Hanison-Hip Hing Unincorporate Hong Kong N/A 50% 50% Building construction
Joint Venture WIEEE BE TEA for superstructure
Hs — pEEE A work at Hong Kong
International Airport
IR ERERES 2
TERERTR
Crown Cosmos Limited liability British Virgin Ordinary 50% 50% Investment holding
Investments Limited company Islands/ Tk in Hong Kong
BFREERAF BREAF Hong Kong REBETRE
RERLES/ BRER
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20. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 20. XFAZHERBzE#E &

ENTITIES (Continued)
Place of Attributable interest
Form of incorporation and proportion
Name of jointly business and principal Class of of voting power
controlled entity structure place of operation  share held held by the Group Principal activities
AR EER  ARREG rEEEGRTER
LEEHERZER EREREA TEERBE 5 SEEL A2 TEXH
2011 2010
—¥—-F% _T-%F%

Poly Rising Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary 50% 50% Property

Development Limited company ) LRk development
RERERAR BRAA in Hong Kong

REBETNE
EREH

Hip Hing-Hanison Unincorporate Hong Kong N/A 50% 50% Building construction

Joint Venture WIEE ) TEA at Lam Tin
Hh#E — EHE AT fIRERMEETR
Hip Hing-Hansion Unincorporate Hong Kong N/A 50% 50% Building construction

Joint Venture WIEE 00 il at Tin Shui Wai
& — BEHE AR IR RKEIRNRETRR
The summarised financial information in respect of the AN B 5 Bl B 5 B 4 2 9 B Ak HE R
Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities attributable ER R UBERBENAT

to the Group’s interest therein, is set out below:

2011 2010
g5 -z =&
HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BETT

Current assets MENEE 151,001 192,537
Current liabilities mEaE (85,869) (122,372)
Non-current liabilities ERBEaE — —

Revenue recognised in profit  7E18%5 R RER A UL A
or loss (note) (M) 341,783 206,674

Expenses recognised in profit fE1B%5 P FER M X H
or loss (256,316) (148,906)
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20. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED

21.

ENTITIES (Continued)

Note: This includes the revenue of a jointly controlled entity

attributable to the Group’s interest therein of
HK$245,480,000 (2010: HK$166,871,000) earned from
sale of properties which were developed for sale.

20 XEARFERZER »©

et : BREKARELHERENDERME

WIEER A ZEAEHBKE
245,480,0007C (ZE— T4 : B
166,871,0007T) B FIA &5 Bl 2 &£ E
e B EREH B Y #m -

GOODWILL 21. @8
HK$'000
BEETT
COST A
At 1 April 2009, 31 March 2010 RIEZNFWNA—H —ZE—ZTF=A=+—H
and 31 March 2011 r—ZE——%F=H=+—H 2,980
IMPAIRMENT BE
Impairment loss recognised during RZZEZENRF=RA=+—H
the year ended 31 March 2009 IEFEERNREEE 2,980
At 31 March 2010 and RZEBE—ZF=A=+—"HK
31 March 2011 —E——%F=H=+—H 2,980
CARRYING AMOUNT BREE

At 31 March 2011

R-E——F=A=1+—H

At 31 March 2010

R-E—ZFEF=A=1+—H
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22. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

23.

FOR SALE

At the end of the reporting period, total cumulative
borrowing costs capitalised in the properties under
development for sale were HK$28,220,000 (2010:
HK$24,121,000).

The carrying value of properties under development for
sale comprises properties in Hong Kong under leases as
follows:

22 RERZHEME

RBEIRAR  WENMEREBRBFRZHE
MEANZBRFBERATBREAER
28,220,000 (ZZE—ZF : K
24,121,0007T) °

BRP2FEVEDUNREBEARER
ABAENYE - REEWT :

2011 2010

—E2——F —E-EF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

Long lease REHEE 380,338 28,874
Medium-term lease RHIHE 395,165 375,645
775,503 404,519

The amount is expected to be recovered more than twelve
months after the end of the reporting period.

BEHZRERRNBRERRR DN+ =
BRI HmE -

INVENTORIES 23. #®
2011 2010
—EB——F —ZE-EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Building materials REME 21,163 25,303

Health products — finished — f##EES — K&

goods 9,946 12,847
Others — finished goods Hh — &k m 2,421 143
33,530 38,293
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24. AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE (PAYABLE) ON

24. [l (B S IERER

CONTRACT WORK
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BE T T TEEETF T
Contract costs incurred FrEA 2 & #IRAS N
plus recognised profits 21 5808 M
less recognised losses BEREE 7,186,387 6,965,891
Less: Progress billings B EEERR (7,141,807) (6,937,938)
44,580 27,953
Analysed for reporting WEBM 2O
purposes as:
Amounts receivable on eI A # T2 FIR
contract work 171,631 157,353
Amounts payable on JERT &4 TI2FRIA
contract work (127,051) (129,400)
44,580 27,953

FEU (FE ) B 8 TR2 IR/ & M A ER 5
B R mERREN T —EARREE -

Both balances of amounts receivable (payable) on
contract work are expected to be settled within twelve
months after the end of the reporting period.
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25. PROGRESS PAYMENTS RECEIVABLE

Progress payments receivable represent the amounts
receivable, after deduction of retention money, for
construction services which usually fall due within 30
days after the work is certified. Retention money is usually
withheld from the amounts receivable for work certified.
50% of the retention money is normally due upon
completion of construction services and the remaining
50% portion is due upon finalisation of construction
accounts. Retention money receivable is expected to be
settled within twelve-month after the finalisation of
construction accounts (note 26).

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=R=1+—HILFE

25. B ERERIA

FEUCE SRS IR R E 218 2 FE W
BERBHRIER  —REARTIEERSRE
B=TBAXN - HERCRIETEZ
EUWRIR - REE —REKINE - EH
BAOZATEBEET IR  mHEK
BB TAIREEER RKRERRKE
H - FUREl S TAMENREERR T
—fEAREE (FI5E26) -

2011 2010
— —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Progress payments JEY T 51| %18 2 #E[E 3008 -
receivable from:
Subsidiaries of HKR BEEEFEBEEEFR AT
International Limited (TELZEHBR])
(“HKRI") (Note) Z BB~ Al (f5E) 13,619 19,600
Third parties £= 4,073 12,549
17,692 32,149

Note: HKRI is a substantial shareholder of, and has significant
influence, over the Company. In addition, CCM Trust
(Cayman) Limited (“CCM Trust”) (see note 27), is a
substantial shareholder of both the Company and HKRI,
and has significant influence over HKRI.

Management closely monitors the credit quality of
progress payments receivables. 100% (2010: 94%) of
the progress payments receivable that are neither past
due nor impaired to be of a good credit quality based on
historical repayment from the debtors.

BicE - BERBRAARRZEERT - BY
RRBIBERFESN - /I - CCM
Trust (Cayman) Limited ([CCM
Trust]) (REE27) AR F) K& EHEEH
BrzEERE  BYEEBREEEKR
FEAN o

ERETIERBUERFAZEEER
= REEBAZERESL - AFE100
% (ZE—TF : 94%) 2 FRYWCEE IR
WEBHSRE  FEEERI -
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25. PROGRESS PAYMENTS RECEIVABLE

(Continued)

The aged analysis of progress payments receivable is as

follows:

. BGEE R (&)

JEWHE 2 SRR 2 AR e

ranTr :

2011 2010

—B——F —FT-ZF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Within 30 days =t+HK 17,692 30,230
31-60 days —t+—Z=x1+A — 94
61-90 days At—E=h+A — 1,806
Over 90 days Bidh+ A — 19
17,692 32,149

The following is an aging analysis of progress payments

B 8 BB R VBB 2 FE WU 8 50R 2 Bk

receivable which are past due but not impaired: BT
2011 2010
—E——F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
61-90 days At—EA+A — 1,806
Over 90 days Bidh+a — 19

1,825
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26. RETENTION MONEY RECEIVABLE 26. BElgiRE &
2010
—E-TF
HK$'000
BT
Retention money RT3 I8 2
receivable from: REZ :
Subsidiaries of HKRI BB 2 M B QA 21,205
Third parties F=% 85,831
107,036
Amount receivable —F AR W IR
within one year 86,646
Amount receivable —F & EW A
after one year 20,390
107,036
27. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND 27. BIKRIE - MERTEFNRIE
PREPAYMENTS
2010
—E-TF
HK$'000
BT
Trade debtors GO 39,859
Other receivables H b fE WL 5B 105
Deposits A 6,986
Prepayments SEANE 4177

51,127
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27. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND

PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

The Group allows a credit period of not more than 90
days (2010: not more than 90 days) to its customers.
Before accepting any new customer, the Group will
internally assess the credit quality of the potential
customers and define appropriate credit limit. Other
receivables are unsecured, interest-free and are
repayable on demand.

Management closely monitors the credit quality of trade
debtors. 70% (2010: 62%) of the trade debtors that are
neither past due nor impaired to be of a good credit quality
based on their historical repayments. Included in the
Group’s trade debtors balance are trade debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$11,487,000 (2010:
HK$15,085,000) which are past due at the end of the
reporting period for which the Group has not provided
for impairment loss. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances. There are no balances
included in other receivables which are past due.

The aged analysis of trade debtors presented based on
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as
follows:

27.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4324 B & &< Mf 51

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-Z——5=-"F=+—HIFEE

BRRIE - ZeRAMARER @)

AEBGETEEPTZRATE (CE—
TE AZRATH) ZHERE - A%E
EERMTEPZABEEREFPZIEEE
EENEE - YEFTRBEERE -
Hi IR EEA - 2B RIRELK

B -

EEESRYERBERFEZEEE
= WRATO% (ZE—FF : 62%) &
WRIERTEmH - NERE - MIBEE
HisEms EEEERT - ~&EB 2
EWRBLEABIFRRAEXOAEL
11,487,0007C 2 EWFIE (ZE—FF ¢
75 #15,085,0007T) * RIEHRABE S
HA T AN £ B 30 48 BL LR E B 18 1 B
e ANEBEBBERZSERITEEMIE
B EMERRBTEREC A
g o

PN TRIR 2 BR e o AT TR IR AR Sl 5 B K
EHZEZERH  BENWET :

2011 2010

—E——fF —E-FF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T EEETF T

Within 30 days =tEBRA 15,222 24,216
31-60 days =+—Z/X+tH 13,249 3,344
61-90 days At—ZEA+A 1,858 5395
Over 90 days @@+ Ha 7,924 6,904
38,253 39,859
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27. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

The following is an ageing analysis of trade debtors which

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=R=1+—HILFE

27. BIKFRIE - BMERTEMARE (&)

BB M ERIERE 2 RUIR Z Rk D

are past due but not impaired: o
2011 2010
—B——F —F-ZF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Within 30 days =+tHRK 469 1,306
31-60 days =+—zA+H 2,422 2 305
61-90 days At—Z=A+H 868 4,570
Over 90 days BB+ A 7,728 6,904
11,487 15,085

Included in the above trade debtors are amounts due
from related parties of trading nature as follows:

A EERKRIBARIERKBAEATR
BHMEZRENT

2011 2010
—E——F —ZT-ZTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Property management funds £ 8 % B R ~ K B 2 7)
which are managed FrEl s MEEEE
by subsidiaries of HKRI — 14
Jointly controlled entities AEE 2z HEEHE
of the Group = —
Indirect wholly owned FICCM Trustf#
subsidiary of CCM Trust 2ERBZMBAA
(Note) (B %) 3,120 4,131
3,120 4,145

Note: CCM Trust is a substantial shareholder of the Company
and has significant influence over the Company. In
addition, CCM Trust is holding the shares of the Company
as the trustee of certain but not identical discretionary
trusts of which three directors of the Company are among

the discretionary objects.

B&E

CCM TrustBA R a2 FERE - B
HARBERNTES - 1o - CCM
TrustbAE THRBBEFLHETLAZ
FHBEUERS  ZEETZWE
ZHEAERE=FZARAES -
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27.

28.

29.

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

27. BIKFRIE - BMERTEMRE (&)

Movement in the impairment losses recognised on trade FEWFRIER REREZS :
debtors:
2011 2010
—E2——F = —FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Balance at the beginning F ) KR
of the year 2,000 —
Impairment losses recognised & & 32 & FE W ZXIE & (B &5 18
on trade debtors 649 2,000
Balance at the end of the year F K 4584 2,649 2,000
Included in the impairment loss recognised on trade EWFIENERRBEBBERERER
debtors are individually impaired trade debtors with an BB HE2,649,0007T (ZE—FF : B
aggregated balance of HK$2,649,000 (2010: 2 ,000,0007T) # & Bl E B 1B 2 FE Y
HK$2,000,000) which have either been placed under CRERWFIENERALELBRK
liquidation or in financial difficulties. The Group does not Eﬂ‘%tﬂﬁl%ﬁ REERFBELEER
hold any collateral over these balances. B E R o
Out of the Group’s trade debtors a balance amounting to AEBZRWHIEFR  LEBSEEE
HK$3,120,000 (2010: HK$4,131,000) is denominated ZREEE N B SIME 2 8 A
in RMB, a currency other than the functional currency of ARMIE 2 B%3,120,0007T (=T —
the relevant group entity. T4 : B#4,131,0007T) ©
AMOUNT DUE FROM A JOINTLY 28. B FAEHNERRER

CONTROLLED ENTITY

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable ZRIEN B - RF B R0 E KA
on demand. e

INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING 29. FERECKRE

Investments held for trading comprise investments in BIEBEECIRE  BERBRA LT
equity securities listed on the Stock Exchange whose fair RARFEHIZE 2 A F1EAE334,0007T

value amounted to HK$334,000 (2010: HK$338,000). (ZZ—F4F : B%338,0007T) °
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30. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 30. T I A
2011 2010
—B——F —F-ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T

Commodity forward contracts: EmEE A 4

Derivative financial assets TTHEMBEE — 1,291
Derivative financial liabilities PTEMGaE — —
— 1,291

During the years ended 31 March 2011 and 2010, the
Group used commodity forward contracts to minimise its
exposure to price fluctuations of its raw materials. The
Group does not currently designate any hedging
relationship on the commodity forward contracts for the
purpose of hedge accounting. The fair values of
commodity contracts were determined by reference to
the forward price of related metals quoted from London
Metal Exchange as at the end of the reporting period. At
the respective maturity dates, the contracts are settled
net in cash with the issuer. Major terms of the commodity
forward contracts are set out below:

HE-_ZT——F=-A=1T—HEZZ—
TFE=A=+—HILFERN ~EEF
AEmEEEAKERMEHER 2K
R ERIE o HIFAEE L E AL H
SHMEEMmBAES QOEETA L HE
BReBAMAENZAFEERTFRGASB
RSGFmAEeBrRABRRTE - £
HEFIER @ AR SHEBITERET
FRAE  EmHESNEZERET
T

2010 —E-—m
Quantity Commodity

Currency Commodity (in tonnes) Maturity forward price

B B m BE (W) A AmPEER

usD Aluminium 65 2 June 2010 USD1,688/metric tonne
ETT e “E-ZTFXAZH BWAM1,688%ET

usD Aluminium 500 10 August 2010 USD2,085/metric tonne
ETT e —E-EFN\A+H BAME2,085% T

The Group’s derivative financial instruments which
amounting to HK$nil (2010: HK$1,291,000) are
denominated in USD, the currency other than the
functional currencies of the relevant group entities.

REBUEBEREE 2 IEEEE U
2ERIIEZITEME T A BUETY
BzBEZTT(ZE—ZF : 8K
1,291,0007T) °
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HE-Z——5=-"F=+—HIFEE

31. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group
and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less at an average interest rate of 0.01%
(2010: 0.49%) per annum.

The Group’s bank balances that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of the

relevant group entities are set out in below.

31. RITHBRRIAL

RUTBHKRLAZERAEETA2RE
REBRBITRAZIHA LR =A%
—@EAZEBRITER - FHENXRG
0.01% (ZZF—Z%F : FHXR0.49%) °

AEENBEHEEER

BE &1 ASN

ZEWIEZRITREBREIIMT

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T SR T
MOP YR TT 2,636 2,713
AUD BT 28 948
usSDh ETT 672 116
RMB AR 2,609 17
32. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 32. BENFRERETCEFMRIEA
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T SR T
Trade payables e ZR0E 46,356 46,564
Retention payable FERTIRE 2
— amount payable — —FRERFIE
within one year 64,458 77,456
Retention payable FERTIRE 2
— amount payable — —FREMNFIE
after one year 14,296 14,759
Accrued operating costs RitEER AR ER
and charges 63,191 51,595
Accrued costs for R RETIERA
construction work 36,819 47,963
Receipts in advance AW 2 F I8 — 8,284
Temporary receipts Fe Br W B 2 3R IR 4,527 4,626
Deposits received B EZ & 6,081 6,187
235,728 057 434
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=R=1+—HILFE

32. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 32. EffRRIEREECEFIRIE (&)

The aged analysis of trade payables based on the invoice ENRIBEZ Rk REZERH) oA
date is as follows: T

2011 2010

—E——F —T-TF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BETT

Within 30 days =—+tHRW 38,581 37,785

31-60 days =+t—Zx+H 2,334 3,849

61-90 days ~t—=N+H 432 681

Over 90 days B@ENTH 5,009 4,249

46,356 46,564

Included in the above trade payables are amounts due TLRENREBEANBRENEEALR
to related parties of trading nature as follows: B5E 2 FIBRT

2011 2010

—E2——F —ZT-ZTF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BETT

Subsidiaries of HKRI e vl Nl =N 9 12
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33. BANK LOANS

The bank loans are repayable as follows:

33. |MITHEMK

JEEE ZSRITERMT -

31.3.2011 31.3.2010 1.4.2009
— —E-TF —ETNF
=A=+—H =A=+—H mHA—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BEET T BEET T
(Restated) (Restated)
(#eE35) (#eE:5)
Carrying amount FEEEREE (M) -
repayable (note):
Within one year —F R 364,789 554,300 556,713
In the second year NE_FR 42,000 5,000 5,500
In the third to RE=ZZFRFA
fifth years inclusive (BREEEMT) 177,800 44,000 49,500
After the fifth years HBEAF 26,000 27,000 25,500
610,589 630,300 637,213
Analysis of carrying BREE DT -
amounts:
Amounts due —FRNIHIER
within one year shown RBBaEZER
under current liabilities 364,789 554,300 556,713
Carrying amount of BARIREBARER
bank loans that —FREEERE
are not repayable R ARBERIEE
within one year ZIRITIEEREA
from the end of (RRBBEEET
the reporting period E )
but contain a repayment
on demand
clause (shown under
current liabilities) 204,800 31,000 31,500
569,589 585,300 588,213
Amounts shown under NERIEREBAEAR
non-current liabilities x| 41,000 45,000 49,000
610,589 630,300 637,213
Bank overdrafts RITBEX 5,289 — —
Bank loans IRITER 605,300 630,300 637,213
610,589 630,300 637,213
Secured HHEH 365,300 370,300 374,300
Unsecured 4K 1 245,289 260,000 262,913
610,589 630,300 637,213
The bank loans are secured by charges over certain ZERTERUARESEE THWEER

properties of the Group, which are disclosed in note 38.

o FIBNHEISHHE -
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33. BANK LOANS (Continued)

Note: The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment
dates set out in the respective loan agreements.

The Group’s bank loans are floating-rate borrowings which
are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The
interest is charged at a range from HIBOR + 0.60% to
HIBOR + 2.00% per annum (31.3.2010: from HIBOR +
0.60% to HIBOR + 2.00% per annum and 1.4.2009: from
HIBOR + 0.60% to HIBOR + 2.00% per annum).

The weighted average effective interest rates on the
Group’s loans is 1.49% (31.3.2010: 1.43% and 1.4.2009:
1.37%) per annum.

The Group’s loans that are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currencies of the relevant group
entities are set out below:

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=R=1+—HILFE

33. MITER (&)

MieE : ZEBREFENEERIBHZEAE
KEHEER -

REBZBRITERZIBNBEINEZ
ZENFERER - FREBHEBRITRZE
FEM0.60%EFBEITRERSM
2.00%:tHE o (ZE—ZTF=A=+—H
F o FREABBRITRZENRBIN0.6%
EEBRITREREN2.00% KX -—BFA,
FHA—A : FIEKHEBRITRAZERFS
MO0.6%ZE B BIRITRIZEIFE112.00%)

AEBERZMEFHERENE A
1.49% (ZE—ZFF=HA=+—H :143
BE_ZEZANFMA—H : 1.33%) °

AEENEHEEER ZHEERE AN
ZEWIEZRITEREIINMT

31.3.2011 31.3.2010 1.4.2009

—g——& —T-TF _"TEAF

=A=+—H =A=+—H MmA—H

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BEER sMTR BETR

MOP P — — 2,913
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34. DEFERRED TAXATION

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)
of the Group and movements thereon during the current

and prior years:

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2010/2011

34.

i 3E 1R IR

AEBEFRELEHRBRE (BE) ERS
@A FEHMELE 2 ZEBWT

Fair value
Accelerated change of
tax investment Tax
depreciation properties losses Total
RENE
R AFE
e pd | BKEE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETIT AT AT BT T
At 1 April 2009 RZEZNFMNA—H 9,938 18,653 (2,035) 26,556
Charge (credit) to consolidated ~ RZEELEA
income statement for the year Wz &R P H (Gt A) 3,179 11,863 (3,920) 11,122
At 31 March 2010 R-ZZE—FF
—A=+—H 13,117 30,516 (5,955) 37,678
Charge (credit) to consolidated =~ RAFEE LA
income statement for the year Wz &R P H (Gt A) (2,848) 19,957 2,301 19,410
At 31 March 2011 N-ZE——%
—A=+—H 10,269 50,473 (3,654) 57,088

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of HK$97,983,000 (2010: HK$88,893,000)
available for offset against future profit. A deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of HK$22,143,000
(2010: HK$36,091,000) of such losses. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$75,840,000 (2010: HK$52,802,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. All the
unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward

indefinitely.

RBEBAR - NEBRABZHBEER
75 #97,983,000T (=T —F4F : B
88,893,0007T) A A{EHIERKR 2k
F - B IBEEBK22,143,0007T (=
T—T4F : B#36,091,0007T) R AIE
ERIBEE - AR TREMETRKR 2
Mo BEREKBTEEBEELSR
75,840,000 (ZZE —ZFF : B
52,802,0007T) R ABIELERBEE © AT
BARERHEBBAIERALESE o



BB A BT R AR A7) 2010/20114F )

35.

36.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 Bf %R 2= it 3%

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=R=1+—HILFE

SHARE CAPITAL 35. k&
No. of shares HK$'000
B EE BT
Authorised: ERE
Shares of HK$0.10 each EEEE0.107T 2 & h
Balance as at 1 April 2009, RZEZNFMWA—AB -
31 March 2010 —E-EF=-RA=+—HK
and 31 March 2011 —E——F=A=t—Hz&E& 800,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITRERE
Shares of HK$0.10 each HEEB0.107T 2 %D
Balance as at 1 April 2009 RZZEZENFEA—AR
and 31 March 2010 —E-EF=F=1t—H2z&E® 443,236,068 44,324
Bonus shares issued FARAEBITAR
during the year 44,323,606 4,432
Balance as at 31 March 2011 RZ-Z——F=A=+—Hz &% 487,559,674 48,756

By an ordinary resolution passed on 10 August 2010,
the issued share capital was increased by way of a bonus
issue by applying HK$4,432,000 charging to the
contributed surplus account in payment in full at par of
44,323,606 shares of HK$0.10 each on the basis of one
bonus share for every ten shares.

All bonus shares rank pari passu with the then existing
shares.

RESERVES

Contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the aggregate share capital of the
subsidiaries at the date on which they were acquired by
the Company and the nominal amount of the Company’s
shares issued at the time of the group corporate
reorganisation, less the par value of the bonus shares
issued by the Company.

Special reserve of the Group represents the aggregate of
contributions from the then shareholders of the
companies comprising the Group and other subsidiaries
of HKRI before the group corporate reorganisation.

36.

BER_ZE—ZSFNATHABRZLE
KB BAARRAMARBREDBE
4,432,0007T © iR BRFAE TR PJER
T—IRATAR 2 B2 - 3£9744,323,606/%
ERAEEEEK0.I0OTEHMER A Z4
A% - 12 INEBEITIRA o

PIBARERBERNESTHZEERSE
RER -

& fm

AEBZBARE  BRARBWEZ
EMBARER  ZEMBLRRZBA
BBEMNAREARART R EITRN
HMEZZE  BREARARDHETARZ
E1E °

AEBEFRIFERE  HERKAEEZ AT
KR AR EAR EEBIRR 2 ERRREK
ANETHE -
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the Company’s existing share option scheme
(the “Scheme”) which was adopted on 3 January 2002
and became effective on 9 January 2002, all directors
(including independent non-executive directors), full-time
employees and consultants of the Company, its
subsidiaries and/or its associates are eligible to participate
in the Scheme.

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the participants
who have been granted options under the Scheme to
subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company with the
opportunity to acquire proprietary interest in the Company
and to encourage them to work towards enhancing the
value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of
the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

(@) Maximum number of shares available
for issuance

The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company shall not exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue as at the date of approval of
the Scheme. A total of 28,367,108 shares of the
Company is available for issue under the Scheme
which represents 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of approval of the
Scheme and approximately 5.8% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of this
report.

The overall limit on the number of shares of the
Company which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company must not exceed 30% of the shares of
the Company in issue from time to time.

37.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4324 B & &< Mf 51

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-Z——5=-"F=+—HIFEE

MRz iRt &

RIBARRBIREZ BT & ([ZE
2 (RZZZE-F-HA=HEHEHN =
EE-_F-ANBER ARE - EWE
RAR/ B ENRMBEES (B8
FEHITES) 2HESKBRFELHE
ZETEI B -

it 8lz B R BRRIEZE BIERE
REARBARBERRZ28E 1R
HEBARRRR AR 2 HE - WEE
SEERRNRNARERR Z B -
REARANRERD ZEEMS S -

(a) ATHBFITZRHEBE LR

AR AT B IR IR R AT &) R AN A BMEAA
Hip et 8% H B I T ATT R
TITORD BB TNEBBRZA
EMERCBHITARARN K
10% © &% &t S| R 31T 2 N AR
7 #8202 28,367,1080% -+ 1 7%&T &
WHEARRR ZEEITHRAN
10% @ RAHmEBBPARR 2B %
TR #)5.8% °

RIFZ A & AR BRI E 5T S
FrB R MR ARITEBRERET
£ 7] 1T 2 AR BN MBI
HBEAR RN D ETZARAIK
130% 2 IR
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(b) Maximum entitlement of each
participant

(1

(2)

The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted
to each participant (including both exercised
and unexercised options) under the Scheme
or any other share option schemes adopted
by the Company in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the shares in issue unless
otherwise approved by shareholders of the
Company.

Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or any of their
respective associates (as defined in rule 1.01
of the Listing Rules), would result in the shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted to
such person in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of the grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of
the shares in issue; and

(ii) having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the shares on date of
grant in excess of HK$5.0 million,

such grant of option shall be subject to prior
approval of the shareholders of the Company
who are not connected persons of the
Company as defined in the Listing Rules of
the Stock Exchange.

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=R=1+—HILFE

37. AR ® (©)

(b) HEHE MRS LR

(N

(2)

BRIFEARBIBER S 1EHLAE -
BRI ER+ (@ A B
RIBLET SIS A R BIERA 21T
AEMERETSRER2HE
EREZBRE (BREETE
FORTT R R i) AT {82 1T 3%
TRAIFEIT 2R ER - &
BHEBCD BTN 1% -

fimA D7z F ERRIBL
FRTEFHESAZMEA
(EER EMRAELOMER) X
HERE  ERNEERH
BH (BHEZA) (LER+ (@
AHBRZATER L KGR
2 — IR T M 31T
K AT 2 LD

(i) ABEEBETRMD.1I%
AE: &

(i) #{EHEEHS5,000,000
T (R
HA &) AR 7 2 W T (B &
) -

R IRB R RIS AR A
R (WIARF 2 BEAL
(EE AWz ETREAD)
BRI
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Period within which the shares must be
taken up under an option

Within ten years from the date on which an option
is granted or such shorter period as the Board of
Directors or the relevant committee thereof may
specify.

Minimum period, if any, for which an
option must be held before it can be
exercised

At the time of granting an option, the Board of
Directors or the relevant committee thereof must
specify the minimum period(s) and/or achievement
of performance targets, if any, for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised.

Options may be exercised at any time after the
minimum periods of time held and/or achievement
of performance targets, if any, specified in the terms
of grant at the time of grant.

Remaining life of the Scheme
The Scheme has a life of 10 years and will expire

on 2 January 2012 unless otherwise terminated in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme.

37. MBxEEE (@)

(c)

(d)

(e)

1R 4% Rl B 4 o A RO R B 170 2 R
PR

AR NERE, AR FHENE
EERAHEEEEGHRTELRAE
g\ﬁﬁaﬁ °

MR ER AT FITEAMZRER
FHRE (WR)

RELBREZE E58XEH
ExZ8euARTEERERA T
TR 2 RERFA R JEBRR
BIRHRE (E) -

R R P R B R SR P RT B 2 B
AR/ XEBXRRBEHMH
(B BERAEFRFEITE -

At BIZBRTFER
BRIFRIBAZ AT BIIRRT AR L - &

Rl

JE
ZATEI 2 BEMER A TF - Wi
—E-——_F—A-HEm-

A
Q
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
(e) Remaining life of the Scheme (Continued)

The exercise price of the option shall be no less
than the higher of:

(i)  the closing price of the shares of the Company
as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued
by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant,
which must be a business day;

(i)  the average closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five Stock Exchange business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of the shares of the
Company on the date of grant.

A consideration of HK$1 shall be paid upon the
acceptance of the option.

No option has been granted under the Scheme
since its adoption.

38. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s bank loans
were secured by the Group’s assets as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=R=1+—HILFE

37. MAxiERTE (»
(e) EXRTBIZERTFIR (@

BlE 2 TEELAENMIR TII=
EZRE

() BPARERE RIS AR
Rt 2 AR B B W T (B
(ZHBEARZEER)

(i BPARERRLAYAAE
§E 2P 2K B B 2 BERER AT
Az RRB AW E
K

(i) ARARBORFEE A ZE
E -

RERBERERSANEELITER
A& -

AR R Z A BRI |IX T
RO e

38. HEEH

RBEBR  UARB 2 EE(FRTE
RZ BT

2011 2010
=E——F —ZE-EF
HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BETT

Investment properties "REYE

Leasehold land and buildings HELHRESF

Properties under development BRP2HFEME
for sale

254,090 494,280
19,948 20,871
542,467 183,063

816,505 698,214
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-Z——5=-"F=+—HIFEE

39.

40.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 March 2010, the Group has given guarantees to
banks in respect of performance bonds entered into by
the jointly controlled entities amounting to HK$650,000
(2011: nil).

During the year ended 31 March 2004, legal actions in
respect of allegations of copyright infringement and
defamation have been taken against certain subsidiaries
of the Company carrying on its health products business.
No further steps have been taken against the Group in
respect of such actions after the court hearing for
directions to appoint experts and exchange witness
statements since 2004. At 31 March 2011, the directors
of the Company are of the opinion that in view of the
uncertainty, it is not practicable to assess the financial
effect.

COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
committed to contribute HK$231,500,000 (2010:
HK$231,500,000), representing 23.63% (2010: 23.63%)
of the anticipated project costs, for the joint development
of a site in So Kwun Wat, Hong Kong.

39.

40.

TS ERR M A

BARRAR

W-F-EF=B=

SR ) H B AT
Fﬁﬁ?650,OOO7E (ZT——%:
IR -

+—B NEEH®
ETEHRE RS
) [IR1T1E

BHE_ZZNF=-_A=Z1+—HLFE
N ARRIETREREEMES 2
B A AISRIL AR R E s 2 R IR
FRETEY BETOFHREAZEREK

X?fﬂ‘m/\ﬁ%}; EﬂZ?’El/j—\HAnﬂ'fé K
SHABHEAREZE—TTE - R

—F——fZA=+—8 ARTESE
RA - ERETRE - SRR
SFEEABEE -

BERiE

RARERRK  AEBEEEHRLRE
@fﬁﬁwﬁﬁﬁﬁ%Zimiﬁ%M
231,500,0007T (= TF B
%1%0%%ﬂ2§i HTEETIE B K
R223.63%(ZF—FF : 23.63%) °
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41. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

As lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments in
respect of rented premises under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=R=1+—HILFE

. EEHERE

AHEA

RARERR - AEBRET AT HEHL
LHEEHERMEZ BREERS A
EwmT

2011 2010

—F——-F T FF

HK$’'000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

Within one year —FR 5,585 3,767
In the second to FEERF

fifth year inclusive (BIEEERT) 13,466 1,504

19,051 5,271

Minimum lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for its office properties, warehouses and shops
which amounting to HK$810,000, HK$2,653,000 and
HK$3,795,000 (2010: HK$672,000, HK$2,024,000 and
HK$5,136,000) respectively. Average leases are
negotiable and rentals are fixed for lease term of three
years.

There are certain lease agreements, according to which
the Group is committed to pay the higher of a minimum
guaranteed amount or a monthly payment equivalent to
a prescribed percentage of a monthly sales as rental.
The minimum guaranteed rental payments are included
above. The respective contingent rental payment for the
year ended 31 March 2011 amounted to HK$229,000
(2010: HK$623,000).

RERERBEARBRRAEDR
RELEHEN2ES  2BEIFRE
#:810,0007T - /& #2,653,0007T & /& %
3,795,0007T (=T —F4F : &#672,000
7T - B #2,024,0007T K78 #5,136,000
70) o —RABAIAILARER - BN =44

E—EBEAY  BEAEEZEHEX
HHERESERAMNKE (ERRIZA
EEBEEDIEAES) METRESMN
B mEREASFRBEBSER LR
N-BE-_T——F=ZA=Z+—HBLHF
& - B ATE € FKIE BEERE 229,000
T (ZZ—ZF : F¥623,0007T) °
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41.

42.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 41. BEHRE®RIE 2
(Continued)
As lessor HEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RAFRERR - AEBEEHBEPETL -
contracted with tenants for the following future minimum ERREMEzBERERASOT
lease payments in respect of the investment properties:
2011 2010
—E——F —ET-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Within one year —F R 17,633 15,319
In the second to FEERF
fifth year inclusive (BEEEMSE) 18,383 6,251
36,016 21,570
Leases are negotiable for lease term of three years. MAORAER  FHFHRR=F -
RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 42. R kiEF &t &

With the implementation of Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme in Hong Kong on 1 December 2000, the Group
has maintained the defined contribution scheme
registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance and has obtained an exemption satisfying the
requirements of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (“MPFO").

To comply with the MPFO, a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) with voluntary contributions
has been established. New employees must join the MPF
Scheme since its commencement on 1 December 2000.
The Group contributes 5% to 10% of the relevant payroll
costs for each employee to the MPF Scheme, which
contribution is matched by employees.

BEER _TTTFE+ _A-BHEBEBET
BEMEATEREE AEBERIRE
B SR R OR T 81 15k 61 1 i 2 8 R AR ARG
g YEEHRRETRIERTER S
Bl (M B2 5H1]) ZR5E -

RERBESIR - AREEERIEA
BREMEHERRzBESHE - ER_FF
TEE+ _A-HARKRETRESRE
& HMEEBLAENABEDRE - XK
B ABUEENBRIEAERIER
BHEEIFNANBEDZAEANZ
T HEREREEANS -
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42. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

(Continued)

The amounts charged to the consolidated income
statement represent contributions paid and payable to
the schemes by the Group at rates specified in the rules

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=R=1+—HILFE

42, BFEFIEHR ()

EHEARBEHREAANR B ASE
W R B RAEE 2 e R mET 8l
REMZHK - RERED ARG F

of the schemes less forfeitures arising from employees BEEDETHAABERASE 2EEM
leaving the Group prior to completion of qualifying service RUYHIR o REFERE ZFKIBUAT -
period. The amount for the year is as follows:
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
BT T BT T
Contributions paid JER R B AT HR
and payable 8,290 7,495
Forfeiture R YLK (704) 9)
7,586 7,486
At 31 March 2011 and 2010, there is no forfeited RZE——F=ZA=Z=+—HKZZT—F
contribution arose upon employees leaving the retirement FZA=Z+—H 2AREBEIENKE
benefit schemes and which were available to reduce FetBlmELERATRALRI RAREEE

contributions payable.

2 R Z I8 WK
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43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the conditional acquisition transaction as
described in note 44, the Group also entered into
transactions with the following related parties during the
year:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4324 B & &< Mf 51
For the year ended 31 March 2011
BHE-_Z—F=ZA=+—HLFE

. AEALR S

BRES FE44RT I 2 BIRIFIB R H 51 - AR
SEFANDEHTIEEATERNRS ¢

2011 2010
—F——F% T FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BE T T BT T
Construction income REEEEERE AR
from subsidiaries of HKRI BEIA 192,312 147,248
Construction income from e —RHERZESIE R
a jointly controlled entity BEWA 11,139 6,929
Project management income REARBZEERRTREER L
from a related company —HEEQF 2HAERBIA
in which a substantial
shareholder of the Company
has beneficial interest 3,368 4,131
Rental income received from REBEAQNRAETEER
a company associated with FEFRENTERREHEE
certain directors of the Company ~ — R AR E WA
or the substantial
shareholder of HKRI — 316
Rental expenses to MEEERNRZFEES
an associate (1,138) (1,200)
Interior and renovation REEEEBRHBRR R
income from subsidiaries HEtB AT 2R R
of HKRI and its associates WA 59 62
Compensation of key management FTEEHBABZHM

personnel

Details of the remuneration of key management
personnel, which are the directors and employees, during
the year were set out in note 12.

AEETREEAR (BEENESR) ZH

BB M L2A -



BB A BT R AR A7) 2010/20114F )
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44. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the reporting period, the Group entered
into a conditional sales and purchase agreement to
acquire 49% interest of an entity in the PRC for a basic
consideration of RMB80,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$93,720,000) (which may be subject
to further adjustment) and contingent consideration of
RMB22,785,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$26,693,000) less any pertaining deferred tax
liabilities in respect of PRC land appreciation tax and
enterprise income tax. The entity owns the land and has
the right to develop and construct office premises on the
land located in Haining, the PRC. The vendor, Clear Shine
International Limited (“Clear Shine”) is an indirect 65%
owned subsidiary of Mingly Corporation (“Mingly”), an
indirect subsidiary of a substantial shareholder of the
Company. The acquisition is still conditional and has not
been complete up to the date of approval of the
consolidated financial statements.

44.

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=R=1+—HILFE

RRER®E - AEBFT Y —BHEKHE
EHE ARE—FPEER 249%
- BEARE A ARYS0,000,0007T (F6
B 478 893,720,0007T) (7] Fift —
AE) - LARERAREE22,785,0007T
(FBE 4978 #26,693,0007T) B = A S
Hr B 4 3R E R R 1 TS B 2 (] A8
FRESHIEAE ZTPTEEEES T
REERZBRUATEEGE iy -
BRBEFZIAYE - B Clear Shine
International Limited ([Clear Shine]) %
Mingly Corporation (% h&E) (& 4]
ABARREEREZHENBAR) BE
BES% B AR - RILELRETH
HwEER  WHEEEDBAKHBERE
SR ©
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HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2010/2011

45. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE

COMPANY

Financial information of the Company at the end of the

reporting period includes:

M H RN

45. EAFIZMBEEH

RIBEHR  ARB2HBERBLE

31.3.2010
—E-TF
=A=+—8
HK$'000
BET T
Non-current assets FERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary "E B AT 326,740
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H iy fE U R TE 8
Amounts due FE B B A RIFRIE
from subsidiaries 21,531
Bank balances and cash RITEHRNIRES 521
22,060
Current liabilities REAGE
Other payables b fE T RRIE
and accrued charges N ERT & A 391
Amounts due FEAS BT B A B FRIE
to subsidiaries 350
741
Net current assets MBEEFE 21,319
Total assets less BEERRSEE
current liabilities 348,059
Capital and reserves AR A K 5% 1
Share capital f& A< 44,324
Reserves 1 303,735

348,059
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46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all
of which are wholly owned, at 31 March 2011 and 2010
are as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=R=1+—HILFE

46. X EMHE 2 FFH

RZFE——F=ZA=Z+—RAERZZT—F
F=ZA=+—HB ARAFENERA
HRE2EWBAR - FIBOT

Issued and fully
paid ordinary

Place of share capital/
incorporation/ registered capital/
Name of subsidiary registration/operation quota capital Principal activities
ERIRHBE
MR L ith B ZERAE
i PNEER =E 3L HEMER IRERAE FTEXK
(note 1)
(B 1)
Amwell Investments British Virgin US$1 Investment holding
Limited Islands/Hong Kong 1=t AT
REBELES /B
Brilliant Advance British Virgin us$2 Investment holding
Limited Islands/Hong Kong 2FTT WEZER
RBEAES /B
Camson Limited* Hong Kong HK$1 Property investment
EIEAFR AR B LT REWME
Care & Health Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Trading of health
FEMmEER AR BB BT products
BEEmE
Emwell Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Property investment
FBZBRAF] BE BT WEYE
Excel Gaining Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Property investment
1 AR A A £ LT REME
Famous Era International  Hong Kong HK$1 Property investment
Limited o BT BREWE

SEBRRERATE
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-Z——5=-"F=+—HIFEE
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46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

Place of
incorporation/
registration/operation

46. X EME L FFER @

Issued and fully
paid ordinary
share capital/
registered capital/
quota capital

Principal activities

ERIRHBE
SRS i B ZEREK
i NI E=R =E 31 AMERPRERAE FEXK
(note 1)
(B EE1)
Forever Gainer Hong Kong HK$2 Property development
Development Limited A B2 MEE R
KIBERAR AT
General Target Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Property investment
HMERRAF] BB 75%10,0007T MERE
Hamfield Enterprises Hong Kong HK$2 Property holding
Limited N B2 MERE
HrEtEARAA
Hanison Construction Hong Kong Ordinary shares Property construction
Company Limited =" HK$1,000 e
B RERR AR Deferred shares
HK$60,000,000
(note 2)
T @ARB 1,000
i T R
60,000,0007t (F$5E2)
Hanison Construction British Virgin Us$2 Investment holding
Holdings (BVI) Limited  Islands/Hong Kong 2T AT
(Note 3) (Fff3E3) KEBRRES&E
Hanison Contractors Hong Kong HK$2 Property construction
Limited o B2 1) 2 R 5
B s 2 AR A A
Hanison Estate Services Hong Kong HK$2 Provision of property
Limited BB BT management services

T ERBBR QA

W) % 8BRS
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46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

Place of
incorporation/
registration/operation

For the year ended 31 March 2011

HE-F——F=A=t—HILEE

46. T EMB LA FHEE ©)

Issued and fully
paid ordinary
share capital/
registered capital/
quota capital

Principal activities

ERIRHBE
AR ith B ZERAE
i NGRS =E 31 HEfMER IRERAE FTEXK
(note 1)
(B 1)
Hanison Estate Service Hong Kong HK$1 Dormant
(China) Limited# o BT TirEx
B AR (P ER)
BRAR#
Hanison Foundation Hong Kong HK$1 Property construction
Limited o BT E
FEBWETIEERAA
Hanison Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Investment holding
FESER AR A A BB LT REER
Hanison Interior & Hong Kong HK$2 Provision of interior
Renovation Limited 9 B2 and renovation
FEBEERNEE services
BRAT] 580 I A S AR TS
Hanison (Macau) Limited  Macau MOP25,000 Property construction
B s ORPI) AR A A R 25,000,297t ESE-1
Hanison Project Hong Kong HK$2 Provision of
Management Limited BB BT property leasing
FEBIEEEREBRAA and marketing
services and project
management
MERS & ERE
NIEE ER
Hantex Engineering Hong Kong HK$1 Plant maintenance and
Limited BB BT servicing
BLETIZERAA TS #E e R B 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4324 B & &< Mf 51

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-Z——5=-"F=+—HIFEE

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/

Name of subsidiary registration/operation

46. X EME L FFER @

Issued and fully
paid ordinary
share capital/
registered capital/
quota capital

Principal activities

ERIRHBE
FEM AR L ith B ZERAE
iig- PN EE =E 3L HEMER IRERAE FEXK
(note 1)
(B 1)
Healthcorp Trading Hong Kong HK$2 Trading of health
Limited B B2 products and
EERCEAERAT investment holding
HEERESH K
A R
Heatex Ceramic Limited Hong Kong HK$400,000 Property development
w2 ARAF BE 7 #400,0007T e
Million Hope Industries Hong Kong HK$11,000,000 Supply and installation
Limited &5 78 #511,000,0007T of building materials
ETEXARAA HIE I 2 R S R
Retailcorp Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Sales of health products
ZECEARAT B EHE2TT fEERE miHE
Rich Color Limited British Virgin Us$1 Investment holding
FEBRAA Islands/Hong Kong 1%t WEZER
RBRAKS BF
Sanney Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Property investment
BREBRART B LT MERE
Senior Rich Development  Hong Kong HK$10,380 Property investment
Limited B 75 #10,3807T YEZE
FomERAR AR
Sunny Oriental Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Investment holding
MEERAA BE BT REZER
Tai Kee Pipes Limited Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 Trading of building
TR BR AT &5 782 000,0007T materials

BEMEES
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BE-2——F=A=+ALFE

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 46. TEME L FIHE )

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

Place of
incorporation/
registration/operation

Issued and fully
paid ordinary
share capital/
registered capital/
quota capital

Principal activities

ERIRHBE
AR ith B ZERAE
i NGRS =E 31 HEfMER IRERAE FTEXK
(note 1)
(FtEE1)
Team Forward Limited British Virgin US$2 Investment holding
Islands/Hong Kong 2T AT
REBELES /B
Top Rising Development Hong Kong HK$1 Investment holding
Limited e BT REER
MR AR A A
Trigon Building Hong Kong HK$2 Supply and installation
Materials Limited BB BT of building materials
EREREMBRAR BEM LR R R
Trigon Interior Macau MOP25,000 Building materials,
Fitting-Out Works P JE P25 0007 renovation
(Macau) Limited and trading
EREENEE BEME - g
CRFI) BER AT ;B S
Triple Sky Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Property investment
£ LT MERE
Wisdom Concept Hong Kong HK$2 Property development
Development Limited BB BT YEERE
RERAR A A
Eem (L8 &85 People’s US$600,000 Trading of health
AR A7) (Note 4) Republic 600,000% 7& products
(P 4) of China BEEMES

hEE AR AME

201
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46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

(o) PNCE=E

Place of
incorporation/
registration/operation

X B S it B
BRI

46. X EME L FFER @

Issued and fully
paid ordinary

share capital/
registered capital/
quota capital
ERITREE
EERRAE
AMER A RERAE
(note 1)

GESY

Principal activities

FEXRK

REXTFHUZEMH

AR AR (Note 4)

People’s Republic
of China

HK$4,740,559
75 4,740,5597T

Manufacture and
supply of building

(PF5E4) i AR AME

FEEFAEEME (EM) People’s Republic

HK$39,990,771

materials

)45 T f B SR SR

Manufacture and

BRAA] (Note 4) of China 7#39,990,7717T supply of building
(Ft3E4) RE AR LAE materials
RU3E R R EM B

# Subsidiary which was newly incorporated during the # REE-_Z——F=ZA=1+—HILFE
financial year ended 31 March 2011. L2 B AR -

Notes: B 5T -

(1)  All being ordinary share capital except the registered (1)  BRAalfEARZE AR EMB A B A A
capital for the subsidiaries registered in the PRC and REMERRERPIRIOM B AR A
quota capital for subsidiaries incorporated in Macau. REERIN  2REL BB -

(2)  The deferred shares are shares whose shareholders are (2) FEEREERFA ABREZRERARRA
neither entitled to receive notices, attend, vote at any Es BEHFIARRERENES
general meetings nor to receive any dividend out of ERE - MEEEDRESERFIRE
operating profit and have very limited rights on return of BB RAEM B A B BB AR R IE
capital of the subsidiary. HARER o

(3)  Other than Hanison Construction Holdings (BVI) Limited, B) BARAIEEFRAB ZHanison
which is directly held by the Company, all other Construction Holdings (BVI) Limited 4 -
companies are indirectly held by the Company. FrEEM AR BARRIBERE °

(4) A wholly foreign-owned enterprise. (4) —FHINEHEEREDRE -

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities ﬂfﬂ&@ f A RN AFEE B A&

during the year. BeE 7 e

The Company have 100% ownership interest and voting BRIEFFRIZRAA - G RIAARIRA 100%H#

K Sz A==
power except otherwise stated. SRR -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
SR

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—-HILEE

RESULTS E4
Turnover L]
Profit (loss) BR 158 A g A
before taxation (B1#8)
Taxation (charge) BB (X i)
credit e
Profit (loss) FE&F
for the year (&518)

2010 2009 2008 2007
—T-ZTF ZZTThF ZETEN\F —ETtHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BETIT BAETIL BT T
884,370 1,828,475 1,445,869 1,178,891
123,414 (66,326) 118,640 112,645
(14,213) 6,960 (24,350) (7,077)
109,201 (59,366) 94,290 105,568
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As at 31 March
R=B=+-—-8
2010 2009 2008 2007
“E-TF —TTHEFE —ZTENF —TTtHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT BET T

ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES

Total Assets

Total Liabilities

EERAE

BE#E

AfERE

1,807,327 1,736,305 1,848,949 1,308,055

(1,057,135) (1,084,312) (1,124,748) (660,414)

Shareholders' Funds

750,192 651,993 724,201 647,641
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES
TEYEME

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD FOR

RENTAL PURPOSES

Total

saleable/gross

floor/site

area (sq.ft.)

BE #EE/

Descriptions HEEEOH
R (EARR)

Nature of
property
MIEME

Attributable
interest of
the Group

AEE
G RER

A. BEREDRESHKBARE

Category
of lease

EREV

1. Workshop b5, G/F, Block A, 128,308
Workshop 3, G/F, Block B, (excluding area
Workshop 7, 1/F, Block A, of flat roofs)
Workshop 8, 1/F, Block B,

Workshops 9-10, portion of
Workshop 12 and Workshop 13,
2/F, Block A,

Workshop 8, 2/F, Block B,
Workshops 1-3, 6 & portion

of Workshops 4-5 & 24 (including
flat roofs of 4, 5 & 6), 3/F, Block B,
Workshops 1-5, 4/F, Block B,
Workshops 1-18

& majority portion of

Workshop 23 (including

flat roofs of Workshops 5 & 6),
4/F, Block A,

Whole Floor, 5/F, Blocks A & B,
Whole Floor, 6/F, Block A,

Car Parking Spaces

V26, V31, V36, V42, V49, V50,
Vb5, C2, L42, 145 & 153

Shatin Industrial Centre

5-7 Yuen Shun Circuit

Shatin, New Territories

1. #HA 128,308
W H (TeEETR
RIEESZE 75 Z H7E)
DHEIERD
AR T TERS
BEEHh N T{EM3 -

ABE—IE T {7
BE—IET{ERS

A TI{EF9E1L0
TEM122 8t R TVEMI13 -
BRE _ET{ERS
BE=ET{EE123K%6

M TEf4ZE5 K24 (B 1E
TER4 - 5R6ZETR) 281 -
BEEVUIE TEM1E5 -
ABRETER1Z18%
TEMI23 2 EE& 1D -
(BIETIERSKR6ZETR) -
ANBERERRE -

ABERNERE

NMERIRIFEV26 + V31 V36~ V42~ V49 -
V50~ V55~ C2 ~ L42 ~ L45% 153

Industrial

Ix

100%

100%

Medium term
lease

T
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES F 2 ¥ &

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD FOR

A. BEREDRESHKBARE

RENTAL PURPOSES (Continued) (&
Total
saleable/gross
floor/site Attributable
area (sq.ft.) interest of
BE#gE/ Nature of the Group Category
Descriptions B EEAE property AEE of lease
R (ERR) VNS Bt HAER
2. Ground Floor and 1st Floor 5,041 Industrial 100% Medium term
of Block B, Nos. 23-25 lease
Mei Wan Street
Tsuen Wan
New Territories
2. HRZEE 5,041 I% 100% H AR
FIRE23E 2558
BEEH T f — 12
3. Various lots 142,066 Agricultural 100% Medium term
in Demarcation District lease
No. 76
Ping Che
Fanling
New Territories
3. MAmETE 142,066 R¥ 100% ]
L2765
AT HE
4, Leasehold interest in the 2,731 Commercial/ 100% Medium term
Head-Lease for the residual Residential lease
term of 30 years commencing
from 1 December 1989 with
an option to renew for a further
term of 30 years of whole of
No. 31 Wing Wo Street, Sheung Wan
Hong Kong
4. R—hHEBHEA 2,731 mE/EE 100% H H

BB L RKME3REE
ZBAERG s HEER
MEFHB - N \NE+ A
—BR%E AH=1TF
BB BN =TFHBZEN)
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES = Z¥ ¥R &

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD FOR

A. BEREDRESHKBARE

RENTAL PURPOSES (Continued) (&
Total
saleable/gross
floor/site Attributable
area (sq.ft.) interest of
BE#g|/ Nature of the Group Category
Descriptions BREBENE property AEH of lease
¥R (EFR) MIXMNE FEfE R HAER
5. Various lots 214,106 Agricultural 100% Medium term
in Demarcation District No. 128 lease
Deep Bay Road, Yuen Long
New Territories
5. HTATIBARER 214,106 -3 3 100% H
X E491285%
BT HER
6.  Workshop Unit Nos. 4 to 6
(inclusive) on 2nd Floor 4,192 Industrial 100% Medium term
and Lorry Carpark Nos. L7 & L8 lease
on Ground Floor,
Kin Wing Industrial Building,
No. 33 Kin Wing Street,
Tuen Mun, New Territories
6. FTAEFT 4,192 I% 100% AR
BRAT33R
BETERE _B4Z65 TIER
(MEBEEAR)
R N ERRTRLI RS
7. Various lots 63,162 Agricultural 50% Medium term
in Demarcation District lease
No. 132, Tuen Mun, New
Territories
7. EREPILEAI32% 63,162 BE 50% ]

A TH R
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES F 2 ¥ &

B. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENTFOR B. BRHPZFEME

SALE
Site  Gross floor Expected Attributable
area area completion interest of
(sq. ft.) (sq. ft.) Stage of date Nature of the Group
Descriptions WHEEE HREEE  completion BRI property X558
R (EER) (EAER) 7 B B B MEME bR s
1. Eight College 6,125 18,372 Work in 2011 Residential 100%
8 College Road progress
Kowloon Tong
Kowloon
1. BE 6,125 18,372  IiR#ETH 2011 F=E 100%
NERER B8R
Eight College
2. 121 Lots in Demarcation 815,886 Not yet Planning No  Residential 100%
District No. 129 determined in progress definite
Lau Fau Shan plan
Yuen Long
New Territories
2. ®R 815,886 RETE BARER EHEIE FE 100%
TLRARE L
LED129%
121163 B
3. Various lots 44 588 Not yet Planning No Residential 100%
in Demarcation determined in progress definite
District No. 374 plan
So Kwun Wat
Tuen Mun
New Territories
3. WREPIRES 44,588 RETE BARER EHEIE € 100%
LED3I74%
A THER
4, Nos. 91-97 Bedford Road 4,820 57,211 Work in 2013 Industrial 100%
progress
4. DEBINEIH 4,820 57,211  Ti2#fTHH 2013 Ix 100%
5. No. 38 Kwun Chung Street 5,790 52,001 Work in 2014 Residential 100%
Jordan, Kowloon progress

5. NEEHERE3SH 5,790 52,001 TRRETH 2014 FE 100%
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Unit 1, 4/F, Block B, Shatin Industrial Centre,
5-7 Yuen Shun Circuit, Shatin, Hong Kong
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www.hanison.com



